C05904968°IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F- 2013-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12/30/2015

RELEASE IN
CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED - ‘ Page 1 of 3
NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS

From: Morsch-Babu, Laura N REDACTED

Sent: ~ Friday, June 17, 2011 8:36 AM

To: DRL-Users-DL ! u

Subject: FW: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Jun 17, 2011

LS

Good morning, everyone. We have the pen on two pieces this momiﬁg:

NR

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
!Revimr

From: Holladay, Darby G [maiito:HolladayDG2@state.gov]

Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 6:41 AM \
To: PAO Group

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Jun 17, 2011

Good Morning — ; " g
Toria will brief at 12:30 pm.
Guidance collection will begin at 11:00 am and conclude at Noon in the 6th Floor PA

Conference Room. Please gather at 11 am with your guidances irrespective if they are final or
not, and Tona will see you in the order you arrive.

Thanks,
DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Jun 17, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress Officers
" Daily Schedule
DPB {

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PA/FO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m.)

CLﬁSSIFICA‘I'ION UNCLASSIFIED Printed By: Wectman, Susanfg
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12!30!2015 2

StateDept008692



C05904968IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12/30/2015

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED Page 2 of 3

Pending Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP)

NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact
sheets so we can work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets
and media notes completely cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.

Media Note and Fact Sheet - U.S. Department of State Public Diplomacy Programs for Mongolia

Special Briefings and Transcripts:

DPB
NR
|
|
|
NEAR EAST
NEA/EUR/TURKEY/ISRAEL/GAZA: Is this weekend’s planned flotilla meeting by activists
to break the Israeli blockade of Gaza pmceedmg? Has the US reached out to the NGO, the
Turks, the Israelis, and the Palestinians? What is our message to the organizers of the
flotilla? Does June 25" remain the start date for the flotilla?
[ NR
. CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED Fouiad Ry Weetimn, St G

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12/30/2015 ©°f3

StateDept008693



C05904968IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12/30/2015

-
§

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED Page 3 of 3

No Taskings

MISCELLANEOUS
No Taskings

CLASSIFICATION: UNCLASSIFIED ‘ Printed By: Weetman, S"sa“fg
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F2010—04163 Doc No. C05904968 Date: 12/30/2015" ©

StateDept008694



C05904969IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010.04163 Doc No. C05904969 Date: 12/30/2015
[

RELEADE IN I

e

From: ) Marsch-Babu, Laura N

Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 10:46 AM

To: _ DRL-Users-DL

Subject: FW: Additional Taskings/Requests: S/RAP, EAP/IO, EUR/NEA
Categories: Working

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

P ~

Please let me know if you'd like fo review any of the below.

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. > NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS |
REDACTED
From: Holladay, Darby G [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]

Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 10:35 AM
To: PAO Group i
Subject: Additional Taskings/Reguests: S/RAP, EAP/IO, EUR/NEA

All -

Apologies for the late tasking, but we have a few additional requests. .
| ‘ NR

=

NEA/EUR: Please provide today’s tasked items on the Gaza Flotilla.

Thanks,

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior} 5
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904969 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008695



C05904971ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904971 Date: 12/30/2015

e =

From: Galindo, David R

Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 1:11 PM

To: Busby, Scott W, Falls, Eric G; Melia, Thomas O; Graze, Deborzh E; Posner, Michael H

Cc Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Baer, Daniel B; Galindo, David R

Subject: RE: HRC voting June 17 morning session: Belarus

Attachments: 110617 BLRresREV2bCLEAN.docx

Categories: Working - =

AttachmentsClassification: ' NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
UNCLASSIFIED » REDACTED

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

--—- Original Message -—-
From: Blaha, Charles O

Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 06:41 AM
To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Lapenn, Jessica; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Geneva HRC 17; Donahoe, Eileen C; DRL-MLGA-DL; IO-HR-

DL

Subject: HRC voting June 17 morning session

Flotilla - US calls for vote. 36 Yes. 1 No. 8 Abstain

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depa}unent of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904971 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008696

NR



C05904971IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904971 Date: 12/30/2015

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc N-o_ C05904971 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008697

NR



ED Depart t of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc N 05904973
C05904973l U.S. Department of State Case 0. lKana:mw&ﬁ . C 4973 Date: 12/30/2015

~

L

From: Morsch-Babu, Laura N

Sent: Tuesday, July 05, 2011 7:51 AM

To: DRL-Users-DL

Subject: FW: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

Categories: Working  /

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

SensitivityCode: SBU NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS ‘

REDACTED

Note that we have the pen on the following:

Laura Morsch-Babu

Bureau Of Democracy Human Rights and Labor
Policy, Planning & Public Diplomacy (DRL/PPD)
(202) 647-0984

Morsch-BabuLN@state.gov

SBU

T emitis UNGLOSRIRIER. " [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior|

Reviewer

From: Holladay, Darby G [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, July 05, 2011 7:30 AM

To: PAO Group

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

Trying again.

From: Holladay, Darby G

Sent: Tuesday, July 05, 2011 06:02 AM

To: Hammer, Michael A; Nuland, Victoria J; Toner, Mark C; Smith, Dana S; PA PRS_Issues; Chang, Benjamin
Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

From: darby holladay [mailto:darbygholladay@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 05, 2011 05:58 AM

To: Holladay, Darby G

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

Good Morning —

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008698



C05904973IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

Toria will brief today‘ at 12:30 pm. Guidance collection will begin at 11:00 am and conclude at Noon in the 6th
Floor PA Conference Room.

Thanks,
DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 5, 2011

Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB

Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PA/FO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m.)

Pending Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP)

NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow. Please aim tg have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.

Special Briefings and Transcripts:

DPB

NR

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008699



C059049731ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

NEAR EAST

.

NEA/ISRAEL/GAZA: Is Flotilla 2.0 over? Update the current guidance with this weekend’s events.

SOUTH AND CENTRAL ASIA

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904973 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008700

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

StateDept008701



Doc N /201
C05904974/ED US. Department of State Case No. F- 2010—84;?1 molt_:u L?.; C05904974 Date: 1?!302 5

From: OpsAlert
Sent: " Tuesday, July 05, 2011 9:59 AM

Subject: Greek court releases American captain of Gaza flotilla boat (SBU) (SBU)

(SBU) The captain of the Audacity of Hope was released from custody after his July 2 arrest for attempting to
set sail in defiance of a Greek ban ¢ on the flotilla boats leaving port, media report. Embassy Athens confirms the
release.

Automatic electronic distribution to: S, D(S), D(N), P, E, C, M, DG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP, EUR, NEA, SCA, WHA, IO,
SICRS, SICT, SIHSC, H, DS, CA, PMAT, INR, AVC, IIP, ISN, CMS, SIES, SIES-O, NSOC, and WHSR.

-

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904974 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008702



C05904984IED U.S.-Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904984 Date: 12/30/2015
IRELEASE IN FULL

e

From: Morsch-Babu, Laura N

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 8:10 AM

To: DRL-Users-DL

Subject: _ FW: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 19, 2011

Categories: Working :
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS |

REDACTED

it's an extremely light morning so far. Please also review the final taskings later this moming, because
it will likely have additional guidance.

Laura

Laura Morsch-Babu

Bureau Of Democracy Human Rights and Labor
Policy, Planning & Public Diplomacy (DRL/PPD) .
(202) 647-0984

M h-Bab .gov

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

1

From: Holladay, Darby G [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 20 11 6:07 AM

To: PAO Group

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 19, 2011

: REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Good Morning — ' Reviewer

Heide will hold guidance collection today between 11:00 — 12:00 in Rm. 2109.
Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 19, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
) ) 2 DPB
Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PA/FO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m. )

Pending Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP)

NOTE: Please notify us as early in the morning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we
can work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing. ' J

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904984 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008703



C05904984IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904984 Date: 12/30/2015

Special Briefings and Transcripts:
SPB — Horn of Africa Famine

|

NEA/ISRAEL: Did Israel stop a Gaza bound flotilla yacht? Did the Israeli Navy board the vessel? Wasita
peaceful boarding? ) . -

. MISCELLANEOUS
No Taskings

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05904984 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008704



IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 D ; :
C05904985 P ate Case No -2010-04162 ruEE, No. C05904985 Date: 12/30/2015

E
From: Morsch-Babu, Laura N
Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 8:48 AM
To: DRL-Users-DL
Subject: FW: FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 19, 2011
Categories: Working
REDACTED
Just one addition | highlighted below.
Laura
Laura Morsch-Babu
Bureau Of Democracy Human Rights and Labor
Policy, Planning & Public Diplomacy (DRL/PPD)
(202) 647-0984
M h-Babu .gov
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
From: Holladay, Darby G [mailto:Holl DG2
Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 8:46 AM
To: PAO Group '
Subject: FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 18, 2011
Good Morning — REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer
Heide will hold guidance collection today between 11:00 — 12:00 in Rm. 2109,

Thanks,

_FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Jul 19, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB
Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PA/FO at 7-9606 after 11 am.)

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

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904985 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008705



C05904985IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904985 Date: 12/30/2015

NEA/ISRAEL: Did Israel stop a Gaza bound flotilla yacht? Did the Israeli Navy board the vessel? Wasita
peaceful boarding?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904985 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008706

NR



C05904987IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904987 Date: 12/30/2015
[RELEASE IN FULL]

.

From: OpsAlert

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 5:25 PM

Subject: e Update 1: French M/V Dignite/Karama and Jordanian Ferry M/V Noor of the Gaza flotilla

(SBU) Embassy Paris confirmed that the ship docked at Ashdod at approximately 1700 Paris/1100 EDT and its

_16 passengers and crew disembarked without incident. All of the passengers were taken to an administrative
facility in Holon for processing by Israeli immigration authorities and the Ministry of Interior. According to
French officials, no Americans were aboard the boat.

(SBU) Embassy Tel Aviv comments the Isracli government is now focusing on the M/V Noor, in the vicinity of
Antalya, Turkey. Citing Al Jazeera reports the ship intends to board 120 activists and is determined to reach
Gaza, Israeli authorities have asked the Turkish MFA to prevent the ship from departing.

Automatic electronic distribution to: S, D(S), D(N), P, E, C, M, DG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP, EUR, NEA, SCA, WHA, IO,
SICRS, S/CT, S/IHSC, H, DS, CA, PMAT, INR, AVC, IIP, ISN, CMS, S/ES, S/ES-0, NSOC, and WHSR.

From: OpsAlert@state.gcov
" Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2011 6:04:11 AM
To:
CC: - & g
Subject: Israeli Navy boards French M/V Dignite/Karama of the Gaza flotilla (SBU)

(SBU) Embassy Tel Aviv confirmed the the Israeli Navy boarded the ship at 0535 EDT/1235 Tel Aviv
* approximately 1-2 miles outside Israel’s Gaza blockade line. The navy is reportedly in control of the ship and is
taking it to the Israeli port of Ashdod. The Israeli Foreign Ministry is not aware of any injuries or
casualties. Embassy Paris reports the French Foreign Ministry has been in regular contact with
Israeli counterparts and has urged Israel to use minimal force and to guarantee French consular access.

Automatic electronic distribution to: S, D(S), D(N), P, E,C, M,DG, T, R, PA, G, hF, EAP, EUR, NEA, SCA, WHA, IO,
SICRS, SICT, SIHSC, H, DS, CA, PMAT, INR, AVC, IIP, ISN, CMS, S/ES, S/ES-0O, NSOC, and WHSR.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904987 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008707



C05905002IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905002 Date: 12/30/2015
IRELEASE IN FULL

B

From: OpsAlert

Sent: Friday, September 02, 2011 6:52 AM

Subject: Update 1: Turkey To Downgrade Diplomatic Relations with Israel Over Palmer Report

(SBU) Concerned Israel will not apologize and pay reparations for last year’s deadly raid on a Gaza-bound
flotilla, Foreign Minister Davutoglu says Turkey will downgrade diplomatic relations with Israel to the second
secretary level and cut military ties as well, media reports. Embassy Ankara comments Israel’s ambassador to
Turkey returned to Israel previously, and is unlikely to be replaced.

. Automatic electronic distribution to: S, D(B), D(N), P, E, C, M, DG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP, EUR, NEA, SCA, WHA, IO,
SICRS, SICT, S/HSC, H, DS, CA, PMAT, INR, AVC, IIP, ISN, CMS, S/ES, S/ES-O, NSOC, and WHSR.

From: OpsAlert@state.gov _

Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2011 1:28:08 PM

To: .

CC:

Subject: New York Times Publishes Palmer Commission Report (U)

(U) Ahead of the expected September 2 publication, The New York Times released the full text of the UN's
findings. According to The New York Times, the review found Israel’s naval blockade of Gaza to be legal and
appropriate but deemed the way its forces boarded the Turkish-based flotilla to be excessive and unreasonable.

Automatic electronic distribution to: S, D(B), D(N), P, E, C, M, DG, T, R, PA, G, AF, EAP, EUR, NEA, SCA, WHA, IO,
SICRS, SICT, S/IHSC, H, DS, CA, PMAT, INR, AVC, IIP, ISN, CMS, S/ES, S/ES-O, NSOC, and WHSR.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905002 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008708



C05905008IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905008 Date: 12/30/2015
- RELEASE IN FULL|

© From: . ) Walker-Johnson, Lynda W (DRL)
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 7:12 PM
To: Galindo, David R; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Busby, Scott W
Cc: Baer, Daniel B; DRL Staff Assistants; Posner, Michael H
Subject: HRC18 Priorities IM to S rev 3.docx ~
Attachments: HRC18 Priorities IM to S rev 3.docx
Categories: Working ¢ :
AttachmentsClassification: £
UNCLASSIFIED

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

Attached please find tracked changes from A/S Posner and DAS Baer, with these changes they clear the memo.

s

This email is UNCLASSIFIED..

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior ‘
[Reviewer

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905008 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008709



C05905010!ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015
RELEASE IN FULL

United States Department of State

Washington, D.C. 20520

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED -

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS |
INFORMATION MEMO FOR THE SECRETARY REDACTED

FROM: 10 — Esther Brimmer
DRL — Michael Posner

L — Harold Hongju Koh REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior |
[Reviewer ‘

SUBJECT: Human Rights Council 18" Session Preview

The UN Human Rights Council (HRC) will meet for its 18th Session in Geneva
September 12-30, 2011.

| Israeli/Palestinian Issues: |

Turkey may run a follow up flotilla resolution, but has not yet received
instructions.

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008710

NR



| C05905010IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015  NR|

0\0

4

Q""Qe

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008711



C05905010IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
=t

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008712

NR



C05905010!ED us. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015
Approved: IO/FO: E Brimmer
DRL/FO: M Posner
L/FO: HKoh

Drafted:  IO/HR: Robert Schwartz (202) 647-3166

Cleared: .
Drafted: IO/HR — Robert Schwartz, ext. 7-3166 and BB: 202-256-9610
Cleared: IO/FO: S Nossel OK

L: SBiniaz OK

IO/HR: M Honigstein OK
DRL/MLGA: D Galindo OK
L/HRR: G Brancato - OK

D(B): C Neville OK
D(N): S Carl-Yoder  OK
G: E Richardson OK
P: R Gerber OK
S/P: L Baer OK
PRM.: O Hilton OK

USUN/W: W Bass info by request
USUN/NY: K Razzouk OK
Geneva: E Donahoe OK
AF/RSA: L Dees OK
S/USSES: D Newman OK
EAP/RSP: H Farrar OK
NEA/RA: S Arkin OK
SCA/RA: ] Brennig OK
EUR/PGI: S Pierson OK
WHA/PPC: P Reilly OK
NSS: C Powell info

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905010 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008713



IED U.S. Depart t of Stat . F- - .
C05905011 ePa|KngEEA%I: |n?r?u8_a|se No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 12/30/2015

From: Weidner, Rebecca L

Sent: Friday, October 14, 2011 7:10 AM

To: E : DRL-Users-DL -
Subject:” Fw: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Oct. 14, 2011 -

Good morning.

Sudan, Burma, Ukraine, Egypt. NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Friday, October 14, 2011 07:04 AM

To: PAQ Group .

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Oct. 14, 2011

Good Morning -

The DPB will begin at 12:30 pm. Guidance collection will begin at 11 am until Noon in the 6" Floor PA
Conference Room.

Thanks,
5 DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Oct. 14, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
) DPB
Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7-4979) (or in the PA/FO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m.)

Pending Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP)
NOTE: Please notify us as early in the momning as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely

cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Special Briefings and Transcripts ' ' Reviewer

_AFRICA:

EAST ASIA

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Caée No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008714



C05905011!ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 12/30/2015

EUROPE N
EUR/NEA/TURKEY/ISRAEL: Do we believe Turkey’s seeking Interpol Red Notice’s against Israelis
involved in the Gaza Flotilla incident is conducive to rebuilding relations?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905011 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008715

NR-

NR



C0590501 3IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C059805013 Date: 12/30/2015

IRELEASE IN FULL

From: Weidner, Rebecca L -

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2012 9:00 AM
To: . DRL-Users-DL
Subject: FW: FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, May 29, 2012
: INON-RESPONSIVE P!
Serbia and an SCCI tasking iRED ACTED SNETIONS

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto: HolladaynGz@slate gov]
Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2012 8:58 AM

To: PAO Group

Subject: FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, May 29 2012

Good Morning -
The DPB will begin at 12:30pm with Guidance collection between 11am and Noon in the 6th PA Conference
Room. : ' =
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Thoks, Reviewer

FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, May 29, 2012
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group . Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB :
Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (202-538-1193) (or in the PA/FO at 7-9606 after 11 a.m.)

F

Pending Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP) -

NOTE: Please notify us as early in the moming as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905013 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008716



C0590501 3°IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905013 Date: 12/30/2015

EUR/NEA/TURKEY/ISRAEL: What is our response to Turkey formally charging Israeli citizens/military
personnel for the death of members of the Gaza flotilla? Do we think this facilitates a renewing of relations
between the countries? - B

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905013 Date: 12/30/2015
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905013 Date: 12/30/2015
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IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905018 Date: 12/30/20
C05905019° i lRELEASI::INF LL| to

From: Hudson, Helen C v
Sent: Wednesday, November 07, 2012 8:46 AM -
To: ; DRL-Users-DL

Subject: FW: FINAL Tasking List for Wednesday, November 7, 2012

Mali, China, Burma, Russia, Georgia, Syria, Libya, Bahrain, Afghanistan/Pakistan, Sri Lanka. Hch

Helen C. Hudson NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
Press Officer : REDACTED

Office of Policy Planning and Public Diplomacy

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor

Tel: 202-647-2330

BB: 202-256-9931

Email: hudsonhc@state.gov

Please Note: Press gmdance and other items for clearance should be sent to the DRL-PPD-DL collective to assure that
everyone in the section sees them.

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, November 07, 2012 8:33 AM

To: PAO Group

Subject: FINAL Tasking List for Wed nesday, November 7, 2012

Good Morning —

The DPB will be at 12:30pm today. Note, there is carry-over from yestérday's list, so make sure yesterday's
guidance remains current.
REMEMBER THE NEW LOCATION: Guidance Collection will begin at 11am and conclude at Noon in

Room 6835. ]
Thanks, REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
- |Reviewer
FINAL Tasking List for Wednesday, November 7, 2012
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group _ - Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers
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

Statement - Conviction of Al-Mola

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905019 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008719



C05905(016°IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905019 Date: 12/30/2015

Media Note — Anti Corruption Conference in Brasilia

NR

EUR/NEA/CT/TURKEY/ISRAEL: We will need lines on Turkej('s trial in absentia of Israeli's involved in
'stiopping the Gaza flotilla.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905018 Date: 12/30/2015
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—— o TR =

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Tuesday, April 05, 2011 3:27 PM

To: Posner, Michael H -

Cc: Short, Julie A; Morris, Joshua C; Cassidy, Joseph P; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Lieberman,
Jessica D (DRL)

Subject: Quick clearance needed - D(S) request on Goldstone op-ed issue update

Categories: Working ——

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED ﬁ"ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ?

SensitivityCode: Sensitive e e

Hi A/S Posner,

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon

{Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

|

D(S) has asked for an update on the Goldstone op-ed.

INR

Thanks,
Sarah : 3
Classified by DAS, A/GIS, DoS on 12/16/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason: 1.4(8), 1.4(D),
B1 ~ Declassify on: 04/05/2011
‘ NR
Also on Monday, 10, DRL and NEA/IPA met with the PolCouns from the Israeli Embassy. ‘BE(B)
I.
f 1.4(D)

\

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904940 Date: 12/30/2015
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NR

Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
_ 202-647-0293

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED,
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}

SBU )
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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b=

From: Posner, Michael H RELEASE IN PART B6§

Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 10:52 AM - o

To: Richter, Kim B; Rademacher, Paul R .

Cc: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Magarian, Sharyn; Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Subject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen )

Categories: Working

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

SensitivityCode: Sensitive

Adding Jessica Lieberman, Jill Hutchings, Winston Mann and Sharyn Magarian

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Richter, Kim B

Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 10:45 AM

To: Posner, Michael H; 'Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)'; Rademacher, Paul R
Cc: 'Manatt, Nikole (Appropriations)'; Eilts, Colin C

Subject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

Adding Calin Eilts on the Israel Desk.

From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 10:30 AM

To: 'Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)'; Richter, Kim B; Rademacher, Paul R
Cc: Manatt, Nikole (Appropriations)

Subject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

Checking on this — will get back to you

s8U :
This email is UNGLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 7:35 PM
To: Richter, Kim B; Rademacher, Paul R; Posner, Michael H
Cc: Manatt, Nikole (Appropriations)

Subject: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

Can you tell me whether the U.S. Embassy in Israel has determined who was responsible for -
Mr. Dogan'’s death, whether there is any credible evidence that he was armed or his shooting
was justified, if not whether the person(s) responsible has (have) been brought to justice,
whether the Leahy Amendment has been invoked, and any other information the State

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904947 Date: 12/30/2015
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Department can provide regarding actions it has taken on behalf of Mr. Dogan’s family or in
pursuit of justice in this case? Thanks, Tim

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904947 Date: 12/30/2015
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|RELEASE IN PART
I_NR i
From: Mann, Winston E (DRD)
Sent: - Thursday, May 26, 2011 12:43 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill
Cc Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Busby, Scott W; Miller, Asa G
Subject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a USS. citizen
Categories: : Working
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED K
SensitivityCode: Sensitive .
B l
|

|
Cheers,
Winston

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior|.
Reviewer

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
From: Magarian, Sharyn
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 12:23 PM
To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Subject: RE: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

SBU

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904948 Date: 12/30/2015
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This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2011 10:32 AM

To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Magarian, Sharyn

Subject: FW: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

What do we know ? | want to respond qtiickly

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim Rieser@appro.senate.qov]
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2011 7:35 PM

To: Richter, Kim B; Rademacher, Paul R; Posner, Michael H

Cc: Manatt, Nikole (Appropriations) i

Subject: Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen

Can you tell me whether the U.S. Embassy in Israel has determined who was responsible for
Mr. Dogan’s death, whether there is any credible evidence that he was armed or his shooting
was justified, if not whether the person(s) responsible has (have) been brought-to justice,
whether the Leahy Amendment has been invoked, and any other information the State
Department can provide regarding actions it has taken on behalf of Mr. Dogan’s family or in
pursuit, of justice in this case? Thanks, Tim

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. fZJepartment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904948 Date: 12/30/2015
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[RELEADE IN FARK] |

1.4(B),B1,1.4{D),NR_

From: Galindo, David R
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 5:38 PM"
To: DRL-Radar
Ce DRL-MLGA-DL
Subject: MLGA Radar, Friday, May 27, 2011 NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
_ ' REDACTED
Categories: Working
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
Freedom House Rates HRC: | \
|
I |
Flotilla: = -
B1|
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

® The Human Rights Council will debate the flotilla issue on June 14, two days after the Turkish elections. Itis not
clear yet whether Turkey will run another resolution. The High Commissioner’s report on the flotilla issue is very
short and non-inflammatory. The USG will have a statement which is in the clearance process. (Johnston-

Gardner)

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Classified by DAS, A/GIS, DoS on 12/16/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~
_ |Reason: 1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on: 05/27/2021

Reviewer

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, seniiJ

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904951 Date: 12/30/2015
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C05904953IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12/30/2015
RELEASE IN PART

B5.B6
From: . Short, Julie A
Sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 7:02 PM
To: : Posner, Michael H
Subject: RE:| | B6
‘J .
Mike,
B5
Julie
From: Busby, Scott W
Sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 6:59 PM
To: Short, Julie A; Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings,
Jill
Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re] ] B6
BS
SCott
Frouﬁ: Short, Julie A
Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 01:29 PM
To: Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
Scott W ’
Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE: Prof. Dogan - father of Furkan
Sharyn,
B5
Thank . — S S
e REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

Subject: Re;| ] B6

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12/30/2015
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| \ . B5

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Sent: Fnday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchmgs, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R(DRL), Fitzpamck Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:{ B6

B5

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 11:53 AM

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL}, Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher Paul R

Subject: RE:| | B6

B5

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

{

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM

To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-GamIner Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;

Magarian, Sharyn

Subject: RE: B6

A/S Posner,

B5

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12/30/2015
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v/r
Winston

SBU .
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM

To: Lieberman, Jessnca D (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Frtzpatnck, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn -

Subject: FW: |

Please advise --

7 SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto: Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: Rademacher, Paul R

Subject:|

Mike, per my earlier email about the killiﬁg of Furkan Dogan, a U.S, citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza

who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received this email from the

Center for Constitutional Rights after I asked what success they had had in spealung with the State Dept
* about him:

“We have not received any further information from the State Department, unfortunately. AsI

- mentioned in February, we tried to meet with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was better to meet with consular
services at that point, We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing-out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. There has been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seek the return of Furkan’s property from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avail.”

Also, here is a description of Furkan from CCR:
Furkan Dogan graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the

university entrance examination, which in Turkey is an honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical school. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help

L

{

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12/30/2015
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people. Furkan was kind and generous. Whenever his grandparents gave him pocket change, Furkan would
give it to people who didn't have enough to eat.

Furkan was very fine, polite, helpful, and generous. He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
modest but resisted unfaimess. He was very clean and neat. He never liked violence and was never
impolite. He couldn’t stand by injustice, but took the side of the oppressed and victims of violence.

He used to play soccer. He was a big fan of the soccer team Galatasaray, and was also a supporter of our city’s
soccer team, Kayseri Sports Club. Once he applied to an amateur soccer team for a “soccer player license,” but
he was rejected because of his foreign (American) nationality. He followed the NBA, attended chess
tournaments, and one of his favorite activities was swimming, which used to do all the time during our
holidays. He had recently obtained his driver license, and was really enjoying driving our car.

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet, expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show “Kelime
Oyunu” (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

]f'or the summer between high school and university, Furkan had-beén planmng to go-to the United States. - He
Lwanted to visit Troy, New York, whcrehe was bornandlived-the first years of his life, and he wanted to

P.me with relatives in Chlcago, where he. was going fo take_language classes to improve his English, which he
already spoke quite. well Furkan had only U.S. cmzenshlp

However; one day he came- home and: he had iseen-a. billboard. advertising a humanitarian boat going |
aza. He had seen p:cttu'es of children in. Gaza ‘who were killed by. ‘the bombardmerit, and he spoke of the
chxldren there without enough to eat: He-asked our penmssmnto 0. ‘He explained. that he could always go
]the United -States to study English; but he. couldn’t always go to Gaza to take aid to those.in need: Furkan
ivmmeu:i to take gifts and give them to chlldren in Gaza with his‘own hands. He’ wanted to  breathe:the same" au]
as these children and express-| his compa.sswn and.sohdanty ‘His mother ‘and I didn’t feel that we could say.no

to him — to his henorable request We ‘were proud of Furkan. |

We have since heard- !hat-Furkan was well-known on-the Mavi.Marmara because he was eager to.help and was
always offering assistance ‘o other ‘passengers, as.-washis nature: When helicopters approached the Shlp,‘

. urkan went to the top deck- with his camera to record what was happemng My son was shot five times by- IDF;
sold:ers after he was initially shot and wounded, we understand that ‘he was: dragged by IDF.soldiers to the
Side, where he was then shot in the face at close range and killéd.- Furkan was.18 years old!

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904953 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008733



C05904954 IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05804954 Date: 12/30/2015

RELEASE IN PART | - -

B5,B6

e

From: Busby, Scott W

Sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 7:08 PM ;

To: N Short, Julie A; Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman,

) Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill
Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher
: ) Paul R y

Subject: Re:[ | . B6
| B5
Kathy/Jessica -- Can you?

From: Short, Julie A e

Sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 07:03 PM

To: Busby, Scott W; Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL);

Hutchings, Jill

Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

Subject: RE: | | B6
Scott, - ' *

B5
4 ’ /

Julie .

From.l Busby, Scott W =

Sent: Friday, June 03, 2011 6:59 PM

To: Short, Julie A; Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL), Hutchings,

Jill

Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R o

Subject: Re: | | B6

B5

Scott

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Short, Julie A
Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 01:29 PM

To: Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lleben'nan Jessica D (DRL); Hutchlngs, Jill; Busby,
Scott W

Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904954 Date: 12/30/2015
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Suibject: RE: |

Sharyn,

BS

Thanks,
Julie

From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM -

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re: Prof. Dogan - father of Furkan

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

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
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL), Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Ce: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, KathleenM Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:|

B6
BS

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: Mann, Winston E (DRL) ; ==
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM : ’

To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn " >
Subject: RE:| - ]

A/S Posner,

v/r
Winston

SBU '
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM

To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W~

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn : B B

Subject: FW:| ]

Please advise --

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

-

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto: Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: Rademacher, Paul R ‘

Subject: ‘

Mike, per my earlier email about the killing of Furkan Dogan, a U.S.Icitizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received this email from the
Center for Constitutional Rights after I asked what success they had had in speaking with the State Dept
about him:

A

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904954 Date: 12/30/2015
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“We have not received any further information from the State Department, unfortunately. AsI
mentioned in February, we tried to meet with Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was better to meet with consular
services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
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

Furkan Dogan graduated from high school last year, having excelléd in his science studies. He passed the
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

"Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet, expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show “Kelime
Oyunu” (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

or the summer between high school and university, Furkan had been- planning togo to the United States.- He

anted to visit Troy, New York, where he: was born'and lived the first years of his life, and he wanted to spend‘

time with relatives-in Chicago; where he was going.to take language’ classes to_improve his English, which he
y spoke quite well. Furkan had only U.S. citizenship.}

However, one day-he came home and he ‘had seen a billboard advertising a humanitarian boat going
He had seen pictures of children in- Gaza who were k.llled by the bombardment, and. he spoke of the
chlldrcn there without enough to eat.- He asked’our pemussmn to go. _He explained that he could always go t({

IIthe United States to. study Enghsh, but he couldn’t always 20 to Gaza to take aid to those in ‘need. Furkan

rvanted to take gifts and give them to “children in Gaza;mth his own-hands. Hc wanted to breathe- the sameang

as these cluldren and express his compassion-and sohdanty ‘His mother and I didn’t feel that we could sa y 1O
10 him — to his honorable réquest.- We were proud of Furkan.- I

\We have since heard that Furkan was well- known on the Mavz Marmara because he was eager to help and was
always offering assistance to“other - passengers as was hls naturé. When hellcopters approached the shlp,i
I-‘urkan went to the t0p deck with his camera to record what was hatm:h‘:mr:@r My son was shot five times by IDI-]

soldlcrs after he was initially shot and ‘wounded we understand that he ‘was dragged by IDF soldiers to the
suic where he was then shot in the face at close rangeand killed.- Furkan was:18 yéars old!
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6 RELEASE IN PART |
- - BS‘BG—-
From: Posner, Michael H _
Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 11:14 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn

Subject: Re:| |

| will respond in the morning (and copy you)
Thanks

From: Magarian, Sharyn

Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 11:04-PM

To: Posner, Michael H

Subject: Fw: | ]

Hi Mike,

Thanks. -

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
Subject: RE:| . 5 .
Sharyn,

Thanks, ; .

Julie REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer

From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julile A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re: | ) ;

-

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM ) )

To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:| ] : , .
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

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL), Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

Subject: RE: [ ] _ B6

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM

To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; ]ohmton-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn

Subject: RE:| ' } ' \ B8&
A/S Posner, = I
B5
|
v/r ' ) '
Winston
SBU

This emailis UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:03 AM

To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
_Magarian, Sharyn

Subject: FW:| |

Please advise --

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: Rademacher, Paul R

Subject: |

Mike, per my earlier email about the killing of Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
who according to the Turkish investigation was unarmed and executed, I received this email from the
Center for Constitutional Rights after I asked what success they had had in speaking with the State Dept
about him:

“We have not received any further information from the State Department, unfortunately. As]I
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

Furka.n Dogan graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
university entrance examination, which in Turkey is an honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical school. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help
people Furkan was kind and generous. Whenever his grandparents gave him pocket change Furkan would
give it 1o people who didn't have enough to eat.

Furkan was very fine, polite, .helpful, and generous. He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
modest but resisted unfairness. He was very clean and neat. He never liked violence and was never
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

Fm' the summer between high school-and university, Furkan had been planning to go to the United States. He
wanted to visit Troy, New York,-where he was born and lived the first years of his life, and he wanted to: Spend
ume with relatives in Chicago, where he was.going to_take language classes to improve his.English, which he
already spoke quite well. Furkan had only U.S. citizenship.

However, one day he came home and he had’ seen a. ‘billboard advertising a humanitarian boat going to
'Gaza. Hehadseenpzcmres ofchﬂdreanazawhowerekﬂledbythebombardmem,andhcspokeofthe
children there without ‘endugh to eat.- He asked-our- permission to'go. . 'He explained that he could always go to
the United States to study English, but he’ couldn’t .always go to Gaza to take aid to those in need. Furka.n
lwantedtotakeglﬁsand glvethemtochlldreanazamthhlsownhands Hewantedtobremhemesameam
as these children and"express-his compassion-and solidarity.~ His mother and I didn’t feel that we could say no no -

to him — to his honorable request. We were proud of Furkan..{

‘We have since heard that Furkan was well-known on- the Mavi"Marmara because he was eager to help and was
always offering assistance to" other -passengers, as’ was .his nature.’ When hehcopters approached - ‘the shjp,l
Furkan went to the top deck with his:camera to record what was happening. My son.was shot five times by IDE
solchers after he was initially shot and wounded, we understand that he was.dragged by IDF. soldiers to the
Side, where he was then shot in the face at.close range and killed. Furkan was 18 years old!
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RELEASE IN PART

- B5,B6

From: Busby, Scott W

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 4:57 PM

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Magarian,
Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill

Cc: Short, Julie A; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R: Sicade, Lynn
M (DRL

Subject: RE: B6

Categories: Working

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

SensitivityCode: Sensitive

B5

=

SBU

" This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 3:45 PM

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Magarian, Sharyn; Lleberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,

Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL)

Subject: RE: | : B6

BS
Best,
Sarah : REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-0293
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SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 3:17 PM

To: Posner, Michael H; Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

Subject: RE; | B6
B5
' Iv,’r
Winston
SBU

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

]

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

Subject: Re:| | B6

' | B5

From:; Mann, Winston E (DRL)

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
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 11:53 AM )
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
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Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE: _ )

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM

To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnsl:on-Gardner,SarahR(DRL), Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademad'uer Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn

Subject: RE:|

A/S Posner,

r

- vfr
Winston

SBU _
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

Subject: FW:|

Please advise -
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SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: Rademacher, Paul R )
Subject:| _ |

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]

Mike, per my earlier email about the Killing of Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
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
- modest but resisted unfairness. He was very clean and neat. He never liked violence and was never
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

For'the-summer between high school and umversxty, Furkan had been planning to go, to- the United States. He

ted' to visit Troy, New York, where he,,was born and lived the first. .yéars of his life, and he wanted to spend
f:ime with relatlvcs n Chlcago where he was gomg to take language classes to improve his Enghsh, which he;
already spoke quite well. Furkan had only U.S. citizenship.|
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RELEASE IN PART

|B5,B6 * L

From: Busby, Scott W
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 4:44 PM
. To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Baer, Daniel B; Graze, Deborah E
Subject: " RE: B6
Categories: Working
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
B5
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 4:09 PM
To: Busby, Scott W
Cc: Baer, Daniel B; Graze, Deborah E '
Subject: Fw! ] B6
BS5
From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 03:45 PM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
Scott W ) :
Cc: Short, Julie A; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL)
Subject: RE:| B6
B5
Best, REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Sarah Reviewer
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Sarah Johnston-Gardner j
Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)

Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)

202-647-0293

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. -

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 3:17 PM

To: Posner, Michael H; Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short,JulleA Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

o BS
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

r B5
From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 02:28 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer,.Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:| ] B6
[ | B5
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SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn

Sent: Friday, May, 27, 2011 11:53 AM

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner. Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:| ! :

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM
" To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W -
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn
Subject: RE; |

A/S Posner,

v/r
Winston

SBU =
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM
*To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W ‘

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;

-\ -
* UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904958 Date: 12/30/2015
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

Cc: Rademacher, Paul R CR-
Subject: | ] ,

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

“We have not received any further information from the State Department, unfortunately. As I
mentioned in February, we tried to meetwith Assistant Secretary Michael Posner of the Bureau of
Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was better to meet with consular
services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a -
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

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904959 Date: 12/30/2015

StateDept008750

B6

BS

B6



C05904959-IED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904959 Date: 12/30/2015

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet, expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show “Kelime
Oyunu” (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

Eor:the’ surnmenbetweenzkugh‘school and umverszty, <Furkan- h.ad been planmng 10go-t0-the:WUnited States. - He
ax}ted to \ns;t Troy;New York where ’he was born and hved _3tahe first years of> Ins hfe and ‘he Wantéd' to spend
time- W1th reIanves m1Ch1cago, wherc he' was gomg fos take language ‘classes to” 1mprove - his” Engllsh - Which" he

.....

aIready,spoke qmte ‘well SFurkan ' had: onIyJ_U’S ”mtlzcnshm_'l

However wne}day;ehe‘rcame hgme*and +he rhad*seen a~b111board advertlsmg a: humamtanan boat* gomg to
hGaza He had*, seenuplc;;&lreslof cluldrcn in Gaza who wcrc;kﬂled’“by the bombardmcnt, and he spoke;of the:
chlldren there w1thout cnough to: eat He asked our perrmsswn to g0 wHe explamed that he could always 2010
lhe‘Umted States’to studyéEngllsh, b;mhe couldnt always go to;.Gaza ‘to take aid- lto those in- need Furkan:

anted 10 Jtake gxﬂs and glve}ﬂlem 10, chlldren An Gaza mt&fhls own hands He wanted to breathc the same‘anj
PELS meseachlldremand express ms compasswn and sohdarlty “His‘mother and‘I didn’f feel-that we could- say,no,
16 him'~{g-hiS honorable request. sWe wers proud-of Furkan, ﬂ

\We-have since: hgq;c}-&hat*kaan was' well-known-on | the Mavi: Marmara because he was. eager to. help and.was

always'}_oﬂ'ennggasmstancc to r'othe;%asqgengers,»as was h]S J}nattrre‘» Whenehehmpters; approached ‘the. Sth,I
u'rkan went‘to‘the -top ‘deck with h;s cameralto ‘record; what “was’ happenmg "ﬁMy son was shot ﬁvc tlmes.by IDFI

soldlers aﬁcr;hc waéeiﬁfﬁélly shot and wounded wc undcrstand that he" was"dragged"by IDF $oldiers-to the

Trtae. w0 el

s:de'*where he'was s thenishot in the: face at'close. range. aﬂld kllled Furkan:was: ] 8iyears: oldl

I
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(R T T L It A

B5,B6
From: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL)
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 12:05 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B;

Rademacher, Paul R

Subject: . Re;|

|

From: Magarian, Sharyn -
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 11:52 AM

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R

Subject: RE;|

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
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:09 AM .
To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
" Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathieen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn o
Subject: FW:| - B6

Please advise --

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto: Tim_Rieser@appro.senate.gov]
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 9:08 AM

To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Rademacher, Paul R
Subject:| [ B6

Mike, per-my earlier email about the killing of Furkan Dogan, a U.S. citizen on board the flotilla to Gaza
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
. Democracy, Human Rights and Labor at that time, but his office said it was better to meet with consular
- services at that point. We tried to meet with his office again this visit, but despite repeated requests,
including our initial letter (seeking a meeting and pointing out the omission in the Human Rights
Country Report on Israel), a follow up email, and 3-4 calls to his office, we never received a
response. There has been some further communication with the embassy in Ankara requesting that they
seck the return of Furkan’s property from Israel, including video evidence, but to no avail.”

Also, here is a description of Furkan from CCR:

Furkan Dogan graduated from high school last year, having excelled in his science studies. He passed the
university entrance examination, which in Turkey is an. honor reserved for a small percentage of high school
students. Furkan planned to go to medical school. He wanted to be a doctor - he always wanted to help

- people. Furkan was kind and generous. Whenever his grandparents gave him pocket change, Furkan would
give it to people who didn't have enough to eat.

Furkan was very fine, polite, helpful, and generous. He disliked violence his whole life. He stood by just and
modest but resisted unfairmess. He was very clean and neat. He never liked violence and was never
impolite. He couldn’t stand by injustice, but took the side of the oppressed and victims of violence.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904961 Date: 12/30/2015
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He used to play soccer. He was a big fan of the soccer team Galatasaray, and was also a supporter of our city’s
soccer team, Kayseri Sports Club. Once he applied to an amateur soccer team for a “soccer player license,” but
he was rejected because of his foreign (American) nationality. He followed the NBA, atteided chess
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
Oyunu” (world puzzie) on Bloomberg TV, was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

lI;‘or the summer betweemhlgh school :and"un umvers1ty, Furkan had “been: planmng to-go. to, ‘the Umted States He
wanted to v131t Troy, New York;.where he was, bom and hved\the fust years :of h.lS llfe and he: wanted o) spend
tune w1th relatlves m Chlcago,—where he wasigomg 1o take - language classes to 1mpr0ve ‘his Enghsh ~which he
already_‘spoke qute_‘WEH Furkanhad; onlyLU Sz cltlzenshlp"']

' owevcr,-ﬁone day the, carnex homeﬂand her had seen R b;llboard advertlsmg..as humanitarian. boat going- to
h(_}azav‘;'He had seen~plcmres of ch:ldren m Gaza who were:kﬂled ;EY the~bombardment ‘and, hc Spoke of the
chlldren there-mthout enough to cat"-*He asked ou: penmssmn torgo ‘He. explamed that he could'always go to
’Umtedéstates tc studyJE‘.ng,hsh1 but he couldn’t always go to Gaza to take a1d 0. those;in need Furkan
wantedﬁo take g1ﬁs and gwe them to chlldg:n in’ Gaza.bwuh his.« kown hands nHe wanted to breatlwthe ‘same aui
as, these chlldren and*express hlS compasswn “and: sohdanty His Frother and 1 didn’t feel that WE; could, say
to;him . fo-his Honorable fequest. sWe were.proud of Furkan. |

ge have since" heard that Fi urkan waés* well-known on the’ Mav:_iMarmara ‘because’ he_ was eager "t0; help and vyais
ways ‘oﬂ'ermg assmtance to other&passengers as was’ his- -nature. . When. hchcopters Eﬁf)roachcd the shi '
IFquan went to .the top declc \w1th his 'camera _lto record what was happemng "My isonwas shot five: tunes by‘lD i
oldlers'i afteﬂ}; ~heqwas uutlaIly shot and woundcd we understalgd ‘that he was dragged?by IDF-soldiers to:the

. Side] Where.he was:theri'shot inithe face at closé range’and killed.. Furkan'was’l 8 years.old! '
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[RELEASE IN PART

[ 2

B5,B6

= = =
From: Magarian, Sharyn ~
Sent: Tuesday, June 07, 2011 7:49 PM
To: ) Posner, Michael H
Subject: = RE:

.4
From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 11:14 PM
To: Magarian, Sharyn
Subject: Re: Prof. Dogan - father of Furkan

| will respond in the morning (and copy you)
Thanks

From: Magarian, Sharyn
Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 11:04 PM
To: Posner, Michael H

mw: Fw:f I

Hi Mike,

Thanks. :

From: Short, Julie A

Sent: Thursday, June 02, 2011 01:2% PM

To: Posner, Michael H; Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby,
Scott W

Cc: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Damei B; Rademacher Paul R

Subject: RE: ]

Sharyn,

Thanks, :

Julie REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

-~ From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 2:41 PM
To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Magarian, Sharyn; Lieberman; Jessica D (DRL), Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: Re:| I
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
Subject: RE: |

SBU '
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Magarian, Sharyn

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 11:53 AM

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL), Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W
Oc:Simt,JuheA Johnston-Gardner, SarahR(DRL), Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R
Subject: RE:| i

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Friday, May 27, 2011 10:38 AM

To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hutchings, Jill; Busby, Scott W :

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnstm-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathieen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher, Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn - )

Subject: RE: |

A/S Posner,

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904962 Date: 12/30/2015
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

Cc: Short, Julie A; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Rademacher Paul R;
Magarian, Sharyn

Subject: FW: | |

Please advise --

——

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

“We have not received any further information from the State Department, unfortunately, As]I
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
Furkan Dogan graduated from high school last year, ha\}ing excelled in his science studies. He passed the

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

Furkan was very good at mathematics, and he loved reading and searching on the internet; expanding his
knowledge. He used to watch TV quiz shows and solve them very quickly. The TV quiz show “Kelime
Oyunu” (world puzzle) on Bloomberg TV was his favorite show. He was planning to attend this show.

’For the summer between high school.and university, Furkan had been planmng 10 go to the United States. He
K;med to-visit Troy; New York, where he was born and lived the ﬁrst years of his life, and he wanted to: Spend

e with relatives in Chicago, where he was going to take: lanng_l_age classes.fo improve his’ Engl:sh which he
hiready spoke quité well. Furkan had only).S, citizenship. |

However, one day he came *home and he "had seen a blllboard advertising a humanitarian “boat gomgsto‘
Gaza. He had seen pictures of children in Gaza ‘who. .were kl!]ed by the - bombardment, and he. spokceof the
Children there without enough fo eat. He asked’ our permwsmn to-go. .He explamed that he could  always go tcg

e Umted’States ‘to study English,-but.he couidn’t always. go to Gaza to take aid to, those in m:ed‘ 1-"mkanl
Fvantedtotakeglﬂsandgzvethemtochﬂdreanazamthhxsownhands Hewantedtobreathcthesamcm
as these children and express his. compassion-and solidarity. His mother and-] didn’ t feel that.we could say no
1o him — to his honorable request. We were proud of Furkan_f

We have since heard that Furkan was well-known on the Mavi Marmara because he was eager to help and was
alwaYS offenng assistance to othér passengers, as ‘was l'us nature. . When hehcopters approached the - shq:vl
!Furkan went to-the top deck. w;th ‘his camera to record ‘what was happcmng My 'son was shot fivétimes' by IDF
soldJers after he was 1mt1ally shot and wounded, we understand that- he: was draggeﬂ bx IDF soldiers to the
Side, where he was then shot in the face at close range and killed- Furkan was 18 yéars old!

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904962 Date: 12/30/2015
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Ee
From: : . Posner, Michael H
Sent: Monday, June 13, 2011 4:04 PM
To: Short, Julie A
. : X |
Subject: Fw: Following up ’REITEASE RPERTISS

-—-- Original Message -—--

From: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations) [mailto:

Sent: Sunday, June 12, 2011 02:58 PM
To: Posner, Michael H
Subject: Re: Following up

Ok sounds good thanks.

Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld

--—- Original Message -----

From: Posner, Michael H [mailto:PosnerMH@state.gov]
Sent: Sunday, June 12, 2011 02:41 PM

To: Rieser, Tim (Appropriations)

Subject: Following up

Tim

I am following up belatedly to your note about the Dogan case. | have been pressing for more information and gotten
some preliminary responses, but don't feel | yet have what | need to fully respond to you. | am on my way to Bahrain
now, but have asked peopie in my office to follow up this week to get more. | will get back to you as soon as | get back -

( probably early next week)
Sorry for the delay but | want to get this right.

1 lalso am eager to follow up with you on a few unrealted matters. | WIII reach out to you as soon as | get back.

Hope you are doing well.

Mike

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05804965 Date: '12!30[2015
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RELEASE IN PART

B5,NR ;
== - - S =
From: Short, Julie A h
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2011 8:15 PM
To: N Posner, Michael H
Subject: : List of To Dos Friday
To dos Friday, June 17"
1 &
NR
|
o Call Tim Rieser (Julie to facilitate call)| NR
( E— S R 11 ] BS
NR

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
IReviewer .

Schedule tomorrow

I UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904967 Date: 12/30/2015
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NR
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From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Monday, July 11, 2011 12:28 PM

To: Posner, Michael H; Short, Julie A RELEASE IN
Ce: Busby, Scott W; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL) PPART BS, N
Subject: 1pm meeting with Arthur Lenk today

Categories: Working

Classification: . UNCLASSIFIED

_Hi A/S Posner,

We will be meeting with Arthur Lenk from the Israeli MFA today at 1pm. It is a fast minute request from the Israeli

Embassy.| | BS
| | The cleared and repeated USG TP on this: “The U.S. urges
you to continue work with Turkey to improve relations which have been strained since the flotilla event last year. The
Israeli-Turkey relationship is important for security and regional stability.” | ] B5
‘and[ —1

| | . NR
Jack Doutrich, one of the desk officers from NEA/IPA will join this meeting.

Best, B

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-0293

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

I:EVlEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
eviewer «
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From: Weidner, Rebecca L -
Sent: - Tuesday, September 06, 2011 7:01 AM RELEASE IN PART NR,B6
To: DRL-Users-DL
. Subject: Fw: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011 .
; : \TN-RESPONSNE PORTIONS
SMARTCategory: Working REDACTED -
Lots today.‘ ]
From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 06:46 AM
To: PAO Group

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011

From; darby holladay |m§[]mi

Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 06:

To: Holladay, Darby G (PACE)

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011

Good Moming —

Today's DPB will begin at 12:30pm. Guidance collection will begin promptly at 11am and conclude at Noon in
the 6th Floor PA Conference Room. ’

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA-PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
§ DPB S
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
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing. .

Media Note - A/S Brimmer to Discuss US Priorities at the UN

Special Briefings and Transcripts:

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905003 Date: 12/30/2015
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I ' NR

EUROPE
EUR/NEA/TURKEY/ISRAEL: Anything new we wish to say regarding Turkey and Israel? Do we believe
Erdogan's latest comments today on the flotilla are helpful? ‘

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905003 Date: 12/30/2015 E
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MISCELLANEOUS
No Taskings

DGH
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From: } Weidner, Rebecca L —_— .
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 9:14 AM RELEASE IN PART NR,B6
To: DRL-Users-DL
Subject: . PW: FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011
Categories: ' Working
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS |
) : REDACTED
2 new in EAP, 1 new in NEA :
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto! )

Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 9:1TAM
To: PAO Group

‘Subject: FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011 85

From: darby holiaday [mailto |
Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 09:10 AM

To: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) J
Subject: FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011

Good Morning ~

Today's DPB will begin at 12:30pm. Guidance collection will begin promptly at 11am and conclude at Noon in
the 6th Floor PA Conference Room.-

FINAL Tasking List for Tuesday, Sept 6, 2011
Unclassrf' ed E-mail: PA PO Group Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

Daily Schedule
DPB
Tasking list prepared by Darby G. Holladay (7:4979) (or in the PA/FO at 7-9606 aftcr 11 am.)

Pending Releases (Please Notify Us ASAP)
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CO05905004ED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905004 Date: 12/30/2015

NOTE: Please notify us as early in the moming as possible of statements, media notes and fact sheets so we can
work them into our news flow. Please aim to have all statements, fact sheets and media notes completely
cleared and ready for the Daily Press Briefing.
Media Note - [

-

Special Briefings and Transcripts:

J

EUROPE
EUR/NEA/TURKEY/ISRAEL: Anything new we wish to say regarding Turkey and Israel? Do we believe
Erdogan's latest comments today on the flotilla are helpful?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905004 Date: 12/30/2015
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From: Weidner, Rebecca L

Sent: Friday, September 09, 2011 6:24 AM IRELEASE IN PART NR,B§|

To: DRL-Users-DL

Subject: Fw: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Sept 9, 2011
NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

Happy Friday! %

DRL has the pen on China.

Sudan, Cuba, NEA are interesting.

From: Holladay, Darby G (PACE) [mailto] |

Sent: Friday, September 09, 2011 06:11 AM ;

To: PAOC Group ¢

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Sept 9, 2011 ’ B6

From: darby holladay [mailto: _

Sent: Friday, September 09, ZUIL Ub:11 AM
To: Holladay, Darby G (PACE)
Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Sept 9, 2011

Good Morning -

(

Today's DPB will begin at 12:30 pm. Guidance collection will begin promptly at 11:00am and conclude at
Noon in the 6th Floor PA Conference Room.

Thanks,

DRAFT Tasking List for Friday, Sept 9, 2011
Unclassified E-mail: PA PO Group’ Classified E-mail: PAPress_Officers

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

EUROPE ) ‘
EUR/TURKEY: What is our reaction to Erdogan's statement that the Turkish Navy will escort the next Gaza
Flotilla? Is this more Erdogan rhetoric, or is this a new policy? Do we believe that this step would be helpful?
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RELEASE IN PART| B

= BS5,NR

From: Busby, Scott W

Sent: Saturday, June 16, 2012 3:31 PM

To: Mann, Winston E (DRL); Short, Julie A; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Posner, Michael H

Cc: ' Pfleger, Gregory W; Baer, Daniel B; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Kincannon, John; Hickey,
’ Matthew B

Subject: Re: Time to talk

Thanks, Winston.

From: Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Sent: Saturday, June 16, 2012 03:11 PM

To: Short, Julie A; Busby, Scott W; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL), Posner, Michael H
Cc: Pfleger, Gregory W; Baer, Daniel B; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Kincannon, John; Hickey, Matthew B
Subject: RE: Time to talk

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior |
Reviewer
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RELEASE IN FULL

United States Department of State

Washington, D.C. 20520

INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTED)

CONFIDENTIAL ‘August 18, 2011
DECL: 08/17/2021

MEMORANDUM TO: The Office of the Secretary
The Office of Deputy Secretary Burns
The Office of Deputy Secretary Nides
The Director of U.S. Foreign Assistance
All Under Secretaries

. The Counselor

All Assistant Secretaries
L —Harold H. Koh
S/CPR — Capricia P. Marshall
S/P — Jacob J. Sullivan :
All Special Representatives and Special Envoys

SUBJECT: Briefing Materials for the President’s Trip to
New York for UNGA, September 2011

IO BUREAU COORDINATOR: Dan Cintron, Ext. 7-0047

S/ES-S COORDINATORS: Angela Pan, Ext. 7-8542
Nathan Macklin, Ext. 7-8879

This memorandum assigns responsibilities for the preparation of briefing materials
for the President’s trip to New York for the General Debate of the United Nations
General Assembly (UNGA), September 19 — 21, 2011. '

Unless otherwise noted;-all materials should be single-spaced using Courier New
12-point font and fully cleared through the interagency process, as appropriate.
Bureaus that wish to suggest additions or changes to this tasker should contact the
10 Coordinator immediately.

. ‘ REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
DEADLINES o Reviewer

Unless otherwise indicated, all materials are due, fully cleared, to IO
Coordinator Dan Cintron (Rm. 6334), no later than COB, Wednesday, August

CONFIDENTIAL
Classified by: Stephen D. Mull, Executive Secretary
E.O. 13526, Reason: 1.4 (d)
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CONFIDENTIAL
W,
24, and are due to the S/ES-S Coordinators no later than COB Thursday,

_August 25. We strongly encourage draﬁers to provide papers prlor to the
deadlines, if possible.

L

SECRETARY-PRESIDENT MEMORANDUM

I. BACKGROUND PAPERS

' CONFIDENTIAL

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904863 Date: 12/30/2015
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CONFIDENTIAL
23
3.
4,
5. |, ]
6. | UN.Israel. and the Palestinians. including: | 10 [ USUN/W.
'« UN response to the Gaza flotilla incident ] | S/SEMEP

7

CONFIDENTIAL
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CONFIDENTIAL
-4-

NR

III. BUILDING BLOCKS FOR REMARKS

Building Blocks should be in bullet format, double spaced, and should include
anecdotes and quotations. Please also attach any relevant background sources that
provide context, e.g., previous speeches by senior administration officials, recent
articles, etc. People whom the President should acknowledge at the events also

. should be identified.

All building blocks should be cleared by D(B), D(N), P, S/P, PA, R, the clearers
noted below, others as appropriate, and interagency clearers as needed.

IV. SPECIFIC EVENT PAPERS

Papers for the President’s specific events should include the purpose of the event
and U.S. objectives, a scenario of the event’s agenda including a list of participants
and an indication whether the event will be open or closed to press, background
information on substantive issues, talking points (if building blocks have not been
tasked in item III), and suggested press points for any associated press events. All

CONFIDENTIAL
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CONFIDENTIAL
i = :
specific event papers should be cleared by D(B), D (N), P, S/P, PA, R, and
others as appropriate, as well as-interagency clearers as needed.

e

Papers for the First Lady’s specific events should include

CONFIDENTIAL
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CONFIDENTIAL
6. ;
V. CLEARANCES AND DOCUMENT PREPARATION

Clearance requests should be directed to the IO Coordinator, not to S/ES-S.
Drafters and bureau staffers share responsibility for ensuring that papers are
properly formatted, edited, spell checked, and cleared before submission to
the 10 and S/ES-S coordinators. Each document must be accompanied by a
separate, labeled clearance page noting the drafter’s full name and telephone
number and listing all clearing offices and names. Any papers that mention State
operating funds require RM clearance, and all papers that mention forelgn
assistance require F clearance.

V1. DELIVERY TO S/ES-S ) L
All documents should be delivered via e-mail to the IO Coordinator according to
the deadlines in this tasker. The 10 Coordinator should then submit a final version

via.e-mail to “Paper-SES Line Trip” on the classified system according to the
deadlines noted in this tasker.

Thank you for your assistance in this pl‘O]eCt and your special attention to the
deadlmes

Stephen D. Mull
Executive Secretary

CONFIDENTIAL
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I\DOCS\Tasker-POTUS\201 I\UNGA\POTUS UNGA tasker 20110817.doc

Drafted: S/ES-S: Angela Pan, ext. 7-8542

Cleared:  S/ES-S:  MLibby
IO/UNP: DCintron
S/ES: TAllegra
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RELEADE |
SECRET/NOFORN
DECL: 09/02/2020 INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS |
2 REDACTED ]
Proposed Bilateral Events
NR
Approve Disapprove 1 TBD

NR

SECRET/NOFORN EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, |

ior Reviewer, . |

Classified by: IO Assistant Secretary Gerald C. Anucrson, Acting — =
E.O. 13526, Reasons: 1.4 (b) and (d)
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SECRET/NOFORN
iy

NR

NEA
7. (C) Meeting with Israeli Defense Minister Ehud Barak: Minister Barak has
requested a meeting with you either the evening of September 20 or September 21
in New York, where he will be attending the Clinton Global Initiative Conference.
Alternatively, Barak will be in Washington September 19. Your meeting with

Barak is an opportunity to discuss|
the Gaza flotilla ships, |

Approve Disapprove TBD

SECRET/NOFORN
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Approve Disapprove TBD
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" RELEASE IN PART
11.4(B),B1,1.4(D),NR |

S —

From: % Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: ' Wednesday, March 09, 2011 4:56 PM

To: Posner, Michael H; Cassidy, Joseph P; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL);
Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Galindo, David R; Hickey, Matthew B

Cc Short, Julie A

Subject: FW: IO A/S Brimmer Consults with Israeli MFA on Regional and UNSC Issues

Categories: Working

Classification: ) UNCLASSIFIED//NOFORN -

EmbedAttach: . StateSeal gif

SensitivityCode: Sensitive

Below is the cable summarizing A/S Brimmer’s recent trip to Israel. It covers some of our equities particularly the HRC,
Goldstone follow-up, flotilla, and Durban.

Best, ; .
Sarah

Sensitive
This email is UNCLASSIFIED/NOFORN.

s,

From: SMART Core
Sent: = Wednesday, March 09, 2011 09:18:27
To: Levin, Jan X

JERUSALEM-SMARTS; USUN, SMARTS; GENEVA, SMARTS; TELAVIV-SMARTS; PMAT
(Pol-Mil Action Team)

Subject: IO A/S Brimmer Consults with Israeli MFA on Regional and UNSC Issues
SECRET

Ce:

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior |

Reviewer J
MRN: 11 TEL AVIV 285
Date/DTG: Mar 09, 2011/ 090717Z MAR 11
From: AMEMBASSY TEL AVIV
Action: WASHDC, SECSTATE rROUTINE
E.O.: 13526
TAGS: ) PREL, PGOV, UNSC, PHUM, KPAL, KNNP, IS .

Subject: IO A/S Brimmer Consults with israeli MFA on Regional and UNSC Issues

1. (C) Summary: IO Assistant Secretary Esther Brimmer conducted a day-
1

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05904849 Date: 12/30/2015
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long consultation on UN and Multilateral Affairs with Israeli MFA
officials in Jerusalem on March 1, 2011. A wide range of issues were
covered:

| the Mavi Marmara flotilla.

.2. (SBU) Participants: Israeli participants were MFA .Director General
Raphael Barak, UN and International Organizations Amb. Daniel Carmon, DDG
for North America Affairs Barukh Bina and action officer Gershon Kedar,
Director for UN Political Affairs Meirav Eilon-Shahar, Director for
International Organizations Tibor Shalev-Shlosser, Director for Human
Rights and Global Issues Omer Caspi and his Deputy Nina Ben-Ami, Director
for Non-Proliferation of Non-Conventional Weapons Oren Anolik, Arthur Lenk
and Shira Meir of the International Law Department, Major Gil Limon of the
IDF International Law Department, Alon Ushpiz, appointed as Israeli
Ambassador to New Delhi, and Embassy of Israel in Washington Counselor for
Political Affairs Eliav Benjamin. U.S. participants were A/S Brimmer,
Embassy Tel Aviv Charge d’Affaires Tom Goldberger, IO Senior Advisor
Jonathan Katz, IO/MPR Office Director Andrew Morrison, and Jan Levin,
Embassy Tel Aviv Deputy PolCouns.

UN Security Council

2
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11. (C) Gaza Access: r_—__ 1

NR

[ [ B ’ 1.4(B)
1.4(D)
B1

NR

| .| ' B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

" Human Rights

NR

1
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r
|
1

Mavi Marmara and Operation Cast Lead

B1

NR

1.4(B)
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20. (SBU) Assistant Secretary Brimmer cleared this cable.

{

Signature: " Cunningham :
Classified By: - Robert Silverman, Political Counselor
Political section, U.S. Embassy Tel Aviv
Dept of State ’
Reason: 14 (b), (d) *
Declassify on: 2021/03/09
Drafted By: - TEL AVIV:Levin, Jan X
Cleared By: Brimmer, Esther D. !
Approved By: POL:Silverman, Robert J
Released By: TEL AVIV:Levin, Jan X
Info: JERUSALEM, AMCONSUL RouUTINE; USUN NEW YORK, USMISSION ROUTINE;
GENEVA, USMISSION ROUTINE :
Attachments: Metadata.dat
Action Post:

Dissemination Rule: Released Copy )

SECRET

9
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HRC Resolutions Voting Update - final
Friday, October 1, 2010.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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L.33 - Follow up to Fact Finding Mission (Flotilla) - resolution passed
US called vote. 30Y, IN (U.8.), 15A
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RELEASE IN FULL

R

From: Bass, Warren

Sent: Monday, August 02, 2010 $:47 AM

To: *Shapiro, Daniel B.'; '‘Kumar, Prem G.’; ‘Hajjar, Hagar H."; ‘Power, Samantha J."; Busby,

. Scott W; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Walles, Jacob; Tsou, Leslie M; Doutrich, Jack T; Goldberger,

Thomas H; Posner, Michael H; Cassidy, Joseph P; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL);
Nossel, Suzanne F; Andris, Matthew R; Honigstein, Michael D; Koh, Harold Hongju;
Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Gorove, Katherine M

Cc Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Kernblau,
Mark (USUN); Ahmed, Salman (USUN); Barks-Ruggles, Erica J

Subject: Ban announces Panel of Inquiry on fiotilla incident

Categories: Working

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

Good news out of Ban's office this morning. (New York, take a bow.)
Warren

—-— Original Message —

From: Jane Gaffney <gaffn un.org>

Sent: Mon Aug 02 09:36:40 2010

Subject: UN Secretary-General Ban Ki-moon on Panel of Inquiry on flotilla incident of 31 May 2010

Secretary-General's statement on the establishment of the Panel of Inquiry on the flotilla incident of 31 May 2010

For the past two months, | have engaged in intensive consultation with the leaders of Israel and Turkey on the setting-up
of a Panel of Inquiry on the flotilla incident of 31 May. Today | am very pleased to announce the launch of the Panel. This
isan unprecedented development.

| thank the leaders of the two countries with whom | have engaged in last minute consultations over the weekend, for
their spirit of compromise and forward looking cooperation.

The Panel will be led by eminent personalities: former Prime Minister of New Zealand, Mr. Geoffrey Palmer as Chair and
the outgoing President of Colombia, Mr. Alvaro Uribe as Vice-Chair. The Panel will have two additional members, one
each from Israel and Turkey. It will begin its work on 10 August and submit the first progress report by mid September.

| hope the Panel will fulfil its mandate based on the Presidential Statement of the Security Council and with the fullest
cooperation of the relevant national authorities of the two countries. It will also give me recommendations for the
prevention of similar incidents in the future. | also hope that today's agreement will impact positively on the
relationship between Turkey and Israel as well as the overall situation in the Middle East.

New York, 2 August 2010 REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer

This email is UNCLASSIFIED
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_ Outlook:

Priority:
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Status:
Outlook:

Goals:
Status:

Outlook:

Priority:

Goals:

Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905361 Date: 12/31/2015

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

NR

Israel
Minimize fallout for|

Status:

Outlook:

Flotilla Fact Finding Mission (FFM)

The Flotilla FFM report is delayed until 9/29.
Must be prepared for resolutions extending the Flotilla FFM’s mandate,

Priority:
Goals:
of the OHCHR.

Status:
for defeat of th
Outlook:

utiook: |

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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MELCHAOC 1IN FULL)

- e n
From: Graze, Deborah E + INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
Sent: ~ Saturday, December 11, 2010 3:55 PM REDACTED

To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Hutchings, Jill; Posner, Michael H; Austrian, Courtney E

Subject: Re:statement Overnight Brief 12/11/--Iran stoning case

[ ]

——Original Message-——

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

To: Hutchings, Jill

To: Graze, Deborah E

To: Posner, Michael H

To: Austrian, Courtney E

Subject: Fw: Overnight Brief 12/11/—iran stoning case
Sent: Dec 11, 2010 8:28 AM

Overnight Brief
Saturday, December 11, 2010
0530 EST

WIKI| FAKS UIPDATE

ISRAEL OFFERS COMPENSAT!ON FOR TURKISH DEATHS

{SBU) Israeli Prime Minister Netanyahu proposed paying $100,000 to each family of the nine Turkish citizens killed
during the raid on a Gaza-bound aid flotilla in May, in exchange for Turkish protection against lawsuits, media report.
Embassy Ankara comments while promising, the proposal falls short of Turkey’s demand for a formal apology. Embassy
Tel Aviv adds Israel is treading carefully to avoid being perceived as acquiescing to Turkish demands. (Ops/Embassy
Ankara e-mail, Ops/Embassy Tel Aviv telcon, Al Jazeera)

IRAN AIRS “CONFESSION" FROM WOMAN FACING STONING

i:EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2010 5:46 PM

To: DRL-Radar

Cc: DRL-MLGA-M; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hawkins, Jeffrey; Hutchings, Jill
Subject: MLGA Radar - October 13, 2010

SBU: Israel: B'tselem Executive Director Jessica Montell Testifies Before the Turkel Commission and Meets with Emb.
Tel Aviv on the HRC Flotilla FFM report: In her testimony before the Turkel Commissian, she criticized Israel's policies
towards Gaza as a "siege” and “collective punishment.” She challenged the Israeli security rationale for.the naval
blockade. One of the judges responded, the only thing that Gazans “export to us are rockets.” She also stated that she
wished a commission like Turkel had been created to investigate Cast Lead. Turkel stated that “the people of Gaza
brought this upon themselves,” challenged the accuracy of B’tselem’s reports, and their lack of criticism of Hamas. She
countered stating that “Israelis should be talking about our moral responsibility as Israelis.” Jessica told Emb. Tel Aviv
that she was disturbed that the Commission members had made up their minds before speaking to her, and exhibited
the same old rhetoric. Jessica acknowledged to Emb. Tel Aviv that the legal arguments of the HRC Flotilla FFM report
were extremely poor, She considered the report “intellectually lazy,” and the FFM called Gaza “occupied,” which was a
very complex conclusion. Under that logic, if Gaza were occupied, then it was indeed Israel’s responsibility to control
everything coming in and out. It was unreasonable for the report to criticize both the “occupation” and the naval
blockade. (MLGA —S Johnston-Gardner.)

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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o —
Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2010 2:52 PM =
To: Posner, Michael H
Subject: Re: Draft points for A/S Gordon- Burn a Koran Day

As of this moment - Looks like Flotilla will go to vote tomorrow- because EU - Turkish negotiations at an impasse. EU will
abstain. Tomaschat also tomormrow.

From: Posner, Michael H
To: Donahoe, Eileen C
Sent: Tue Sep 28 14:40:19 2010

INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTED)

Subject: RE: Draft points for A/S Gordon- Burn a Koran Day

Thanks — please keep me in the loop on this and the various middle east resolutions

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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United States Department of State

’NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS Washington, D.C. 20520
aw REDACTED
SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED July 16, 2010

INFORMATION MEMO FOR DRL ASSISTANT SECRETARY POSNER,
DASes, AND OFFICE DIRECTORS

' FROM:  DRL/MLGA — Joseph P. Cassidy

” SUBJECT: Implications for DRL of Key Actions at the U.N. Human Rights
Council June Session

Below is a summary of the most important resolutions and actions adopted
at the June session of the U.N. Human Rights Council (HRC) and their
implications for DRL.

Resolutions/Actions with Significant Impact

¢ Israel flotilla: The HRC voted to establish an independent fact finding mission
(the “Mission™) to look into “violations of international law... resulting from
the Israeli attacks on the flotilla of ships carrying humanitarian assistance.” The
U.S. voted no and delivered an Explanation of Vote. At this point, it appears
that the mission will consist of Sir Desmond Lorenz de Silva, a prominent
British lawyer and former United Nations Chief War Crimes Prosecutor in

_ Sierra Leone, Mary Shanthi Dairiam, a Malaysian member of the CEDAW

Committee from 2005-2008 and a member of the UNDP Gender Equality Task
Force, as well as a yet-to-be-named chair. High Commissioner Pillay has
removed South African lawyer Ahmed Motola as coordinator of the mission
and replaced him with Simon Walker, who was described as a “straight arrow”
by an OHCHR contact. The Mission’s report is due at the September session.
The GOI has not decided whether to engage with the HRC panel.

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Reviewer
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Approved: DRL Deputy Assistant Secretary Kathleen Fitzpatrick
Drafted: = DRL/MLGA — Marian D. Messing, ext. 7-4613

P:\MLGA\United Nations\HRC\2010\June 14th Session\071610 Looking forward
on HRC resolutions.docx

Cleared: ; .

DRL/MLGA: MYetken ok

I0/HR: PKruchoski, MAndris, and CNeville ok

L/HRR: EAswad ok
* DRL/MLGA: LSicade ok
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Galindo, David R

?‘”fda% October 04, 2010 3:00 PMyo N RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTED|

DRL-Radar; DRL-MLGA-M

Final Outcome of HRC15  |REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

I am sending this to U/S Otero per her request to DRL PDAS Deborah Graze at last Wednesday’s G family meeting.

NR

Other Voting Outcomes
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e Follow up to Fact Finding Mission {Flotilla] = resolution passed. U.S. called vote. 30Y, IN {U.5.), 15A
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Explanation of U.S. Vote on Human Rights Council Resolution Related
to the Report of the Fact-Finding Mission pursuant to Resolution 14/1
UN Human Rights Council, 15" Session
Geneva, September 29, 2010

RELEASE IN FULL

Thank you, Mr. President.

As we consider this item wé are mindful of our deep regret for the
loss of life and injuries suffered amgmg those involved in the incident
aboard the Gaza-bound ships 1n late May of this year. In June, we noted
the importance of a credible, impartial, and transparent investigation into
these tragic events. We continue to hold that view and believe we must
resist the tendency to reach conclusions without the opportunity for a
full examination of the facts and perspe(;tives from all sides. We
commend the Secretary General’s constructive initiative in convening a
panel that will recei;ufe and review the results of Israel and Turkey’s

- investigations, and we welcome the spirit of cooperation that it

represents. We continue to regard this_ﬁanel as the primary method for
the iﬁtemationa] community to review the incident. We again express

our appreciation to the Secretary General for his efforts to establish this

pariel, and to the governments of Turkey and Israel for their constructive

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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participation. We note that the Fact-Finding Mission Report referred to
these ongoing processes, and did not recommend further UN action.

The United States remains deeply concerned by the suffering of
civilians in Gaza. We continue to believe the situation in Gaza is
unsustainable and is not in the interest of any of those concerned. As we
have pointed out in the ;-)ast, mechanisms are in place for the tranéfer of
humanitarian assistance to Gaza. These mechanisms should be the ones
used for the benefit of all those in Gaza. We commend recent steps
taken to expand access to goods in Gaza and will continue to engage the
Israelis on a daily basis to expand the scope and type of goods allowed
into Gaza to address the full range of the population’s humanitarian and
recovery needs. We will continue to work closely with_ the Government
of Israel and the Palestinian Authority, along with international NGOs
and the UN, to provide adequate access.for humanitarian goods,
including reconstruction ina?terials, through the border crossings, whiic
bearing in mind the Government of Israel’s legitimate security -

concerns.
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This incident underscores the needs to move ahead quickly with
f B i
negotiations that can lead to a comprehensive Arab-Israeli peace. Direct
talks between Israelis and Palestinians have been resumed, and all

parties should help create an environment conducive to progress in these

talks. We should all be working to advance the cause of peace.

The United States was opposed to Resolution 14/1, which handed
this Fact-Finding Mission a flawed mandafe———something the Mission
itself acknowiedged in its report. We also oppdse the current
resolution’s recommendation that the General Assembly consider the

Fact-Finding Mission Report.

For all these reasons, we have voted against the resolution.
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Cleared: :

DRL DAS Thomas Melia OK
10 DAS Suzanne Nossel OK
NEA/FO: J Walles OK
SEMEP: M Rudman OK
EUR/FO: T Kaidanow OK
DRL/MLGA: L Sicade OK
DRL/NESCA: J Lieberman OK
IO/HR: J Lapenn OK
Geneva: M Khanna OK
NEA/IPA: P Sutphin OK
EUR/SE: J Baily OK

L/HRR: J Martin OK

L/PM: A Perina OK
L/AN: L Jacobson Info
USUN/W: W Bass OK
USUN/W: E Barks-Ruggles OK
USUN/NY: B Anderson OK
D(S): A Cook OK

P-10 Duty: OK

G: E Richardson Info

S/P: D Rand OK

NSC: S Busby Ok

NSC: P Kumar OK

PRM: S Quinn OK
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From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 1:59 PM .
To: Donahoe, Eileen C; Geneva HRC; IO-HR-DL; DRL-MLGA-M; Legal-HRR-DL; Griffiths,

Douglas M; Nossel, Suzanne F; Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL);
Johnstone, Kari A (DRL)

Cc: ) ~ Graze, Deborah E

Subject: . RE: HRC Flotilla FF members \

Eileen — thanks. Looping in Mike Posner and DRL team that works Middle East regional issues including Israel. -

-----QOriginal Message-----

From: Donahoe, Eileen C .

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 1:20 PM

To: Geneva HRC; |0-HR-DL; DRL-MLGA-M; Legal-HRR-DL; anFths Douglas M; Nossel Suzanne F; Fltzpatrlck Kathleen M
Subject: HRC Flotilla FF members

Will be announced Friday afternoon Geneva time _ ' L

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senlor
. Reviewer
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L — .
From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 5:39 PM
To: DRL-Radar )
" Ce: DRL-MLGA-M; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Hawkins, Jeffrey; Hutchings, Jill
Subject: MLGA Radar item - November 14,2010

(U) Flotilla Complaint Filed at the ICC: Today Turkish lawyers, on behalf of the families of the nine Turkish citizens killed

in the May 31 flotilla incident, submitted a complaint with the ICC Prosecutor to seek prosecutions of Israeli soldiers for

war crimes. The father of the Amcit killed (Furkan Dogan) was present at the ICC today and spoke in favor of

international accountability. Neither Turkey nor Israel are party to the Rome Statute, therefore the issue would have to

go before the UNSC. (The Turkish lawyers are arguing that the ship is under ICC jurisdiction because the ship flew the

flag of the Comoros Islands which is a party to the Rome Statute. We are working to confirm.) It is highly unlikely that

the Prosecutor would take the case due to the relatively small number of victims (the gravity issue} and

complementarity principles. Turkey has not yet voiced support for the ICC complaint, and may not due to their own, )
separate concerns about the ICC. MLGA cleared on press guidance and entered language reiterating the importance of !
domestic investigations and noting that Israel’s investigation is ongoing. (MLGA — S Johnston-Gardner, 7-2286)

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officen

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)

Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA) . '
202-647-2286 :
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EE

From: ~ Austrian, Courtney E

Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 8:17 AM

To: DRL-Users-DL

Subject: FW: DRAFT Tasking List for Wednesday, Sept. 22, 2010
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTED|

From: Schlachter, Mark M [mailto:SchlachtMM@state.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 8:11 AM

To: Holladay, Darby G; PAO Group

Subject: RE: DRAFT Tasking List for Wednesday, Sept. 22, 2010

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

From: Holladay, Darby G [mailto:HolladayDG2@state.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 7:09 AM

To: PAO Group

Subject: DRAFT Tasking List for Wednesday, Sept. 22, 2010
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StateDept008826

NR -



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905370 Date: 12/31/2015

NR

“NEA/TO/ISRAEL: What is our response to the UN Human Rights Council statement that the Israeli and
Palestinian inquiries into the Gaza flotilla incident are inadequate?

NR
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L _ —

From: . Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Sent: Friday, July 09, 2010 7:35 PM

To: Messing, Marian; Posner, Michael H

Cc: Graze, Deborah E; Baer, Daniel B; Cassidy, Joseph P; Stanfield, Emily; Johnston-Gardner,
Sarah R (DRL); O'Connor, Daniel B (DRL); Krill, Alan; Miller, Matthew G

Subject: RE: MLGA Radar- July 9

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

Also, we participated in a DVC with EU colleagues in Brussels sharing views on the upcoming HRC as the EU prepares for
its July 19 human rights committee meeting.

From: Messing, Marian

Sent: Friday, July 09, 2010 7:14 PM
To: Posner, Michael H

.Cc: Graze, Deborah E; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Cassidy, Joseph P; Stanfield, Emlly, Johnston-Gardner,
Sarah R (DRL); O'Connor, Daniel B (DRL); Krill, Alan; Miller, Matthew G

Subject: MLGA Radar- July 9

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

The MLGA Radar for today is attached and also copied below.

Assistant Secretary Posner,

Thanks,
Marian

(SBU) Human Rights Council Flotilla Committee: The OHCHR will publically announce
the details of the Committee on Monday, but Geneva has learned that the chair of the HRC
Flotilla Committee is Sir Desmond Lorenz de Silva. He is a prominent British lawyer and
former united Nations Chief War Crimes Prosecutor in Sierra Leone. The two other members are Dino
Kirtsiotis, a Zimbabwean lawyer and law professor with IHL experience involved in ICRC

" educational programs, and Mary Shanthi Dairiam, a Malaysian member of the CEDAW
Committee from 2005-2008. She is also a member of the UNDP Gender Equality Task
Force. The Committee must report its findings in the September HRC session. According to
the June HRC resolution, its mandate is “to investigate violations of international law, including
international humanitarian and human rights law, resulting from the Israeli attacks on the flotilla
of ships carrying humanitarian assistance.”
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United Nations Amremesnzg
Xy General Assembly Distr.; General
) 14 April 2010
Original: English

!REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior |
Reviewer |

Human Rights Council
Thirteenth session

Agenda item 7

Human rights situation in Palestine
and other occupied Arab territories

Resolution adopted by the Human Rights Council’

13/9
Follow-up to the report of the United Nations Independent
International Fact-Finding Mission on the Gaza Conflict

The Human Rights Council,

Recalling its relevant resolutions, including resolution S-9/1, adopted on 12 January
2009, and resolution S-12/1, adopted on 16 October 2010, in follow-up to the human rights
situation in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem, and the report of
the United Nations Independent Intemational Fact-Finding Mission on the Gaza Conflict,

Recalling also relevant General Assembly resolutions, including resolution 64/10,
adopted on 5 November 2009, and resolution 64/254, sdopwd on 26 February 2010, in
follow-up to the report of the Fact-Finding Mission,

Recalling further the relevant rules and principles of international law, including e
international humanitarian and human rights law, in particular the Geneva Convention
relative to the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of War, of 12 August 1949, which is
applicable to the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem,

Recalling the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and other international human
rights instruments, including the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the
International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights and the Convention on the
Rights of the Child,

Reaffirming the obligation of all parties to respect international humanitarian law
and international human rights law,

- Reiterating the importance of the safety and well-being of all civilians, and
reaffirming the obligation to ensure the protection of civilians in armed conflict,
1

The resolutions and decisions of the Human Rights Council will be contained in the report of the
Council on its thirteenth session (A/HRC/13/56), chap. 1.

GE.10-12838 . hm@
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A/HRC/RES/13/9

Stressing the nced to ensure accountability for all violations of international
humanitarian Jaw and international human rights law in order to prevent impunity, ensure
Jjustice, deter further violations and promote peace,

Convinced that achieving a just, lasting and comprehensive settlement of the
question of Palestine, the core of the Arab-Israeli conflict, is imperative for the attainment
of comprehensive, just and lasting peace and stahili}y in the Middle East,

1. Takes note of the report of the Secretary-General (A/64/651), submitted
pursuant to paragraph 6 of General Assembly resolution 64/10;

2, Welcomes the report of the Secretary-General on the status of implementation
of paragraph 3 of section B of Council resolution S-12/1 (A/HRC/13/55);

3.  Also welcomes the report of the United Nations High Commissioner for
Human Rights on the implementation of Council resolutions S$-9/1 and S-12/1
(A/HRC/13/54) and endorses the recommendations contained therein;

4, Also reiterates its call upon all concerned parties, including United Nations \
bodies, to ensure their implementation of the recommendations contained in the report of
the United Nations Independent International Fact-Finding Mission an the Gaza Conflict, in
accordance with their respective mandates;

5. Further reiterates the call by the General Assembly upon the Government of
Israel to conduct investigations that are independent, credible and in conformity with
international standards into the serious violations of international humanitarian and
international human rights law reported by the Fact-Finding Mission, with a view to
ensuring accountability and justice;

6. Reiterates the urging by the General Assembly for the conduct by the
Palestinian side of investigations that are independent, credible and in conformity with
international standards into the serious violations of international humanitarian and
international human rights law reported by the Fact-Finding Mission, with a view to
ensuring accountability and justice;

7. Welcomes the recommendation made by the General Assembly to the
Government of Switzerland, in its capacity as depositary of the Geneva Convention relative
to the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of War, to reconvene, as soon as possible, a
conference of High-Contracting Parties to the Fourth Geneva Convention on measures to
enforce the Convention in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem,
and to ensure its respect in accordance with common article 1, bearing in mind the
statement adopted on 15 July 1999 as well as the reconvening of the conference and the
declaration adopted on 5 December 2001, and recommends that the Government of
Switzerland reconvene the above-mentioned conference before the end of 2010;

8. Calls upon the High Commissioner to explore and determine the appropriate
modalities for the establishment of an escrow fund for the provision of reparations to the
Palestinians who suffered loss and damage as a resuit of unlawful acts attributable to the
State of Isracl during the military operations conducted from December 2008 to January
2009;

9. Decides, in the context of the follow-up to the report of the Independent
International Fact-Finding Mission, to establish a committee of independent experts in
international humanitarian and human rights laws to monitor and assess any domestic, legal
or other proceedings undertaken by both the Government of Israel and the Palestinian side,
in the light of General Assembly resolution 64/254, including the independence,
effectiveness, genuineness of these investigations and their conformity with international
standards; i
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10.  Requests the High Commissioner to appoint the members of the committee of
independent experts and to provide them with all the administrative, technical and logistic
assistance required to enable them to fulfil their mandate promptly and efficiently;

11.  Requests the Secretary-General to transmit all the information submitted by
the Government of Israel and the Palestinian side pursuant to paragraphs 2 and 3 of General
Assembly resolution 64/254 to the committee of independent experts;

12.  Requests the committee of independent experts to present its report to the
Council at its fificenth session; «

13.  Calls upon the General Assembly to promote an urgent discussion on the
future legality of the use of certain munitions as referred 10 in the report of the United
Nations Independent International Fact-Finding Mission on the Gaza conflict, drawing,
inter alia, on the expertise of the International Committee of the Red Cross;

14.  Reguests the Secretary-General to present a comprehensive report on the
progress made in the implementation of the recommendations of the Fact-Finding Mission
by all concerned partics, including United Nations bodies, in accordance with paragraph 3
of section B of resolution S-12/1, to the Council at its fifteenth session;

. 15.  Requests the High Commissioner to present a report on the implementation
of the present resolution to the Council at its fifieenth session;

16.  Also reguests the High Commissioner to submit to the Council, at its
fourteenth session, a progress report on the implementation of the present resolution;

17.  Decides to follow up on the implementation of the present resolution at its

fifteenth session.
42nd meeting
\ 25 March 2010
[Adopted by a recorded vote of 29 to 6, with 11 abstentions. The voting was as follows: *
In favour:

Angola, Argéntina, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Bolivia (Plurinational State of),
Bosnia and Herzegovina, Brazil, China, Cuba, Djibouti, Egypt, Ghana, India,
Indonesia, Jordan, Kyrgyzstan, Mauritius, Nicaragua, Nigeria, Pakistan,
Philippines, Qatar, Russian Federation, Saudi Arabia, Senegal, Slovenia,
South Africa, Uruguay, Zambia; '

Against:
Hungary, ltaly, Netherlands, Slovakia, Ukraine, United States of America;
Abstaining: .
Belgium, Burkina Faso, Cameroon, Chile, France, Japan, Madagascar,
Mexico, Norway, Republic of Korea, United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland.] ’
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GE.

Summary

This report was prepared by the fact-finding mission established by the Human
Rights Council in resolution A/HRC/RES/14/1 of 2 June 2010 to investigate violations of

international law, including international humanitarian law and human rights law, resulting

from the interception by Israeli forces of the humanitarian aid flotilla bound for Gaza on 31
May 2010 during which nine people were killed and many others injured.

The report sets out background information relating to the interception of the flotilia
as well as the applicable international law.

The fact-finding mission conducted interviews with more than 100 witnesses in
Geneva, London, Istanbul and Amman. On the basis of this testimony and other
information received, the Mission was able to reconstruct a picture of the circumstances
surrounding the interception on 31 May 2010 and its aftermath. The report presents a
factual description of the events leading up to the interception, the interception of each of
the six ships in the flotilla as well as a seventh ship subsequently intercepted on 6 June
2010, the deaths of nine passengers and wounding of many others and the detention of
passengers in [srael and their deportation.

The report contains a legal analysis of facts as determined by the Mission with a
view to ‘determining whether violations of international law, including international
humanitarian and human rights law, took place.

The fact-finding mission concluded that a series of violations of international law,
including international humanitarian and human rights law, were committed by the [sracli
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i forces during the interception of the flotilla and during the detention of passengers in Isracl
prior to deportation.  °
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I. Introduction

A. Mandate

1. On 2 June 2010 the Human Rights Council, by resolution 14/1, decided “to dispatch
an independent international fact-finding mission to investigate violations of international
law, including international humanitarian law and human rights law, resulting from the
Israeli attacks on the flotilla of ships carrying humanitarian assistance” to Gaza. The same
resolution authorized the President of the Council to appoint the members of this Mission
and called for the independent international fact-finding mission, hereinafter called “the:
Mission", to report its findings to the fifteenth session of the Council.!

2. Seven weeks later, on 23 July 2010, the President of the Human Rights Council
appointed Judge Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, Q.C., retired Judge of the International Criminal
Court and former Attorney General of Trinidad and Tobago, to be Chairman and to head
the Mission. The other appointed members were Sir Desmond de Silva, Q.C. of the United
Kingdom, former Chief Prosecutor of the United Nations-backed Special Court for Sierra
Leone and Ms. Mary Shanthi Dairiam of Malaysia, founding member of the Board of
Directors of the International Women's Rights Action Watch Asia Pacific and former
member of the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women.

3. In accordance with common practice, the Office of the United Nations High
Commissioner _for Human Rights (OHCHR) established a secretariat to support the
Mission. The experts were also assisted by external specialists in forensic pathology,
military issues, fircarms, the law of the sea and international humanitarian law.

4, The Mission considered that its task was dirécted to investigating the facts and
circumstances surrounding the boarding by Israeli military personnel of a flotilla of ships .
bound for Gaza and to determine whether in the process violations occurred of international
law, including international humanitarian and human rights law.

5. The Resolution in terms directed an investigation of ‘violations' of international law,
international humanitarian and human rights law, resulting from the Israeli ‘aftacks’ on the
flotilla carrying humanitarian assistance. This appeared to determine that “violations” of
international law, including international humanitarian and human rights law had in fact
occurred prior to any investigation. The Resolution also appeared to find as a fact that there
were Israeli “attacks” on the flotilla of ships and that the ships were carrying humanitarian
assistance, )

6. The Mission did not interpret its task as proceeding on any such assumptions. It
could not be determined what the position was until the Mission came to its conclusion on
the facts. The same can be said of the alleged actions by the Israeli forces.

7 It was not generally contested that there was an interception by Israeli forces of a
flotilla of ships and that the ships were carrying cargos of a humanitarian nature. That apart,
the Mission-considered that its mandate required it to ascertain the sequence of the facts and
events as they oceurred and to examine the reasons and justification in law, if any, for the
same.

8. The Mission convened in Geneva to officially commence its work on 9 August
2010. Shortly prior thereto, on 2 August 2010, the Secretary-General of the United Nations
announced “the setting-up of a Panel of Inquiry on the flotilla incident of 31 May™. The

' The resolution was-adopted by a recorded vote of 32 to 3, with 9 abstentions. See A/JHRC/ RES/14/1.
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Secretary-General, without indicaring what specific area of inquiry the Panel was to
undertake, expressed the hope that the panel “will fulfil its mandate based on the
Presidential Statement of the Security Council”,

9. The Panel of Inquiry was given the mandate to receive and review the reports of the
national investigations with lhc view to recommending ways of avoiding similar incidents
in the futire™.?

10.  Bath Israel and Turkey announced the sefting-up of national inquiries, on.15 July
2010 10 August 2010 respectively.

11.  In the opinion of the Mission, the remit of the Panel appointed by the Secretary
General is quite different and distinct from that of the Mission as it ultimate goal is to
“positively affect the relationship between Turkey and [srael, as well as the overall situation
in the Middle East.™

12. At the time of writing this report, the Mission was made aware of sittings of the
Israeli inquiry under Judge Turkel.! Both from the internet and other sources, the Mission
was able to secure transcripts of some of the evidence given by witness to that enquiry. It
appears that evidence was given partly in closed sessions, the transcripts of which have not
been made available to the Mission. As far as the Mission is aware, the inquiry announced
by the Government of Turkey submitted a preliminary report to the Secretary-General's
Panel on 1 September 2010.

13.  The Mission decided that its task required it to seek the cooperation of as wide a
cross section of relevant interests as possible and in particular that of the Governments of
Turkey and Israel. The Mission was greatly assisted by having discussions in Geneva with
the Permanent Representatives of [srael, Jordan, Turkey, the United Kingdom and the
United States of America, as well as with the Permanent Observer Mission of Palestine to
the United Nations, .

14.  The Mission wishes to place on record its appreciation for the assistance provided by
the Governments of Turkey and Jordan in facilitating its visit to Istanbul, Ankara and
Amman and providing pertinent and relevant information in the case of Turkey at an
" official level,

15. The Mission also wishes to thank the Office of the United Nations Resident
Coordinators and the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) in Ankara and
Amman for the cooperation provided. Particular mention is also to be made of the
collaboration provided by the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs (OCHA)
in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for
Palestine Refugees in the Near East (UNRWA) and the Office of the Special Coordinator
for the Middle East Peace Process (UNSCO) for briefing the Mission on the situation in the
Gaza Strip.

16. The Mission expresses its profound regret that, notwithstanding & most cordial
meeting on the 18 August 2010, the Permanent Representative of Israel advised in writing
at the end of the meeting that the position of his government was one of non-recognition of
and non-cooperation with the Mission. 1n the hope that this position would change before

Daily press briefing by the Office of the Spokesperson for the Secretary-General. 02 August 2010.
http //www.un.org/News/briefings/docs/2010/db100802. doc.htm.

* Ibid.

! See correspondence between the Mission and the Israeli Permanent Mission on anniexes.
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the conclusion of its work, the Mission left with the Permanent Representative a list of
requests for information.’

17.  Not having heard from the Permanent Representative of Israel, by letter dated 7
September 2010, the Mission wrote to the Permanent Representative renewing its request
for information. The Permanent Representative replied by letter dated the 13 September
2010 requesting the Mission to delay delivering its report to the Council on the ground that
it should await the report of the Commission under Judge Turkel in Israel and the Panel
appointed by the Secretary-General of the United Nations. The Mission replied advising the
Permanent Representative that the request should be made to the Council. Regrettably 1o
date, no information has been given to the Mission by or on behalf of the Government of
Israel.

B. Methodology -

18, Following its official establishment, the Mission redrafted its Terms of Reference so
as to reflect its approach to the mandate given. The Mission then established its working
methodology, including the criteria to select witnesses that participated in the flotilla.

19.  Different sources of information were made available to the Mission, including the
evidence of eye witnesses, forensic reports and interviews with medical and forensic
personnel in Turkey, as well as written statements, video film footage and other
photographic material relating to the incident.

20. In ascertaining the facts surrounding the Israeli interception of the Gaza-bound
flotilla, the Mission gave particular weight to the direct evidence received from interviews
with eye witnesses and crew, as well as the forensic evidence and interviews with
government officials. In light of seizure of cameras, CCTV footage and digital media
storage devices and of the suppression of that material with the disclosure only of a selected
and minute quantity of it, the Mission was obliged to treat with extreme caution the
versions released by the Israeli authorities where those versions did not coincide with the
evidence of eyewitnesses who appeared before us. -

21. Taking into consideration the resources and limited time available, the Mission
travelled to Istanbul, Ankara and Iskenderun in Turkey, Amman in Jordan and London in
the United Kingdom in order to interview witnesses, hold meetings with government
officials and to conduct an inspection of the ship Mavi Marmara, in which nine passengers
died on 31 May 2010. The Mission was able to contact several persons with information
bearing on the matters under enquiry. A total of one hundred and twelve witnesses® were
interviewed by the Mission either by all of its members at the same time or by individual
members. In addition written statements were received from several persons through their
attorneys. -

22. The Mission wishes to record its appreciation for the assistance given by various
firms of attorneys for facilitating the appearance before it of persons involved in the
inciden’ and represented by them. Meetings were also held with different non-
governmental organizations in Geneva, [stanbul and Amman. .

See annexes. s

Witnesses were interviewed at the following locations: London; Geneva; Istanbul; Amman. The
Mission is grateful to the International Maritime Organization for its assistance in providing a venue
for the interviews in London. :

7 Law firms in London, Istanbul, and Athens assisted the Mission.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

StateDept008838



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

A/HRCN521

23.  The Mission is of the opinion that evidence of a sufficient number and range of
witnesses was taken to afford it a comprehensive picture of the events as they occurred on
the 31 May 2010. In addition to the information received live from persons attending on it,
the Mission took into consideration information from @ variety of sources subject to
verification of authenticity.

24.  In assessing the evidence and information available to it, the Mission paid particular
attention to the content of the evidence and demeanour of the persons appearing before it in
deciding whether and if so what part of the information provided should be accepted. More
weight of necessity was accorded to such evidence if believed than to information from
other sources. In addition, with respect to information in the nature of hearsay evidence,
due regard was paid, giving to it such weight as the circumstances merited. Matters were
decided on the basis of the preponderance and quality of the evidence so as to satisfy all the
members of the Mission in order that they felt sure of their conclusions.

25. In the preparation of the report, the Mission first of all reviewed the factual
contextual background of the incident and came to its conclusions on the facts which are set
out in this report. The Mission expressed its opinion on the relevant principles of
international law, including intemational humanitarian and human rights law on the basis of
the facts it found. A segmented approach is taken to the analysis.

II. Background

A. Context

1.  The blockade of the Gaza Strip
Pre-existing restrictions of maritime access to the Gaza Strip

26.  Israel implemented a complete military occupation of the Gaza Strip from June 1967
until its first disengagement from parts of the Gaza Strip from May 1994 as part of the
peace process. A series of peace agreements between 1993 and 1995 concluded between
the State of Israel and the Palestinian Liberation Organization with international backing
were intended, within a transitional period of five years, to regulate [srael’s disengagement
from the West Bank and Gaza Strip leading up to the conclusion of a permanent status
agreement which would establish an independent Palestinian state alongside Israel. These
agreements, often collectively referred to as the Oslo Accords, provided the basis for,
amongst other matters, the establishment of the Palestinian Authority and Council and put
in place interim arrangements for security cooperation between the Isracli and Palestinian
police, including the policing of borders and maritime and air space.

27.  Under the Oslo Accords, it was agreed that the territorial waters off Gaza would be
included in the territorial jurisdiction of the Palestinian Authority (PA).® However, the
external security of the Gaza Strip was specifically excluded from the PA’s functional
jurisdiction;” responsibility of external security was retained by Israel until the final status
agreement.® Article VIII of the Gaza-Jericho Agreement specifically stated that “Israel will
continue to carry the responsibility ... for defence against external threats from the sea and
the air [...] and will have all the powers to lake the steps necessary to meet this
responsibility.” The agreed security arrangements and coordination mechanisms establishes

¥ Article 5, parn. I(a), Gaza-Jericho Agreement
? Article 5, para. 1(b), Gaza-Jericho Agreement.
19 Article 5, para. 3, Gaza-Jericho Agreement.
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three maritime activity zones: a central zone extending twenty nautical miles out to sea,
bounded by two one-nautical mile wide strips of water at the Egyptian end and Israeli end
of the Gaza Strip, both of which are closed military areas under Israeli control. The central
zone, under joint Palestinian-Israeli control, was designated as open for fishing up to the
twenty nautical miles limit and recreational boats up to three nautical miles. Foreign vessels
entering the central zone were not allowed to approach closer than twenty nautical miles
from the coast pending agreement on construction of a sea port for Gaza. Even though there
was a breakdown in security cooperation between Israelis and Palestinians in the West
Bank and Gaza Strip following the breakdown of bilateral peace negotiations in 2002,
significant aspects of the Oslo Accords remain in force, including provisions related 1o the
territorial waters off Gaza.

28.  During the 1990s, following the contours of the peace negotiations, lsraeli forces
imposed periodic “closures” of the Palestinian areas, usually in response to suicide
bombings inside [srael. These closures would last for a matter of weeks or months. Prior to
the first peace accords, it was estimated that as many as 20,000 Gazans left the strip each
day to work inside Israel, returning each evening. Closures impacted on the many families
dependent on the wages earned by these workers. '

Restrictions imposed on Gaza following Hamas' election viclory

29.  Since the beginning of the Second Intifada in 2000, a progressive restriction of the
access for Gaza fishermen to the sea has taken place. According to OCHA the latest
expansion of the restricted sea areas can be dated to late 2008, on the eve of the “Cast
Lead" offensive.!' Along most of Gaza's coast, the restricted areas begin at three nautical
miles from shore. Overall, OCHA states that Palestinians are barred access to 85 percent of
the sea areas on which they are entitled to carry out maritime activities and that Palestinian
fishermen entering the restricted sea areas are regularly exposed to warning fire by Israeli
naval forces and in some cases, directly targeted and that fishing boats are often intercepted
by the Israeli military and confiscated.

30. Economic and political measures started to be imposed against the Gaza Strip in
February 2006 following the Hamas election victory in the legislative elections,
accompanied by the withholding of financial resources on the part of donor countries. The
closure on the Gaza Strip was imposed by lIsrael after Hamas took control of the Gaza Strip
in June 2007. In September 2007, Israel declared the Gaza Strip “hostile territory™ and that
the movement of goods into and out of Gaza would be restricted for security concerns as
well as in order to apply pressure on the Hamas government “as part of the State of Israel’s
operations against continuous terrorism.”? Harsher fuel restrictions came into effect since
October 2007.

‘Benveen the Fence and a Hard Place’, UNOCHA oPt Report, August 2010

“Hamas is a terrorist organization that has taken control of the Gaza Strip and tumed it into hostile
territory This organization engages in hostile activity against the State of Isracl and its citizens and
bears responsibility for this activity. In light of the foregoing, it has been decided to adopt the
recommendations that have been presented by the security establishment, including the continuation

! of mulitary and counter-terronst operations against the terrorist organizations. Additional sanctions
will be placed on the Hamas regime in order to restrict the passage of vartous goods to the Gaza Strip
and reduce the supply of fuel and electricity Restrictions will also be placed on the movement of
people to and from the Gaza Strip. The sanctions will be enacted following a legal examination, while
taking into account both the humanitarian aspects relevant to the Gaza Strip and the intention to avoid
a humanitarian crisis."”

hetp:/iwww.mfa gov.al/MF A/Government/Commumiques/2007/Security+Cabinet+declares+Gazathost
ile+erritory+19-Sep-2007 him
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31.  In 2 petition to the Israeli Supreme Court,” the legality of the decision by the
Government of Israel to reduce the supply of electricity and fuel was challenged based on
the argument that such cuts were inconsistent with the obligations of Israel under the Fourth
Geneva Convention relating to the protection of civilians. In its response, the State
Attorney's Office inter alia submitted that harming the economy itself is a legitimate means
of warfare and a relevant consideration even when deciding on allowing in relief
consignments."*

32.  From mid-2008, in response to the Free Gaza Movement's attempts to enter Gaza by
sea, the Israeli Government took a series of steps aimed initially at deterring shipping from
travelling to the area A Notice to Mariners was issued stating that all ships entering the
central zone of the Gaza Maritime Area would be “subject to supervision and inspection.”
Then, in August 2008, a second Notice to Mariners was issued stating that “a maritime zone
extends 20 miles to seaward from the Gaza Strip. In accordance with the agreements
between Isracl and the PA, entry by foreign vesscls to this zone is prohibited.”"

Imposition of the naval blockade

33, In his testimony to the Turkel Committee, Chief of General Staff Gabi Ashkenazi
accepted that the “phenomenon of the flotillas” in mid-2008 represented the trigger for the
imposition of the maritime closure, although he outlines that it was done for security
purposes.”® Israeli Chief Military Advocate General, Avichai Mandelblit also stated that
the justification for a naval blockade was on security grounds only. However, plans for a
full naval blockade were initially not approved at the political level “on grounds of
legitimacy™ and the possibility of what Mandelblit describes as “severe criticism™ at the
international level.”

34.  Shortly prior to the initiation of Operation ‘Cast Lead” at the end of 2008 a
recommendation for the initiation of a closure was made by the Military Advocate General
to the Defence Minister who directed the imposition of a maritime closure on the Gaza
Strip until further notice.' The naval blockade of the Gaza Strip was established by Israel
on 3 January 2009 and announced by the Israeli Navy on 6 January. The advisory states that
“the Gaza maritime area is closed to all maritime traffic and is under blockade imposed by
the Israeli Navy until further notice.”" This advisory was publicised inter alia in a further
Notice to Mariners (NTM)™ and through other channels, It was also publicised twice daily

-

Israel Supreme Court, case HCJ 9132/07 — Al Bassiouni vs. Prime Minister.

Section 4 of State Submission to the Israeh Supreme Court in case HCJ 9132/07 — Al Bassiouni vs.

Prime Miuster. See hittp://www.gisha.org/UserFiles/File/turkel%2026-8-2010-3 pdf

Isracli Notice to Mariners 6/2008

IDF Chief of General Staff, Gabi Ashkenazi’s testimony to the Turkel Commitiee: Public

Commission to Examine the Maritime Incident of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, 11 August 2010,
L 13.

fDF Chief Military Advocate General Staff, Avichai Mandelblit's testimony to the Turkel Committee.

Public Commission to Examine the Maritime Incident of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, 26

August 2010, p. 41

IDF Chief of General Staff, Gabi Ashkenazi’s testimony to the Turkel Committee: Public

Commssion to Examine the Maritime Incident of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, 11 August 2010,

pp 18f j

NO. 1/2009 Blockade of the Gaza Strip, See website of theState of Israel Ministry of Transport and

Road Safety:

hittp://info.mot.gov.il/EN/index php?option=com_content& view=article&id=124:n012009&catid=17:

noticetomarinersé ltemid=12

A Notice to Mariners advises mariners of important matters affecting navigational safety, including

new hydrographic information, changes in channels and aids to navigation and other imporiant data.

=

=

=

s
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- on the NAVTEX broadcast system, regularly updating shipping according to location viaa -
direct-printing service.’ Chief Military Advocate General Staff Mandelblit stated that this
blockade was approved at ministry level by the State Attorney without involving military
legal advice.®

35.  Senior Israeli officials have stated that the legal basis for the blockade was (1) the
San Remo Manual, (2) the London Declaration and (3) customary law™ and the existence
of an armed conflict between Hamas and Israel that had continued after Operation Cast
Lead.®

36. A military closure order was signed by the Commander of the Israeli Navy on 28
May 2010,* prohibiting persons from entering a specified “closed area” referred to as
“Area A" and advising all ships and persons 1o stay away from a “dangerous area” referred
to as “Area B" but, according to testimony received by the Mission, not gazetted. The
order announcing the blockade was presented by the representative of the State in a hearing
on the extension of detention of four Palestinian Arab citizens of Israel as the provision on
the basis of which the Israeli forces entered intemnational waters. The application to extend
the arrest of the 4 individuals concerned was based on the argument that there had been a
violation of the above mentioned order.

2. The humanitarian sitaation in the Gaza Strip

37.  The humanitarian situation in Gaza resulting from the imposition of the blockade on
the Gaza Strip since June 2007 has been a matter of increasing concern for the international
community, including the Security Council. Following the Flotilla incident, the Security
Council qualified the situation in Gaza as “not sustainable”, stressing the full
implementation of Resolutions 1850 and 1860, in which it, inter alia, expressed “grave
concem [...] at the deepening humanitarian crisis in Gaza", emphasized “the need to ensure
sustained and regular flow of goods and people through the Gaza crossings™ and called for
the “unimpeded provision and distribution throughout Gaza of humanitarian assistance,
including food, fiel and medical treatment.” In the Presidential Statement, the Security
Council reiterated its “grave concern at the humanitarian situation in Gaza" and stressed
“the need for sustained and regular flow of goods and people to Gaza as well as unimpeded
provision and distribution of humanitarian assistance throughout Gaza."” In addition, the

2

1DF Chief of General Staff, Gabi Ashkenazi's tesumony to the Turkel Committee: Public

Commission to Examine the Manime Incident of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, on the date of

8.11.2010, pp. 18f

IDF Chief Military Advocate General Staff, Avicha: Mandelblit's testimony to the Turkel Commiftee’

Public Commission to Examine the Mantime Incident of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, 26

August 2010, pp. 41-43.

3 1bid, p. 43.

M \bid, pp. 44-45. :

Closure Order and Announcement of Dangerous Area in Sea 06(10, 2010 [Defense (Emergency)

Regulations of 1945].

% Extract of the hearing on | June 2010 on the detention of the four Palestinian Arab citizens of Israeli,
before the Ashkelon Magistrates Court (unofficial translation).

¥ S/PRST/2010/9. In Security Council resolution 1860 of 8 January 2009, the Security Council

expressed “grave concem ...at the decpening humanitarian crisis im Gaza" and emphasized “the need

10 ensure sustained and regular flow of goods and people through the Gaza crossings. It called for the

“unimpeded provision and distribution throughout Gaza of humanitarian assistance, including food,

fuel and medical treatment.”
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United States Ambassador to the United Nations in Geneva said “we continue to believe the
situation in Gaza is unsustainable and.is not in the interest of any of those concerned”. ™

38.  In a United Nations joint statement issued on 31 May, Robert Serry, the United
Nations Special Coordinator for the Middle East Peace Process and Filippo Grandi,
Commissioner-General of the United Nations Relief and Works Agency (UNRWA)
emphasized that “such tragedies are entirely avoidable if Israel heeds the repeated calls of
the international community to end its counterproductive and unacceptable blockade of
Gaza.” In a public statement issued on 14 June 2010, the ICRC described the impact of the
closure on the situation in Gaza as “devastating” for the 1.5 million people living there,
emphasizing that “the closure constitutes a collective punishment imposed in clear violation
of Israel’s obligations under international humanitarian law”, saying the only sustainable
solution is a lifting of the closure.

39. Similarly, the Human Rights Committee, in its concluding observations of July
2010, expressed its concern at the “effects of the blockade on the civilian population in the
Gaza Strip, including restrictions to their freedom of movement, some of which led to
deaths of patients in need of urgent medical care, as well as restrictions on the access to
sufficient drinking water and adequate sanitation,” It recommended that Israel lift the
military blockade of Gaza, insofar as it adversely affects the civilian population.”

40.  According to information provided to the Mission by the United Nations Office for
the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs (OCHA) in the occupied Palestinian territory, the
blockade exacerbated the already existing difficulties of the population in Gaza in terms of
livelihoods and brought to new peaks the severe human dignity crisis resulting from the
deteriorated public services, widespread poverty, food “insecurity, over 40 percent
unemployment and 80 percent aid dependence (i.e. some 80 percent of the population
receives humanitarian assistance, mainly food). People's lives were reduced to a daily
struggle in an attempt to secure the most basic needs.

41, “Abject poverty" among refugees tripled since the imposition of the blockade from

100,000 to 300,000 and 61 percent of households are food insecure, There has been a shift
in diet (from protein rich to low cost and high carbohydrate foods), triggering concerns over
mineral and vitamin deficiencies. Moreover, Gaza has been affected by a protracted energy
crisis, with the power plant operating at 30 percent of its capacity, scheduled cuts of 8-12
hours per day, leaving households with partial food refrigeration. Services and utilities are
forced to rely on generators and UPS units valnerable due to inconsistent supply of spare
parts.
42.  Water and sanitation services have deteriorated and resulted in over 40 percent of
water loss due to leakages. On a daily basis, eighty million litres of untreated and partially
treated sewage is discharged into the environment. Polluted sea water has led to increased
health risks and as a result of sewage infiltrating into the aquifer only between five and ten
percent of the extracted water is safe. Challenges to the health system include the
impossibility to ensure that medical equipment is available and properly maintained, while
referral abroad is subject to long and arduous permit processing and medical staff is
prevented from upgrading knowledge and skills.

43.  On 20 June 2010, the Security Cabinet of the Government of Israel decided on
several steps to implement a new Governmental policy towards Gaza, seeking to keep
weapons and war material out of Gaza while liberalizing the system by which civilian

3 Statement by the Ambassador of the United States of American to the Human Rights Council,
Geneva, | June 2010,
¥ CCPRICNSR/CO/3, para. 8
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goods enter Gaza.” In July, the United Nations and international relief agencies cautiously
welcomed the easing of import restrictions on the blockade, but emphasized that only a
" complete lifting of the blockade can address the humanitarian crisis, highlighting that this
would also mean bringing exports out of Gaza in order to rebuild the economy destroyed by -
the blockade.”

44, At the end of August, OCHA reported that despite the easing of the restrictions and
an increase of imports into the Gaza Strip for some weeks, ongoing restrictions on the entry
of construction materials as well as on exports, continued to impede major reconstruction
and development, noting that the truckloads of goods entering Gaza during the week of 18
August to 24 August constituted only 37 percent of the weekly average of truckloads that
entered during the first five months of 2007, prior to the imposition of the blockade. In the
same report, OCHA also highlights the continuing fuel shortage and electricity crisis in the
Gaza Strip.® The impact of the power cuts in terms of putting people's lives at risk, for
instance those in need of medical treatment (i.e. dialysis patients) was also h|ghllghted by
the ICRC in a press release on 7 September 2010.

3. Information on recent armed hostilitis

45.  According to OCHA, in 2010, forty-one Palestinians (including fourteen civilians),
three Israeli soldiers and one foreign national have been killed in the context of the
Palestinian—Israeli conflict in the Gaza Strip and southern lIsrael, with another 178
Palestinians (including 154 civilians) and eight [sraeli soldiers having been injured.”
According to the Israeli Defence Forces, a total of 120 rockets were fired from the Gaza
Strip into Israel from 1 January 2010 to 31 July 2010.* This ﬁgure does not include failed
attempts or firi rmg directly at Isrzeli forces.

B. Applicable law

46. At the outset it should be noted that a State is responsible for the conduct of its
officials, including its armed forces, when acting either in their official capacity or when
acting under the colour of suthority and using means put at their disposal by the State, even
if exceeding their authority or contravening instructions.” In the course of enforcement
actions carried out by a State, certain fundamental, minimum obligations are applicable at
all times, whether an operation is governed by the laws of armed conflict (LOAC) or the
laws of intemational human rights law. The content of those obligations is not affected by
the legality or otherwise- of a State’s claim to exercisé authority over individuals or
property.

47.  However, acting in an official capacity does not relieve a State agent of individual
criminal responsibility. It is possible that individual criminal liability and State
responsibility may arise from the same act. The fact that the State bears intemnational
responsibility does not mean that individuals cannot also bear individual criminal liability.

http:/fwww.mfa gov.il/MF A/Humanitarian A id/Palestinians/Bricfing-
Israel_new_policy_towards_Gaza_5-Jul-2010.htm outlining specific elements of the new policy.
hutp:/fwww.irinnews.org/Report. aspx?Reportid=89762

Protection of Civilians® 18-24 August 2010, United Nations OCHA oFt, p.4.

Protection of Civilians: 18-24 August 2010, United Nations OCHA oPt, p.3.

> hitpi/idover.idf iVIDF/English/News/today/ | 0/08/1203.htm

Article 7, Intemnational Law Commission Articles on Responsibility of States for Intemationally
Wrongful Acts, [2001] Vol. 11(2) Yearbook of the International Law Commission, p. 43. See also’
Caire (1929) 5 Reports of International Arbitral Awards 516, Malién (1925) 4 Reports of
International Arbitral Awards 173,
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- 1. The law of naval warfare and the question of the blockade
48. Considering the issues raised by the mandate given to the Mission which involved
issues of law relating to naval warfare and the matter of a naval blockade imposed by Israel,
the Mission views those matters as follows.

49.  According to applicable international law, unless an exception applics, a vessel on
the high seas is subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of its flag State. Under the international
faw of the sea such exceptions are usually limited to suspicion of certain activities (piracy,
the slave trade, unauthorized high seas broadcasting), ships suspected of lacking nationality
(i.e. stateless vessels) and cases where permission to board and inspect have been given
cither ad hoc or by treaty (c.g. those dealing with narcotics smuggling).”® Other exceptions
would include acts of self-defence under Article 51 of the United Nations Charter against
vessels which posed an immediate and overwhelming threat to the boarding State and
lawful acts under LOAC.

50. It has been suggested that the United Nations Law of the Sea Convention
(UNCLOS), by reserving the use of the high seas for peaceful purposes,” has effectively
outlawed acts of naval warfare on the high seas. First, it should be noted that Israel is not 2
party to UNCLOS. Second, there was no consensus on this position during the negotiation .
of UNCLOS and it was certainly not accepted by the major naval powers at the time.
Indeed, the military manuals of many States (both UNCLOS parties and non-parties)
continue to include provisions on the law of naval warfare and blockade.™ Further, a report
of the United Nations Secretary General found that these UNCLOS provisions did not
affect action that was lawful cither under the law of self-defence under Anticle 51 of the
United Nations Charter (the jus ad bellum) or acts justified by the law of armed conflict
(LOAC) once an armed conflict has commenced (the yus in bello).™ The majority of
scholarly opinion would also support the view that the law of naval warfare continues to be
potentially applicable on the high seas. One attempt at codifying this law was the
independent expert study, the San Remo Manual on International Law Applicable to Armed
Conflicts at Sea (SRM).*® While not authoritative, its codification effort has had a
significant impact on the formulation of military manuals and it has been expressly n:llad
upon by Israel.

See, in particular, United Nations Law of the Sea Convention 1982, United Nations, Treaty Series,
vol. 1833, No. 31363, article 110(1), Convention on the High Seas 1958, United Nations, Treaty
Series, vol. 450, No. 6465, article 22.

' United Nations, Treaty Series, vol 1833, No. 31363, articles 88, 141 and 301,

M UK Ministry of Defence, The Manual of the Law of Armed Conflict (Oxford University Press, 2004)
(hereafter, UK Manual); Dicter Fleck (ed), Handbook of International Humanttarian Law 2 edition
(Oxford University Press, 2008), being an annotated transiation of the German military manual
(hereafter, German Manual); The Law of Armed Conflict at the Operational and Tactical Levels
(2004), available at the website urucmomu of the Judge Advocaic General,
http:/fwww. forces. ge.cafjag/publications/Traming-formation/LOAC-DDCA_2004-eng pdf (hereafier,
Canadian Manual), Commander ‘s Handbook of the Law of Naval Operanons (US, 2007), available at
http' fusnwe.edw/getattachment/a9b8e92d-2c8d-4779-9925-0defead3325¢/1- 14M_(Jul_2007)_(NWP)
(hereafter, US Manual)

» Report of the Secretary General, “Study on the Naval Arms Race™, UMNmDo:. AJ40/535
(1985), para 188

“ As reproduced n Louise Doswald-Beck et al (eds), San Remo Manual on International Law
Applicable to Armed Confhicts ar Sea (Cambndge University Press, 1995). Available at:

hitp //www.icre org/ihl nsEFULL/S607OpenDocument.
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Blockade

51.  Under the laws of armed conflict, a blockade is the prohibition of all commerce with
a defined enemy coastline. A belligerent who has established a lawful blockade is entitled
to enforce that blockade on the high seas.”’ A blockade must satisfy a number of legal
requirements, including: notification, effective and impartial enforcement and
proportignality.” In particular a blockade is illegal if:

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other
objects essential for its survival; or

(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in
relation to the concrete and direct military advantage anticipated from the blockade.”

52. A blockade may not continue to be enforced where it inflicts disproportionate
damage on the civilian population. The usual meaning of “damage to the civilian
population” in LOAC refers to deaths, injuries and property damage. Here the damage may
be thought of as the destruction of the civilian economy and prevention of reconstruction of
past damage. One might also note, insofar as many in Gaza face a shortage of food or the
means l‘? buy it, that the ordinary meaning of “starvation” under LOAC is simply to cause
hunger.

53.  In evaluating the evidence submitted 1o the Mission, including by the Office for the
Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs in the occupied Palestinian territory, confirming the
severe humanitarian situation in Gaza, the destruction of the economy and the prevention of
reconstruction (as detailed above), the Mission is satisfied that the blockade was inflicting
disproportionate damage upon the civilian population in the Gaza strip and as such the
interception could not be justified and therefore has to be considered illegal,

54.  Moreover, the Mission emphasizes that according to article 33 of the Fourth Geneva
Convention, collective punishment of civilians under occupation is prohibited. “No
protected person may be punished for an offence he or she has not personally committed.
Collective penalties and likewise all measures of intimidation or of terrorism, are
prohibited.” The Mission considers that one of the principal motives behind the imposition
of the blockade was a desire to punish the people of the Gaza Strip for having clected
Hamas. The combination of this motive and the effect of the restrictions on the Gaza Strip
leave no doubt that Israel’s actions and policies amount to collective punishment as defined
by international law. In this connection, the Mission supports the findings of the Special
Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in the Palestinian territories occupied since
1967, Richard Falk,” the report of the United Nations Fact-Finding Mission on the Gaza
Conflict* and most recently the ICRC* that the blockade amounts to collective punishment
in violation of Israel’s obligations under international humanitarian law.

San Remo Manual, paragraph 10(b).

“ San Remo Manual, paragraph 93-95, 100.

San Remo Marual, para 102

“ C. Pilloud and J Pictet, Commeniary on the additional protocois of 8 June 1977 to the Geneva
Conventions of 12 August 1949 (Intemational Committee of the Red Cross, 1987), p.53 para 2089.
See also Oxford English Dictionary definitions’ “to deprive of or keep scanuily supplied with food” or
10 “subdue by fammne or low diet™,

4 A/HRC/13/53, para.34 ;

The Mission considered the policy of blockade “amounts to collective punishment intentionally

inflicted by the Govemnment of Israel on the people of Gaza”, A/HRC/12/48, para. 1878.

In its statement of 14 June 2010, the ICRC maintained that “the whole of Gaza's civilian population is

being pumshed for acts for which they bear no responsibility. The closure therefore constitutes a

-]
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55. It might be suggested that a belligerent in an armed conflict has a right to visit,
inspect and control the destinations of neutral vessels on the high seas, irrespective of any
declared blockade. Whilst there is some controversy on this issue, the San Remo Manual
and a number of military manuals take the view that the right may only be exercised upon
reasonable suspicion that a vessel is engaged in activities which support the enemy.* The
Mission takes the view that a right of interference with third States’ freedom of navigation
should not lightly be presumed.

56.  Thus, if there is no lawful blockade, the only lawful basis for intercepting the vessel
would be a reasonable suspicion that it:

= was making an effective contribution to the opposing forces’ war effort, such as by
carrying weaponry or was otherwise closely integrated into the enemy war effort
(belligerent right of capture);” or

» posed an imminent and overwhelming threat to Israel and there was no alternative
but to use force to prevent it (self-defence under Article 51 of the United Nations
Charter),

In view of the information available, the Mission is satisfied that the interception of the
flotilla and related preparatory planning by Israel was not purely motivated by concerns as
to the vessels’ contribution to the war effort. Evidence attributed to the Chief of General
Staff, Gabi Ashkenazi who testified that he did not believe that the IHH, one of the
coalition members organizing the Flotilla, was a “terrorist organization”.*" The evidence of
Prime Minister Netanyahu to the Turkel Committee indicates that the decision to stop the
flotilla was not taken because the vessels in themselves posed any immediate security
threat. In any event, no such right of belligerent interdiction or wider claim of self-defence
against the Flotilla has been asserted by Israel.

57.  Therefore the Mission is satisfied not only that the flotilla presented no imminent
threat but that the interception was motivated by concerns about the possible propaganda
victory that might be claimed by the organizers of the flotilla.

58.  Given the evidence at the Turkel Committee, it is clear that therc was no reasonable
suspicion that the Flotilla posed any military risk of itself. As a result, no case could be
made 1o intercept the vessels in the exercise of belligerent rights or Article 51 self-defence.
Thus, no case can be made for the legality of the interception and the Mission therefore
finds that the interception was illegal.

59.  The Mission finds that the policy of blockade or closure regime, including the naval
blockade imposed by Isracl on Gaza was inflicting disproportionate civilian damage. The
Mission considers that the naval blockade was implemented in support of the overall
closure regime. As such it was part of a single disproportionate measure of armed conflict
and as such cannot itself be found proportionate.

collective punishment imposed in clear violation of Israel's obligations under international
humanitarian law”,

San Remo Manual, paras 118 and 67, United Kingdom Manusl, para 13.91

San Remo Manual, paragraph 67 and 146, .

Turkel Committee; Public Commission to Examine the Maritime Incident of May 31, 2010, Session
Number 4, 11 August 2010, responding to a question by Professor Deutch; http:/www.turkel-
committee. gov.il/files/iwordocs/07790ga.doc. The Mission notes that 8 Germany-based organization
called “Internationale Humanitaere HilfSorganisation” that shares the same abbreviation but has no
link with the Turkish organization, is under investigation in Germany for alleged “terronst” links

-
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60.  Furthermore, the closure regime is considered by the Mission 10 constitute collective
punishment of the people living in the Gaza Strip and thus illegal and contrary to article 33
of the Fourth Geneva Convention.

61. The Mission considers that the enforcement of an illegal blockade does not only
constitute a violation of the laws of war, but also a violation of the laws of neutrslity giving
rise to State responsibility.

2. International Humanitarian Law

62. The relevant intemnational humanitarian law standards binding on Isreel as the
occupying power in the occupied Palestinian territory are set out in the Fourth Geneva
Convention of 1949 relative to the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of War. In
addition, Israel is bound by customary rules of international humanitarian law.

63.  As the occupying power, Isracl has certain obligations imposed on it by international
law. The International Court of Justice has concluded that the Fourth Geneva Convention is
applicable in the occupied Palestinian territories which before the 1967 conflict lay to the
east of the Green Line and which during the conflict were occupied by Israel.*! This is also
the case for the Gaza strip, despite the unilateral withdrawal by Israel of the forces from the
Gaza Strip in 2005, as the occupation has been confirmed repeatedly since then by the
General Assembly and the Security Council.¥ In this context, the Mission notes that
occupation continues to the extent to which the occupying power retains effective control.

64. The Mission agrees with the assessment presented in the Goldstone Report as
follows:

Given the specific geopolitical configuration of the Gaza Strip, the powers that Israel
exercises from the borders enable it"to determine the conditions of life within the
Gaza Strip. Israel controls the border crossings (including to a significant degree the
Rafah crossing to Egypt, under the terms of the Agreement on Movement and
Access) and decides what and who gets in or out of the Gaza Strip. It also controls
the territorial sea adjacent to the Gaza Strip and has declared a virtwal blockade and
limits to the fishing zone, thereby regulating economic activity in that zone. It also
keeps complete control of the airspace of the Gaza Strip, inter alia, through
continuous surveillance by aircraft and unmanned aviation vehicles (UAVs) or
drones. It makes military incursions and from time to time hit targets within the
Gaza Strip. No-go areas are declared within the Gaza Strip near the border where
Israeli settlements used to be and enforced by the Israeli armed forces. Furthermore,
Israel regulates the local monetary market based on the Israeli currency (the new
sheqel) and controls taxes and custom duties.”

The Mission is satisfied that these circumstances continued to prevail at the time of the
incident under investigation.

65. Under the Fourth Geneva Convention, individuals may not be killed, tortured, ill-
treated or suffer humiliating and degrading treatment and there may not be destruction of-

' Legal Consequences of the construction of the Wall in the Occupied Palestinian Teritory, Advisory
Opmmnof‘“ulym ICJ Reports 2004, para. 101.

*# Security Council resolution 1860 (2009), General Assembly resolutions A/Res/64/92 and
AJRes/64/94,

* Human Rights m Palestine and Other Occupied Arab Territories: Report of the United Nations Fact-
Finding Mission on the Gaza Conflict, United Nations Doc A/HRC/12/48 (25 September 2009), para
278.
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property unless absolutely necessary for the military operation. Article 147 Fourth Geneva
Convention spells out a list of “grave breaches” of international humanitarian law.

66.  Flotilla passengers were civilians and in the context of the interception of the vessels
must be considered as protected persons. Under article 4 Fourth Geneva Convention,
protected persons are those who, at a given moment and in any manner whatsoever, find
themselves in the hands of a part to the conflict of occupying Power of which they are not
nationals. In a situation of armed conflict, military force can only be used against a
combatant or against civilians participating actively and directly in combat activities, which
cannot be said of the civilians on the Mavi Marmara.

3.  International Human Rights Law

67. lIsrael is party to the core human rights treaties relevant to the situation under

consideration.*”* The vessels in the flotilla whilst in international waters were also subject to &
the jurisdiction of the flag states, namely Cambodia (Rachel Corrie), Comoros (Mavi

Marmara), Greece (Eleftheri Mesogios), Kiribati (Defne Y), Togo (Sfendoni), Turkey

(Gazze 1) and the United States of America (Challenger 1), The international human rights

treaties accepted by each of these states at the time of th'e incident under investigation were

applicable on the relevant vessels.

68.  Human rights law in its entirety continues to apply in situations of armed conflict,
except for derogations in accordance with treaty provisions relating to times of
emergencies. In this respect the Mission notes the recent reiteration by the Human Rights
Committee of its view that “the applicability of the regime of international humanitarian
law during an armed conflict, as well as in a situation of occupation, does not preclude the
application of the Covenant, except by operation of article 4, whereby certain provisions
may be derogated from in a time of national emergency.™ In its General Comment 29, the
Human Rights Committee specified that the Covenant continues to apply in situations of
armed conflict to which the rules of international humanitarian law are applicable. “While,
in respect of certain Covenant rights, more specific rules of international humanitarian law
may be especially relevant for the purposes of the interpretation of Covenant rights, both
spheres of law are complementary, not mutually exclusive.”*

69. Moreover, in the Nuclear Weapons Advisory Opinion (1996) the ICJ affirmed the

applicability of the Covenant during armed conflict, stating that “In principle, the right not

arbitrarily to be deprived of one’s life applies also in hostilities. The test of what is an

arbitrary deprivation of life, however, then falls to be determined by the applicable /ex

specialis, namely, the law applicable in armed conflict which is designed to regulate the

conduct of hostilities. Thus whether a particular loss of life, through the use of a certain

weapon in warfare, is to be considered an arbitrary deprivation of life contrary to Article 6

of the Covenant can only be decided by reference to the law applicable in armed conflict oo
and not deduced from the terms of the Covenant itself.""’

70.  In its Advisory Opinion on the Legal consequences of the Construction of a Wall in
the Occupied Palestinian Territory, the Court considered that "the protection offered by the
human rights conventions does not cease in case of armed conflict, save through the effect

* ICCPR, ICESCR, CEDAW, ICERD, CAT, CRC and the OP on the involvement of children in Armed
Conflict .
CCPR/ISR/CO/3, para.5
Human Rights Committee, General Comment No. 29, para 3, also incorporated into General
Comment 31, para. 11.
Legaluty of the Threat or Use of Nuclear Weapons, Advisory Opinion of 8 July 1996, 1996 ICJ
Reports, p. 226, Para. 25. ;i

5

&

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

StateDept008849



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

A/HRC/N5/21

of provisions for derogation of any kind to be found in Article 4 of the International
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights. As regards the relationship between international
humanitarian law and human rights law, there are thus three possible situations: some rights
may be exclusively matters of international humanitarian law; others may be exclusively
matters of human rights law; yet others may be maiters of both these branches of
international law."*"

71.  The Mission is of the view that the conduct of the IDF on board the Mavi Marmara
as well as the conduct of the authorities in the afteimath of the operation is not limited
strictly to the law of armed conflict, but is subject also to human rights law. Indeed human
rights law and international humanitarian law are not mutually exclusive but rather should
be regard to be complementary and mutually reinforcing to ensure the fullest protection to
the persons concerned.

72.  The ICCPR contains several articles. which cannot be derogated from even “in times
of public emergency which threatens the life of the nation (art. 4).” Non-derogable rights
include the right to life and the right not to be subjected to torture or to cruel, inhuman or
degrading treatment of punishment. Israel has made a notification under article 4(3) of the
ICCPR — states of emergency, dated 3 October 1991, specifically relevant to article 9
regarding liberty and security of person.® In this connection, the Human Rights Committee
extends in its General Comment No. 29 the list of non-derogable provisions as provided for
by article 4 (2), emphasizing that States parties to the Covenant “may in no circumstances
invoke article 4 of the Covenant as a justification for acting in violation of humanitarian
law or peremptory norms of international law, for instance by taking hostages, by imposing
collective punishments, through arbitrary deprivation of liberty or by deviating from
fundamental principles of fair trial, including the presumption of innocence."™

73. - Article 2 of the ICCPR obliges each State party to respect and to ensure to all
individuals “within its territory and subject to its jurisdiction” the rights recognized within
it. The extra-territorial applicability was elaborated by the Human Rights Committee in its
General Comment 31: “A State party must respect and ensure the rights laid down in the
Covenant to anyone with the power or effective control of that State party, even if not
situated within the territory of the State party.”®' The applicability of the ICCPR “in respect
of acts done by a State in the exercise of its- jurisdiction outside its own temitory” was

Legal Conseguences . , Para 106,
% “Since its establishment, the State of Israel has been the victim of contmuous threats and attacks on its
very existence as well as on the life and property of its citizens.

"These have taken the form of threats of war, of actual armed attacks and campaigns of terrorism
resulting in the murder of and injury to human beings.

"In view of the above; the State of Emergency which was proclaimed in May 1948 has remained m
force ever sinee. This situation constitutes a public emergency within the meaning of article 4 (1) of
the Covenant.

"The Government of Israel has therefore found it necessary, in accordance with the said article 4, to
take measures to the extent strictly required by the exigencies of the situation, for the defence of the
State and for the protection of life and property, including the exercise of powers of arrest and
detention
"In so far as any of these measures are inconsistent with article 9 of the Covenant, Israel thereby
derogates from its obligations under that provision."

% Human Rights Committee, General Comment 29, para 11 (HRVGEN/Rev.9 (Vel.1))
' Human Rights Committee, General Comment 31, para 10.
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confirmed by the ICJ in its 2004 Advisory Opinion on the Wall.® The Human Rights
Committee itself has reaffirmed this view in its recent consideration of Israel in July 2010.%

74.  Other relevant United Nations human rights standards applicable to member States
of the United Nations include the Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials; the
Basic Principles on the Use of Force and Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials; the Body
of Principles for the Protection of All Persons under Any Form of Detention or
Imprisonment; and the Principles on the Effective Prevention and Investigation of Exira-
legal, Arbitrary and Summary Executions. .

I Interception of the flotilla by the Israeli navy and its
aftermath

A. Organisation of the Gaza flotilla and the response of the Israeli
government

Factual Description and Findings
75.  The Mission found the following facts to have been established to its satisfaction.

(a) The aims of the Free Gaza Movement and the Gaza flotilla of May 2010

76. The Free Gaza Movement, a human rights organization registered as a charity in
Cyprus, organized five successful boat voyages to Gaza between August 2008 and
December 2008 using on each occasion one or two small boats. The self-declared purpose
of the voyages was to break the blockade on Gaza. The boats were not intercepted by the
Israeli authorities at the time, although some threatening messages were received by the
organizers from the Isracli authorities. A sixth mission in December 2008 was obliged to

' legal Consequences..., paragraph 111

€ CCPRASR/CON, para.5: “The Commuttee reiterates its view, previously noted m paragraph 1 1 of its
concluding observations on the State party’s second periodic report (CCPR/CO/T8/ISR) and
paragraph 10 of its concluding observations on the State party’s mitial report (CCPR/C/79/Add.93),
that the applicability of the regime of intemational humanitarian law during an armed conflict, as well
as m a situation of occupation, does not preclude the application of the Covenant, except by operation
of article 4, whereby certain provisions may be derogated from mn a time of national emergency. The
Commuttee’s position has been endorsed, unanimously, by the Intemational Court of Justice in its
Advisory Opinion on the Legal Consequences of the Construction of 2 Wall in the Occupied
Palestinian Termitory (Advisory Opinion, 1.C.J. Repons 2004, p. 136), according to which the
Covenant is applicable in respect of acts done by a State 1 exercise of its jurisdiction outside its own
territory. Furthermore, the applicability of the regime of mternational humanitarian law does not
preciude accountability of States parties under article 2, paragraph |, of the Covenant for the actions
of their authorities or agents outside their own territorics, including in occupicd temitories. The
Commuttee therefore reiterates and underscores that, contrary to the State party’s position, in the
current circumstances, the provisions of the Covenant apply to the benefit of the population of the
occupied territones, including in the Gaza Strip, for all conduct by the State party’s authorities or
agents in those territones affecting the enjoyment of rights enshrined in the Covenant (ans. 2 and 40).
The State party should ensure the full application of the Covenant in Israel as well as in (he occupied
territories, including the West Bank, East Jerusalem, the Gaza Strip and the occupied Syrian Golan
Heights. In accordance with the Committee’s general comment No, 31, the State party should ensure
that all persons under its jurisdiction and effective control are afforded the full enjoyment of the rights
enshrined in the Covenant ™
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divert to Lebanon afier the boat was rammed and severely damaged by the Israeli Navy and
a seventh mission in January 2009 was aborted after fears it too would be rammed.

77.  On 29 June 2009, approximately 20 nautical miles from the coast of Gaza, the Israeli
Navy intercepted a boat called the “Spirit of Humanity” owned by the Free Gaza
Movement, carrying 21 passengers and a cargo of humanitarian aid to Gaza. After Isracli
requests to turn around were refused, the boat was boarded and taken to Ashdod where the
passengers were arrested and detained.

78. After these unsuccessful atiempts, the Free Gaza Movement sought wider
collaboration with other organizations with a view to increasing the number of boats on
future missions. The Movement established contact with a number of organizations
including a Turkish humanitarian organization called the Foundation for Human Rights and
Freedoms and Humanitarian Relief (IHH) which enjoys consultative status with the
Economic and Social Council. [HH, which has been active in over 120 countries and
territories including the Gaza Strip, had been planning its own mission to Gaza and
committed to joining the flotilla with two cargo vessels and a newly-purchased passenger
boat with a total carrying capacity of over six hundred passengers. A number of other .
organizations, including the Ship to Gaza (Sweden), the Ship to Gaza (Greece) and the
European Campaign to Break the Siege on Gaza, also agreed to join what became known as
the “Gaza Freedom Flotilla™.

79. . The stated aims of the Flotilla, as testified by the leaders of the Free Gaza
Movement and IHH, were threefold: (1) to draw international public attention to the
situation in the Gaza Strip and the effect the blockade; (2) to break the blockade; and (3) to
deliver humanitarian assistance and supplies to Gaza. All.participants interviewed by the
Mission shared their aims, although most placed emphasis on the delivery of humanitarian
aid.

*80.  The Mission notes a certain tension between the political objectives of the flotilla

" and its humanitarian objectives. This comes to light the moment that the Isracli
Government made offers to allow the humanitarian gid to be delivered via Israeli ports but
under the supervision of a neutral organization. The Mission also notes that the Gaza Strip
does not possess a deep sea port designed to receive the kind of cargo vessels included in
the flotilla, raising practical logistical questions about the plan to deliver large quantities of
aid by the route chosen. Whilst the Mission is satisfied that the flotilla constituted a serious
attempt to bring essential humanitarian supplies into Gaza, it scems clear that the primary
objective was political, as indeed demonstrated by the decision of those on board the
Rachel Corrie to reject an Irish Government sponsored proposal that the cargo in that ship
to be allowed through Ashdod intact.

(b) Composition of the Flotilla

81.  The flotilla was composed initially of eight vessels carrying a total of 748 persons
(see table in annexes):

« M.V. Mavi Marmara — a passenger ship registered in the Comoros® and owned by
IHH;

= M.V. Defne Y — a cargo boat registered in Kiribati and owned by [HH;
* M.V. Gazze ] —a cargo-boat registered in Turkey and owned by IHH;

' The ship was bought by IHH early in 2010 with funds raised by members and was registered with the
Comoros just a few days before it set sail forer

20

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

StateDept008852



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

A/HRC/1521

* M.V. Sfendoni or Sfendonh — a passenger boat registered in Togo and owned by
Sfendonh S.A. based in the Marshall Islands. The boat was given an alternative
name, “Boat 8000”, just before it joined the flotilla which was used in official Israeli
accounts;

M. V. Eleftlreri Mesogios or Sofia — a cargo boat registered in Greece and owned by
the Eleftheri Mesogios Marine Company based in Athens. The Greek name of the
ship translates as “Free Mediterranean” and an alternative name “Sofia” is alsb used
in some accounts;

Challenger I — a pleasure boat registered in the United States of America and
owned by the Free Gaza Movement;

Challenger 2 — a pleasure boat registered in the United States of America and
owned by Free Gaza Movement; and

* M.V. Rachel Corrie — a cargo ship registered in Cambodia and owned by the Free
Gaza Movement. . - :

The participating organizations were obliged to purchase their own vessels since
commercial shipping companies were reluctant to allow their vessels to be chartered for the
planned flotilla. The services of the crew of the IHH-owned cargo ships were procured
through an agency in Istanbul.

82.  The Challenger 2 withdrew from the flotilla when it developed engine problems. Its

passengers were transferred to the Challenger | and the Mavi Marmara in international

waters. The departure of the Rachel Corrie from Ireland was delayed and it therefore was

unable to join the flotilla on 31 May. Since it was intercepted by the Israeli Navy on 6 June
in international waters and its passengers went through the same detention and deportation

process, the Mission has included this vessel in its investigation.

83.  In line with practice during previous trips, some passengers planned to board certain
ships in international waters after being ferried from Cyprus. However, at the last moment,
the Cypriot authorities refused to allow these passengers to embark. After a series of failed
attempts 1o embark from ports in the south of the island, some passengers were able to
embark from the port of Famagusta.

(c) Preparation of the Flotilla

84.  The participating organizations in the flotilla were loosely bound together by a nine-
point agreement, entitled “Points of Unity”, delincating the points of common purpose
shared by all participants including their commitment to resist interception only through the
use of non-violent means. According to the Free Gaza Movement, a steering commitiee,
made of representatives of the participant organizations, was set up in each vessel.

85. Individuals with some forty different nationalities joined the flotilla. Each
organization applied its own criteria in selecting who should join the various vessels. There
was no unified protocol across all participating organizations to register prospective
passengers using a single signed form, although individual organizations did require
applications to be filled out and a screening and selection process took place. Many of the
participants interviewed did not have specific skills or qualifications for humanitarian work.
Some organizations said that they selected participants on the basis of their qualifications
(for example, medical doctors), status as people of influence (parliamentarians, authors) as
well as their ability to resist provocation. Same organizers expressed a preference for
peaple who were known to them.

86. The mission’s attention was drawn to allegations that one of the passengers on the
ship, who had logistical responsibilities with regard to the cargo on the Mavi Marmara, was

21
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convicted and served a term of imprisonment for his involvement in the 1996 hijacking of a
Russian ferry boat. The hijackers were demanding the release of Chechen prisoners at the
time.*

87.  Participants raised money within their communities for the trip and also solicited
cash donations which would be given directly to the population of Gaza.

B8.  There was stringent security surrounding the Mavi Mamara in the port of Antalya
and all items taken on board were checked. Passengers and their luggage were subjected to
security checks similar to those found in airports before boarding, including body searches
The passengers who were transferred from the Challenger | onto the Mavi Marmara on the
ocean were subjected to the same security checks.

89.  Similar meticulous security checks were carried out on passengers onboard the
Eleftheri Mesogios at the port in Greece. The Svendoni was primarily carrying passengers
but also had on board a few medical items, including an ultra-sound machine, which had
been donated. The boat’s captain personally checked the machine and the boat to confirm
that there were no weapons or similar items on board. Witnesses also said that the cargo
onboard the Rachel Corrie was checked by three independent authorities and sealed before
it left Ireland. The seals remained intact when the ship was boarded by the Israelis.

90. Testimony did not show a clear logistical plan on how the large amounts of

humanitarian aid being carried by the cargo ships in the flotilla would be unloaded in Gaza

given the limited port facilities in Gaza. One witness said that he understood that IHH

workers already in Gaza were preparing cranes to off-load the cargo into smaller boats.

Another witness confirmed this plan and said that the Eleftheri Mesogios itself had a crane.
(d)  Planned course and destination of the Flotilla .

91,  The vessels participating in the flotilla to Gaza departed from different ports at
different dates, as shown below and made for an agreed rendezvous peint in international
waters, approximately 40 nautical miles south of Cyprus. The following vessels proceeded
to the rendezvous as follows:

14 May 2010 Gazze | departs. from Istanbul to Iskenderun

18 May 2010 Rache! Corrie departs Greenore Port, Ireland bound for Malta. It had
initially left Dundalk on 14 May but stopped for repairs.

22 May 2010 Mavi Marmara, departs from Istanbul to Antalya, Turkey
22 May 2010 Gazze | departs Iskenderun towards Gaza .

24 May 2010 Defne Y departs from Istanbul

24 May 2010 Elftheri Mesogios departs Piraeus, Greece

25 May 2010 Mavi Marmara arrives in Antalya, Turkey

25 May 2010 Sfendoni departs Piracus, Greece (then makes an intermediary stop in
Rhodes).

28 May 2010 Mavi Marmara departs Antalya, Turkey.

29 May 2010 Challenger | and Challenger II, depart from Crete; Rachel Corrie
arrives in Malta. : : '

5 Report from the Meir Amit Intelligence and Terrorism Information Center, Israel, 26 August 2010.
http://www.terrorism-info org,il/malam_multimedia/English/eng_n/pdffipc_c119 pdf
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30 May 2010 The six vessels congregate at a meeting point to the south of Cyprus;
Rachel Corrie departs Malta.

92.  Embarkation documents for the vessels leaving Turkey gave Gaza as the official
destination, although customs documents stated the destination as Lebanon since the
computer system did not include Gaza as a designated port of entry. Some crew members
interviewed from certain boats said that they understood the intention to be 1o sail first to
Egypt and then enter Gaza waters from the west.

- 93. The flotilla commenced its journcy towards Gaza at 1554 hours on 30 May 2010
from the position approximately sixty-five nautical miles west of the coast of Lebanon.

{e) Israeli advance plans to intercept the Flotilla

94.  According to the Israel Chief of Defence Staff, the Israeli authorities leaned of
planned flotilla in early February 2010 and understood that its intention was to break the
blockade. Diplomatic efforts began immediately to prevent the flotilla from sailing and
contingency plans began to be formulated. Formal initial orders to undertake preparations
to intercept’the flotilla were issued in mid-April and by 12 May a mission plan had been
developed which was approved by the Israeli Chief of General Staff on 13 May 2010.

95. On 13 May 2010, the Isracli Chief of General Staff sent 2 letter to the Defence
Minister and Prime Minister setting out options for dealing with the flotilla, including the
military option of commandeering and impounding the ships and detaining the passengers.
A further evaluation was made on 26 May and the Defence Minister formally authorised
the operation. Extensive training and planning was undertaken, including the setting up of 2
processing centre for detainees at the Port of Ashdod. .

96.  According to information available to the Mission, the Israeli forces deployed to
intercept the flotilla included a number of corvettes and missile boats, helicopters, zodiacs,
surveillance aircraft and possibly two submarines. Soldiers from the “Shayetet 13™ special
naval forces unit took part in the operation. 'I‘heoperwonwasgwmdmecodcme
“Operation Sea Breeze™ or “Operation Sky Winds™.

97. Advanced identification and surveillance of specific passengers by Israeli
intelligence forces took place, as indicated by a laminated booklet, recovered from the
possessions of one of the captured Israeli soldiers which contained the names and
photographs of specific high profile individuals on each of the six vessels as well as
photographs of each vessel. One passenger was able to confirm that the photograph of her
included in the booklet was taken just a few days before the flotilla sailed. Advance
surveillance is confirmed by evidence attributed to Defence Minister Ehud Barak before the
Turkel Committee which indicated that specific orders were taken “1o continue intelligence
tracking of the flotilla organizers, with an emphasis on the possibility that amongst the
passengers in the flotilla there would be terror elements who would attempt to harm Israeli
forces.™*

() Preparations to defend the vessels in the event of an attempt to board

98. It is clear to the Mission that, as the flotilla was assembling off Cyprus, participants
became aware of the full extent of Israeli plans to intercept, board and commandeer the
ships. Details of the Israeli plans had been published in an Israeli newspaper. Many
passengers said that, prior to this point, they believed that the Israelis would try to block the
path of the flotilla and force it to divert, but they did not imagine that they would seek to

“ Testimony of Ehud Barak, Mmister of Defence, Turkel Committee: Public Commission of Inquiry.
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_board the vessels by force. This belief persisied with many less-experienced passengers
right up to the moment of the interception, notwithstanding the precedent of the "Spirit of
Humanity™ in 2009. Many passengers told the Mission that they did not really believe that
the Israclis would attempt to board until the first boats approached the Mavi Marmara on
the morning of 31 May.

Preparation and planning on the Mavi Marmara

99.  The full realisation that the Israclis were serious about commandeering the flotilla
spread through the passengers on the Mavi Marmara during the course of 30 May. There is

~ clear evidence that some peoplc on board the Mavi Marmara, including senior THH leaders,
were prepared actively to defend the ship against any boarding attempt. Video gvidence
shows a meeting of about fifty 1o a hundred passengers on the ship on 30 May at which the
IHH President and a number of other prominent passengers spoke with some bravado about
preventing an Isracli takeover of the ship. The pressure of the water hoses was seen being
tested on the decks the day before the interception.

100. Following radio communication with the Isracli Navy and the sightings of the [sraeli
vessels, it became apparent that a boarding of the ship was an imminent reality. Passengers
were instructed to put on their life jackets. Although there does not seem to have been a
coordinated plan involving all passengers, some individuals grouped together with the
intention to defend the ship. There is little evidence of any unified command to coordinate
the defence of the ship.

101. During the night of 30 to 31 May, some passengers took clectric tools from the
ship’s workshop, which was not kept locked and sawed sections of railings into lengths of
approximately one and a half metres, apparently for use as weapons. Lengths of metal
chains from between the railings were also removed. When the ship’s crew discovered this,
the tools were confiscated and locked in the radio room on the bridge. A number of the
passengers were also provided with gas masks 1o counter the effects of tear gas. However,
the Mission notes that the ship’s standard fire-fighting equipment would have included
breathing apparatus. Furthermore, the fact that some passengers engaged in last minute
efforts 1o fashion rudimentary weapons shortly prior 1o the interception confirms the
findings of the Mission that no weapons were brought on board the ship.

Preparation and planning on the Challenger 1, Sfendoni, Eleftheri Mesogios and Rachel
Corrie '

102, Passengers and crew on the Challenger | underwent training in passive resistance
techniques, non-violence and what to do if detained in Israel (including contacting a lawyer
before embarkation). Witnesses said discussions took place in advance amongst the
passengers on how to respond 1o an Israeli attempt to board the ship during which the crew
had insisted that there should be no attempts to repel boarders with physical force. The
captain and crew opposed a suggestion that access to the bridge should be blocked, as it
was feared this would incense the soldiers. The intention, according to witnesses, was to
show a symbolic resistance to the soldiers sufficient to demonstrate that the boarding was
unwanted. The planned response to a boarding of the Challenger | was in part informed by
the experience of some of the passengers on previous boats which had been intercepted by
the Israelis.

103. Witnesses aboard the Svendoni and the Eleftheri Mesogios confirmed similar
discussions aboard their vessels. On the Eleftheri Mesogios, it was also decided that water
hoses could be misconstrued as weapons and hence should not be used. On the Svendoni,
passengers intended 10 sit on the decks and slow down any attempt (o take control of the
bridge t } 5 2
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104. The passengers on board the Rachel _Com‘e agreed and notified the Israelis before
boarding that no resistance would be offered to the Israeli forces.

Preparation and planning on the Gazze | and Defne Y

105. There is no information to suggest that any specific preparations were made by the
crew or passengers of Gazzel and Defne Y to defend against a possible boarding.

B. The interception of the Gaza flotilla by the Israeli Navy on 31 May 2010

1. Factual Description and Findings
106.  The Mission found the following facts to have been established to its satisfaction.

(a)  Contacts between the Israeli Navy and the vessels of the flotilla

107. The flotilla left the rendezvous point at 1554 hours on 30 May 2010 and proceeded

" in a south-westerly direction on course 222 degrees. This course was altered to 185 degrees,
approximately due south, at 2330 hours upon drawing level with the coast of Israel and in
order to maintain a course roughly parallel to the coast. The flotilla maintained a distance of
70 nautical miles from the coast since a NAVTEX (Navigational Telex) advisory had
warned that the Israeli military were conducting exercises up to 68 nautical miles from the
coast.

108. The first radio contact with the Israeli Navy was at approximately 2230 hours. Each
vessel was contacted by the Isracli Navy, one after the other, on Channel 16 and requested
to switch to an alternative channel. Each vessel refused to switch. in order that the
conversation could be monitored by all shipping. The Israeli Navy requested each vessel to
identify itself and state its destination. [t then warned each vessel, with some variations, it
was approaching an area of hostilities which is under a naval blockade, that the Gaza
maritime area is closed to all vessels and that they must change course to deliver their
supplies to the Port of Ashdod in Israel. In some of the messages, the captain of each vessel
was wammed that he would be held personally responsible for any consequences of a failure
to comply with the Israeli request. The Israeli Navy’s contacts were similar to those in
relation to previous Free Gaza Movement efforts to enter Gaza by sea.

109. In response, the captains of the various vessels stated that their destination was Gaza
and the purpose was to deliver humanitarian aid. They also asserted that the Israeli forces
did not have the right to order the vessels to change course and that the blockade referred to .
was illegal. A representative of the Free Gaza Movement spoke to the Israelis on behalf of
the whole flotilla, reiterating that the passengers were unarmed civilians delivering
humanitarian aid and that none of the ships that should be considered as any form of threat
to Israel. At no stage was a request made by the Israeli Navy for the cargo to be inspected.
Contacts with the Israeli Navy continued until around 0200 hours when communication
equipment was jammed by the Israeli forces, cutting them off to all external
communications. However, the vessels in the flotilla were able to maintain contact with one
another via handheld two-way radios.

110. In early June 2010, audio recordings were released by the Israeli authorities of
apparent exchanges between the Isracli Navy and the Defne Y which included insulting
references by unknown persons referring to ‘Auschwiiz’ and the 11 September 2001 attack
on the World Trade Centre in New York. However, the Mission is not satisfied that these
recordings are authentic, nor has the Israeli government made this material available to the
Mission for appropriate examination. The Mission was given positive evidence that no such
statements were made by anyone involved in communications on the flotilla.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

StateDept008857



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905417 Date: 12/31/2015

A/HRCNS21

111.  The crew and passengers of the six vessels became visually aware of the presence of
Isracli naval vessels some time afler the initial communications, between 2300 hours and
- midnight, both through sightings and two-way radio communication between the vessels.
The larger Isracli ships and helicopters came into view of the crew of the vessels at
approximately 0100 hours on 31 May. Similar srghung.-. were made by other vessels in the
flotilla at around the same time.

(b)  Events on board the M.V. Mavi Marmara®

(i) Initial attempt 1o board the Mavi Marmara from the sea

112.  Isracli zodiac boats made a first attempt to board the Mavi Marmara from the sea
shortly before. 0430 hours. Several zodiac boats approached the ship at the stemn from both
the port and starboard sides. The approach was accompanied by the firing of non-lethal
weaponry onto the ship, including smoke and stun grenades, tear-gas and paintballs. Plastic
bullets may also have been used at this stage: however, despitc some claims that live
ammunition was also fired from the zodiac boats, the Mission is not satisfied that this was
the case. The smoke and tear gas were not effective due to the strong sea breeze and later
due to the downdraft from helicopters.

113.  The Israeli forces attempted to board the ship through attaching ladders to the hull.

engaged in efforts to repel the attempted boarding using the ship's water hoses™
and the throwing of various items at the beats including chairs, sticks, a box of plates and
other objects that were readily to hand. This initial attempt to board the ship proved
unsuccessful. It is the view of the Mission that the Israeli forces should have re-evaluated
their plans when it became obvious that putting their soldiers on board the ship may lead to
civilian casualties.

(ii) Landing of soldiers from helicopters onto the Mavi Marmara

114. Just minutes afier soldiers from the zodiac boats had made initial unsuccessful
- attempts to board, the first helicopter approached the ship at approximately 0430 hours,
hovering above the top deck. At this point between 10 and 20 passengers were located in
- the central area of the top deck, although this number increased as other passengers learned
of events on the top deck. The Isracli forces used smoke and stun grenades in an attempt to
clear an area for the landing of soldiers. The first rope that was let down from the helicopter
was taken by passengers and tied it to a part of the top deck and thereby rendered
ineffective for the purpose of soldiers’ descent. A second rope was then let down from the

" For the purposes of this report, the following terms are used to describe the various decks of the Mavi
Marmara: Top Deck — the roof of the ship where the satellite tower and funnel are located, Bridge
Deck - the deck below the Tep Deck which gives access to the Bridge, Bow Deck ~ lowest open deck
with acoess to the front of the ship. Live television broadcasts were made from an open deck area at

" the back of the Bridge Deck.

' 1t is worth noting that in 2ccordance with the International Maritime Organization's circular
*Guidance to ship owners and ship operators, shipmasters and crews on preventing and suppressing
acts of piracy and armed robbery against ships’ from Junc 2009, the use of water hoses is
recommended as a means to prevent an attempted boarding by pirates and armed robbers. IMO
Circular Msc. 1/Circ. 1334, date 23 June 2009, Annex, para. 57 states as follows: “The use of water
hoses should also be considered though they may be difficult to tramn if evasive manocuvring is also
taking place. Water pressures of 80 Ib per square inch and above have deterred and repulsed attackers.
Not only does the attacker have to fight against the jet of water but the flow may swamp his/her boat
and damage engines and electrical systems. Special fittings for training hoses could be considered
which would also provide protection for the hose operator. A number of spare fire hoses could be
rigged and tied down to be pressurized at short notice if a potential attack is detected "
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helicopter and the first group of soldiers descended. The Mission does not find it plausible
that soldiers were holding their weapons and firing as they descended on the rope.
However, it has concluded that live ammunition was used from the helicopter onto the top
deck prior to the descent of the soldiers.

115. With the available evidence it is difficult 1o delineate the exact course of events on

the top deck between the time of the first soldier descending and the Israeli forces securing

control of the deck. A fight ensued between passengers and the first soldiers to descend

onto the top deck that resulted in at least two soldiers being pushed down onto the bridge

deck below, where they were involved in struggles with groups of passengers who

attempted to take their weapons. The equipment jacket of at least one soldier was removed

as he was pushed over the side of the deck. A number of weapons were taken from the

soldiers by passengers and thrown into the sea: one weapon, & 9mm pistol was unloaded by
a passenger, 2 former US Marine, in front of witnesses and then hidden in another part of

the ship in an attempt to retain evidence.

116. A number of the passengers on the top deck fought with the soldiers using their fists,
sticks, metal rods and knives.® At least one of the soldiers was stabbed with a knife or other
sharp object. Witnesses informed the Mission that their objective was to subdue and disarm
the soldiers so that they could not harm anyone. The Mission is satisfied on the evidence
that at least two passengers on the bridge deck also used handheld catapults to propel smalil
projectiles at the helicopters. The Mission has found no evidence to suggest that any of the
passengers used fircarms or that any firearms were taken on board the ship. Despite
requests, the Mission has not received any medical records or other substantiated
information from the Israeli authorities regarding any firearm injuries sustained by soldiers
participating in the raid. Doctors examined the three soldiers taken below decks and no
firearm injuries were noted. Further, the Mission finds that the Israeli accounts so
inconsistent and contradictory with regard to evidence of alleged firearms injuries to Israeli
soldiers that it has to reject it.”

(iii)  Deaths of nine passengers and wounding of at least 50 other passengers

117. During the operation to secure control of the top deck, the Israeli forces landed
soldiers from three helicopters over a fifleen-minute period.” The Isracli forces used
paintballs, plastic builets and live ammunition, fired by soldiers from the helicopter above
and soldiers who had landed on the top deck. The use of live ammunition during this period
resulted in fatal injuries to four passengers,” and injuries to at least nineteen others,
fourteen with gunshot wounds. Escape points to the bridge deck from the top deck were
narrow and restricted and as such it was very difficult for passengers in this area to avoid

# The Mission has found no evidence of knives being taken on board by passengers except for one
traditional ceremonial knife. However, the Mavi Marmara had six kitchens, each of which was
stocked with usual culinary knives.

™ In his testimony to the Turkel Committes on |1 August 2010, Chief of General Staff Ashkenazi refers
to one soldier being “shot in his abdomen by one of the activists™ and that “in the course of the battle,
five soldiers are wounded by stabbings, blows and shooting.” However, at the Special Sitting of the
Human Rights Council on | June 2010 Ambassador Aharon Leshno Yaar, Permanent Representative
of Israel 1o the United Nations, Geneva stated that passengers “shot two Israeli soldiers™. in contrast,
n the State's Response at the Habeas Corpus hearing on 2 June 2010, no specific reference is made to
any Israch soldiers being shot.

™ In his testimony to the Turkel Commuttee on 11 August 2010, Chief of General Staff Ashkenazi stated
that the first helicopter carried 15 soldiers, the second helicopter camried 12 soldiers and the third
helicopter carried 14 soldiers.

™ Fahri Yaldiz, Furkan DoBan, [brahim Bilgen and Ali Haydar Bengi.
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being hit by live rounds. At least one of those killed was using a video camera and not
involved in any of the fighting with the soldiers. The majority of gunshot wounds reccived
by passengers were to their upper torsos in the head, thorax, abdomen and back. Given the
relatively small number of passengers on the top deck during the incident, the Mission is
driven to the conclusion that the vast majority were in receipt of gunshot wounds.

118. Israeli soldiers continued shooting at passengers who had already been wounded,
with live ammunition, soft baton charges (beanbags) and plastic bullets. Forensic analysis
demonstrates that two of the passengers killed on the top deck received wounds compatible
with being shot at close range while lying on the ground: Furkan Dogan received a bullet in
the face and [brahim Bilgen received a fatal wound from a soft baton round (beanbeg) fired
at such close proximity to his head that parts such as wadding penctrated his skull entered
his brain. Furthermore, some of the wounded were subjected 1o further violence including
being hit with the butt of a weapon, being kicked in the head, chest and back and being
verbally abused. A number of the wounded passengers were handcuffed and then left
unattended for some time before being dragged to the front of the deck by their arms or
legs.

119. Once the Isracli forces had secured control of the top deck they undertook measures
to move down to the bridge deck below in order to take over the ship's bridge and thus take
control of the ship. In relation to this operation, a series of shooting incidents occurred
centred on the portside doorway which gives access to the main stairwell on the bridge
deck. This door is near to the hatch and ladder, which allows access from the top deck to
the bridge deck.

120. Israeli soldiers fired live ammunition both from the top deck at passengers on the
bridge deck below and after they had moved down to the bridge deck. At least four
passengers were killed,” and at least nine injured (five with firearms injuries) during this
phase. None of the four passengers who were killed, including a photographer who at the
time of being shot was engaged in taking photographs and was shot by an Israeli soldier
positioned on the top deck above, posed any threat to the Isracli forces. There was
considerable live fire from Israeli soldiers on the top deck and a number of passengers were
injured or killed whilst trying to take refuge inside the door or assisting other to do so.
Wounded passengers were brought into the ship through the stairwell and through the
ship's bridge room and were helped downstairs where they could be given some form of
. medical treatment by doctors and others on board.

121. One witness described the circumstances in which one passenger was killed on the
bridge deck: i

| saw two soldiers on top of the roof standing there holding their guns down
something on the roof that | couldn’t see. There were two guys hidden undemeath a
walkway of the ship to the right hand side and | was screaming at them not to move.
The two passengers were below the soldiers. They could not see the soldiers and the
soldiers could not see them while they were hidden under the walkway. Then the
©  guys moved oul making themselves visible as they tried to run towards the metal
door. One man made it to open the door and got inside. The other man must have
been shot. | think he was shot in the head from the way he looked, he wasn't moving
at all. He was twenty or thirty metres away from me. When the second man got shot,
b the first man opened the door and using it as a shield tried to reach out for the
second man. He managed to reach him and was pulling him by his right arm. |
couldn’t see any blood, but he wasn't moving at all.

™ Cevdet Kiliglar, Cengiz Songlr, Cengiz Akytz and Cetin Topquoglu.
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122. A group of up to twenty passengers, some holding sticks and rods and wearing pas
masks, were located on or around the stairwell inside the ship. One passenger standing just
inside the door was shot through the broken porthole in the door by a soldier standing a few
metres away on the bridge deck outside.

123. During the shootings on the bridge deck and as it became apparent that a large
number of passengers had become injured, Bulent Yildirim, the President of IHH and one
of principal organisers of the flotilla, removed his white shirt which was then used as a
white flag to indicate a surrender. This does not-appear to have had any effect and live
firing continued on the ship.

124. Isracli forces moved down to the bridge deck and moved rapidly to take over the

bridge room towards the front of the ship. The doorway and windows of the bridge room

came under fire and the ship’s captain ordered the ship's engines to be cut. Israeli soldiers
entered the bridge room through the door and broken window. The crew were made to lie

on the ground at gunpoint. The captain remained standing but was held at gunpoint.

(iv)  Shootings at the bow deck, the release of the Israeli soldiers and end of the operation

125. During the initial fighting on the top deck three Israeli soldiers were takeh under
control and brought inside the ship. While some passengers wished to harm the soldiers,
other passengers ensured that they were protected and able to receive rudimentary medical
treatment from doctors on board. Two of the soldiers had received wounds to the abdomen.
One of the soldiers had a superficial wound to the abdomen, caused by a sharp object,
which penetrated to the subcutaneous tissue. None of the three soldiers had received
gunshot injuries, according to doctors who examined them. All three soldiers were in a state
of shock and were suﬁ‘m‘ng from cuts, bruises and blunt force trauma.

126. As the seriousness of incidents on the outer decks became apparent, there was
growing concern among some of the flotilla organisers that holding the captured [sracli
soldiers may have serious implications for the sccurity of all passengers on board.™ It was

" decided that the soldiers should be released and they were taken to the bow of the lower
deck. Once on the bow deck two of the soldiers jumped into the sea and were picked up by
Israeli boats. The third soldier did not jump and was rapidly joined by Israeli soldiers who
came down from the top deck.

127. At least four passengers were injured on the bow of the ship, both before and around
the time that the Isreeli soldiers were released. At least two passengers received wounds
from live ammunition, while others received injuries from soft baton charges, including one
_doctor who was tending to injured passengers.

128. The lIsraeli forces stated that the active phase of the Isracli forces operation
concluded at 0517 hours,™ once the ship was under their control and the three soldiers were
released. During the 45-50 minute operation, nine passengers were killed, more than 24
passengers had received serious injuries caused by live ammunition and a large number of
other passengers had received injuries caused by plastic rounds, soft baton charges (bean-
bags) and other means.

% .

It also appears that the Israeli forces were planning to enter the ship's cabins in order to locate the
three soldiers' In his testimony to the Turkel Committee on 11 August 2010, COGS Ashkenazi stated
* thist at the time when the israeli forces spotted the three soldiers on the bow deck” “The force
commander [was preparing] lo rush the passengers’ arca in order 10 locate the missing soldiers.”
" As siated by COGS Ashkenazi in his testimony to the Turkel Committee on 11 August 2010.
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Deaths occurring on the Tap Deck (roof)
Furkan Dogan

Furkan Dogan, a nineteen-year old with dual Turkish and United States citizenship, was on
the central area of the top deck filming with a small video camera when he was first hit
with live fire. It appears that he was lying on the deck in a conscious, or semi-conscious,
state for some time. It total Furkan received five bullet wounds, to the face, head, back
thorax, left leg and foot. All of the entry wounds were on the back of his body, except for
the face wound which entered to the right of his nose. According to forensic analysis,
tattooing around the wound in his face indicates that the shot was delivered at point blank
range., Furthermore, the trajectory of the wound, from bottom to top, together with a vital
abrasion to the left shoulder that could be consistent with the bullet exit point, is compatible
with the shot being received while he was lying on the ground on his back. The other
wounds were not the result of firing in contact, near contact or close range, but it is not
otherwise possible to determine the exact firing range. The wounds to the leg and foot were
most likely received in a standing position.

lbrahim Bilgen

Ibrahim Bilgen, a 60 year old Turkish citizen, from Siirt in Turkey, was on the top deck and
was one of the first passengers to be shot. He received a bullet wound to the chest, the
trajectory of which was from above and not at close range. He had a further two bullet
wounds to the right side of the back and right buttock, both back to front. These wounds
would not have caused instant death, but he would have bled to death within a short time
without medical attention. Forensic evidence shows that he was shot in the side of the head
with a soft baton round at such close proximity and that an entire bean bag and its wadding
penetrated the skull and lodged in the brain. He had a further bruise on the right flank
consistent with another beanbag wound. The wounds are consistent with the deceased
initially being shot from soldiers on board the helicopter above and receiving a further
wound to the head while lying on the ground, already wounded.

Fahri Yaldiz

Fahri Yaldiz, a 42 year old Turkish citizen from Adiyaman, received five bullet wounds,
-| one to the chest, one to the left leg and three to the right leg. The chest wound was caused
by a bullet that entered near the left nipple and hit the heart and lungs before exiting from
the shoulder. This injury would have caused rapid death,

Ali Heyder Bengi

According to the pathology report, Ali Heyder Bengi, a 38 year old Turkish citizen from
Diyarbakir, received six bullet wounds (one in the chest, one in the abdomen, one in the
right arm, one in the right thigh and two in the left hand). One bullet lodged in the chest
area. None of the wounds would have been instantly fatal, but damage to the liver caused
bleeding which would have been fatal if not stemmed. There are several witness accounts
which suggest that Israeli soldiers shot the deceased in the back and chest at close range
while he was lying on the deck as a consequence of initial bullet wounds.

Deaths occurring on the Bridge Deck, portside
Cevdet Kiliglar

Cevdet Kiliglar, a 38 year old Turkish citizen from Istanbul, was on the Mavi Marmara, in
his capacity as a photographer employed by THH. At the moment he was shot he was
standing on the bridge deck on the port side of the ship near to the door leading to the main
stairwell and was attempting to photograph [sracli soldiers on the top deck. According to
the pathology reports, he received a single bullet to his forehead between the eyes. The
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bullet followed a horizontal trajectory which crossed the middle of the brain from front 10
back. He would have died instantly.

Cengiz Akyiz and Cengiz Songiir

41 year old Cengiz Akyiiz from Hatay and 46 year old Cengiz Songilr from Izmir, both
Turkish citizens, were injured on the bridge deck in close succession by live fire from
above. They had been sheltering and were shot as they attempted to move inside the door
leading to the stairwell. Cengiz Akyiiz received a shot to the head and it is probable that he
died instantly.

The pathology report shows four wounds: to the neck, face, chest and thigh. Cengiz Songir
received a single bullet to the upper central thorax below the neck, shot from a high angle,
which lodged in the right thoracic cavity injuring the heart and aorta. Unsuccessful efforts
were made by doctors inside the ship to resuscitate him through heart massage.

Cetin Topguogiu

Cetin Topguoglu, a 54 year old Turkish citizen from Adana had been involved in helping to
bring injured passengers inside the ship to be treated. He was also shot close to the door on
the

bridge deck. He did not die instantly and his wife, who was also on board the ship, was with
him when he died. He was shot by three bullets. One bullet entered from the top the soft
tissues of the right side of the back of the head, exited from the neck and then re-entered
into the thorax. Another bullet entered the left buttock and lodged in the right pelvis. The
third entered the right groin and exited from the lower back. There are indications that the
victim may have been in a crouching or bending position when this wound was sustained.
Deaths and seriously wounded occurring in unknown locations

Necdet Yildirim _

The location and circumstances of the shooting and death of Necdet Yildirim, a 31 year old
Turkish citizen from Istanbul, remain unclear, He was shot twice in the thorax, once from
the front.and once from the back. The trajectory of both bullets was from top to bottom, He
also received bruises consistent with plastic bullet impact

Wounding of Ugur Suleyman Soylemez (in a coma)

The serious nature of wounds to UBur Suleyman S8ylemez, a 46 year old Turkish citizen
from Ankara, which include at least one bullet wound to the head, have left the victim in a
coma in an Ankara hospital. He remains in a critical condition with a serious head injury.

(v)  Treatment of injured on-the Mavi Marmara

129. Whilst the Isracli operation was still under way, efforts were made to tend to
wounded passengers inside the ship by other passengers, amongst whom were around 15
doctors, nurses and others with medical training, including an ophthalmologist and
orthopaedic specialist. Prior to the attack the doctors had met and agreed to use the ship's
small medical room, but there was no anticipated or preparation for the nature of injuries
that transpired. The limited medicines and lack of appropriate equipment made it very
difficult to properly treat wounded persons, particularly those who had received live fire
injuries and required immediate surgery. By the end of the Israeli operation more than thirty
persons were being-treated inside the cabins, primarily in the lower deck in makeshift
surgery areas, twenty of whom were in a critical condition.

130. The flotilla organisers and other passengers engaged in efforts o request the Israeli
forces to provide the necessary treatment to the wounded persons. One organiser used the
ship’s intercom to request assistance in Hebrew and persons also communicated directly
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through the cabin windows or by placing signs, written in English and Hebrew, in the
ship’s windows. These attempts proved unsuccessful and it was up to two hours before the
Israeli forces took out the wounded persons. However, the wounded were required to leave
the cabins themselves, or taken outside in a rough manner, without apparent concern for the
nature of their injuries and the discomfort that this would cause.

131. The wounded passengers were taken to the front of the top deck where they joined
other passengers injured during the operation on the top deck and where the bodies of
persons killed during the operation had been left. Wounded passengers, including persons
seriously injured with live fire wounds, were handcuffed with plastic cord handeuffs, which
were often tied very tightly causing some of the injured to lose sensitivity in their hands.
These plastic handcuffs cannot be loosened without being cut off, but can be tightened.
Many were also stripped naked and then had to wait some time, possibly as long as two-
three hours, before receiving medical treatment. Medical treatment was given-to a number
of wounded persons on the top deck by the Israeli forces.™

132.  Over several hours the wounded passengers were then airlified by Israeli forces
helicopters from the ship to hospitals in Israel.” However, some of the wounded remained
on board the Mavi Marmara, at least one of whom had injuries caused by live ammunition
and did not receive appropriate medical treatment until after the ship’s arrival at the port of
Ashdod in Israel many hours later. J

(vi)  Search and initial detention of Mavi Marmara passengers

133. All other passengers on the Mavi Marmara were taken one-by-one from the cabin
areas and onto the external deck areas and were searched, The vast majority of passengers,
including the ship’s captain and crew, were then handcuffed with plastic handcuffs and
forced to kneel on the various decks for some hours. Some women, elderly men and
persons from western countries were not handeuffed, or were temporarily handeuffed and
then uncuffed after a relatively short period of time and were then permitted to sit on the
benches. Most of those kneeling were drenched by water from the blades of the helicopter
and were thus also in wet clothing throughout this period and were very cold. Other
passengers exposed on open decks received serious sun-burn to their skin as a result of
many hours exposure: medical reports show that at least thirteen passengers received first-
degree burns as a consequence. During the course of the twelve-hour journey to the port of
Ashdod in Israel the passengers were brought-inside the ship and allowed to sit on the
available seating.

134, In the process of being detained, or while kneeling on the outer decks for several
hours, there was physical abuse of passengers by the Israeli forces, including kicking and
punching and being hit with the butts of rifles. One foreign correspondent, on board in his
professional capacity, was thrown on the ground and kicked and beaten before being
handcuffed. The passengers were not allowed to speak or to move and there were frequent
instances of verbal abuse, including derogatory sexual remarks about the female
passengers. Passengers were denied access to toilet facilities or made to wait for lengthy
periods before being escorted to the toilet and then forced to use the toilet with Isracli
soldiers watching and while handcuffed. Some passengers were in serious discomfort as a
result, while others used makeshift receptacles, such as plastic bottles and others still were

According 1o the testimony.of COGS Ashkenazi to the Turkel Committee on 11 August 2010, field
surgeries were performed on fourteen passengers on board the ship

According to the testimony of COGS Ashkenazi to the Turkel Committee on 11 August 2010, 31
wounded passengers and seven wounded Isracli soldiers were airlifted from the ship utilizing
“approximately 40 helicopter evacuations™ and all wounded had been evacuated by 1230 hours.
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forced to urinate on themselves. The Isracli forces also employed dogs and some
passengers received dog bite wounds. Some witnesses who suffer from chronic medical
conditions, such as diabetes or heart conditions, were not provided access to their required
medicines which were taken by Israeli soldiers.

135. The manner in which plastic handcuffs were anached to the wrists of passengers
caused severe pain and discomfort. There was widespread misuse of the handcuffs by the
Israeli soldiers who tightened the plastic handcuffs to an extent that caused pain, swelling, a
loss of blood circulation in the hands and the loss of sensitivity in their hands and fingers.
Most passengers who requested that the handcuffs be loosened were ignored or it resulted
in the handcuffs being further tightened. A number of passengers are still experiencing
medical problems related to the handcuffing three months later and forensic reports confirm
that at least fifty-four passengers had received injuries, transversal abrasions and bruises, as
a result of handcuffing on board the Mavi Mamara.

(c)  Evemts aboard the Challenger 1

136. Passengers and crew on the Challenger 1, the smallest and fastest vessel in the
flotilla, were able to witness the first moments of the assault on the Mavi Marmara. Once it
became apparent that the Israelis intended to commandeer the ships, the decision was made
for the Challenger 1 to accelerate out of the formation of the flotilla to allow more time for
the journalists aboard to transmit news of the assault to the outside world via the boat’s
" satellite internet connection which remained in operation, but also in the hope that at least
ong boat might still be able to reach Gaza. The boat was chased by one of the Isracli
corvette boats which it was unable to outrun. Eventually the starboard engine lost oil
pressure and the captain, concemned the Israelis might ram the boat, shut down the engines.

137. The boat was intercepted by two [sraeli boats and a helicopter. Passengers on the
board said that at least one stun grenade was launched at the boat by the Israclis before they
attempted to board. Passengers on the decks had decided in advance to employ passive
resistance techniques to resist symbolically the Israeli soldiers boarding the boat. The
passengers stood unarmed side-by-side blocking the path of the soldiers. Soldiers opened
fire with paintballs and rubber bullets as they boarded, hitting and injuring one woman in
the face with either a plastic bullet or & paintball, Another woman was bruised on her back
by from rubber bullets.

138. Once on board, the soldiers moved to take control of the fly bridge. Passengers
obstructing access were forcibly removed. On entering the fly bridge, the soldiers were met
with no resistance, but a female journalist sustained burns on her arms from an electroshock
weapon fired by an Israeli soldier. Witnesses said that the primary concern of the soldiers
seemed to be the confiscation of photographic equipment and media.

139. The passive resistance offered by the passengers was met with force. One woman's
head was hit against the deck of the boat and then stepped on by an Israeli soldier.
Passengers were handcuffed very tightly with plastic ties behind their backs, while the
woman injured in the face was left unattended.

140. Several passengers said that it was clear that the Isracli soldiers knew who was
onboard as they referred to some passengers by name. A plasticised booklet recovered from
a soldier on the Mavi Marmara and filmed identified specific passengers on several boats
with names and photographs including the Challenger 1.

141. One crew member observed that the soldiers were very young, seemed frightened
and that were initially poorly organized. Soldiers behaved aggressively from the outset
towards the passengers. Passengers were handcuffed with plastic ties and denied access to
the toilet. One elderly man was obliged to urinate in his clothes because he was refused
access to the toilet. There was an attempt to forcibly eject one woman from the boat into
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one of the zodiacs. Two women had hemp bags placed over their heads for an extended
period. The woman injured in the face in the initial stage of boarding was left unattended
for an extended period, even though there was an army medic on board. The physical
violence was described as “unwarranted and excessive”. No distinction was made between
activists and journalists, despite the presence of several well-respected international
journalists on board. :

142, The boat arrived in Ashdod at around 1100 hours on 31 May. Several passengers
joined arms to resist disembarkation, protesting that they had been brought to Israel against
their will from international waters. Two female passengers were handcuffed and forcibly
removed while a male passenger was threatened with an electroshock weapon at point
blank range. Passengers were led off the boat one-by-one accompanied by two Israeli
officers.

(d)  Events aboard the Sfendoni

143.  The operation to board the Svendoni took place simultaneously with the assault on
the Mavi Marmara. Soldiers were able to .climb directly on board in a straightforward
manner from zodiac boats without the need to use grappling irons or other equipment. Prior
to boarding a number of stun grenades, plastic bullets and paint balls were fired at the boat
from soldiers on the zodiacs: at least two passengers were hit, one on the back of the head.
According to a medical doctor on board, one of stun grenades landed in the confined space
of the bridge, injuring a number of people and causing damage to the hearing of one man.

144. Once aboard, the soldicrs proceceded to the bridge of the ship. The passengers had
planned to sit down on the decks of the boat to show passive resistance, but in the event the
plan was only partially implemented. Many of the passengers, including the elderly, stayed
below decks in the main lounge. On deck, passengers linked arms around the bridge. The
Israelis then proceeded to fire electroshock weapons at the protesting passengers to clear
access; a medical doctor, who was himself hurt in this way, later treated numerous
electrical burn injuries to passengers. When two [sraeli soldiers entered the bridge, one of
the crew grabbed the wheel tightly, protesting that the boat was in international waters, A
soldier hit him with the butt of his gun and in the ensuing scuffle the captain was kicked in
the back, punched several times in the face and received electric shock burns from an
electroshock weapon.

145. At one point after the boat was taken under control one passenger was roughly
treated and restrained at the hands and feet with plastic ties. He screamed in protest and
because the ties were too tight. At the insistence of a medical doctor, the handcuffs were
removed. The man then ran and jumped into the sea. The passenger was later picked up by
another boat. i

146. The Israeli forces took control of the boat and the passengers were made to sit down.
Some passengers were restrained with plastic ties for an initial period, but most were not.
The soldiers attempted to stop a medical doctor from treating the passengers’ injuries,
saying that the army medical officer on board would treat them. But since he was masked
and armed like the other soldiers, no passengers would consent to be treated by him. The
doctor said that they would have to shoot him to prevent him doing his job.

147, Passengers were searched one-by-one and taken to the main salon. Passengers said
that access to water and to the toilet was only possibly with difficulty after repeated
requests and not all passengers were granted access. Passengers were allowed to prepare
food which they refused to eat until an army cameraman ceased filming them for
propaganda reasons. Witnesses said that the soldiers were always aggressive and shouting
and pointing their guns, but otherwise no one was ill-treated or restrained. -
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(e)  Events aboard the Eleftheri Mesogios

148. Israeli forces boarded the Eleftheri Mesogios after 0430 hours, ccnchrrenlly with the
assault on the Mavi Marmara and Sfendoni. Soldiers boarded from three zodiac boats, using
grappling irons and rope ladders to climb the sides of the ship. Although barbed wire had
been placed around the ship, the soldiers were able to board relatively quickly.

149. The passengers did not engage in any pro-active resistance to the take-over of the
ship but used passive resistance methods, blocking access 1o the bridge with their bodies.
The Israeli forces used physical force, electroshock weapons, plastic bullets and paint balls
to clear the area. A number of passengers were injured, mcludmg one passenger whose leg
was fractured leg.

150. All the passengers and crew were handcuffed. Isracli soldiers confiscated their
passports and subjected them to body searches. Those who refused to cooperate were
roughly treated. According to a number of witnesses, some people who refused to surrender
their passports were assaulted, including one woman who was punched in the stomach and
one man who was wrestled to the ground by two soldiers, kicked and beaten. One passenger
said that the hand ties were too tight and when he asked for them to be loosened they were
instead tightened further.

151. Witnesses stated that the passengers were almost continuously filmed on video
cameras by the lsraeli forces. One passenger said that he felt this was being done
deliberately to humiliate the passengers and that this contributed directly to an elderly
passenger experiencing an anxiety attack.

(0 Events aboard the M.V. Gazze 1 and M.V. Defne Y

152. Israeli forces boarded the M.V. Gazze 1 from zodiacs boats sometime after 0530
hours. The crew and passengers on board offered no resistance and the Israeli forces took
control of the ship without incident. Passengers were ordered onto the deck while the ship
was searched with dogs and then later taken to the dining hall where they were body-
searched. During the eight-hour journey to Ashdod they were not handcuffed and were
provided with food.

153, Israeli forces boarded the M.V. Defne Y by fast rope from helicopters at
approximately 0530 hours. The crew and passengers on board offered no resistance and the
Israeli forces ook control of the ship without incident. They were then kept within the
cabins until they arrived in the port of Ashdod. No crew members or passengers were
handeuffed and the Israeli soldiers brought food from the kitchens for them to eat. One
passenger, a cameraman working for the IHH organisation, said that he was interrogated for
a five hour period and physically assaulted, in relation to a video tape that he had hidden.

(g)  Events aboard the M.V. Rachel Corrie on 5 June 2010

154. The Rachel Corrie was delayed in departing Ireland and stopped in Malta for
passengers to embark. The ship therefore was unable to join the rest of the flotilla at the
meeting point south of Cyprus. Nevertheless, it was intercepted by the Israeli forces and the
people on board went through similar experiences to those on the other ships. There was a
total of nine crew and eleven passengers on board including a number of high-profile public
figures.

155. The passengers aboard the Rachel Corrie, having learned of the interception of the
flotilla by satellite phone, unanimously decided to proceed to Gaza as planned as a mark of
respect for those who had died. The crew were consulted and also agreed to continue. A
press release was issued confirming the decision to continue.
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156. On 3 June, the Irish Government engaged in negotiations’ with the Government of
Israel to guarantee that the cargo of aid aboard the Rachel Corrie could be delivered to
Gaza if the ship diverted to the port of Ashdod. The passengers on the ship did not
participate in these negotiations and decided to reject the offer since their objective was not
only to deliver the aid but also to break what they considered the illegal siege of Gaza.

157. The ship continued its journey towards Gaza. The interception of the vessel followed
the precedent of the earlier interceptions, but without violence, on § June. A number of
Israeli naval vessels came into view and radio contact commenced at about 0630 hours. The
captain was informed that Gaza was a closed military zone and that the ship should not
proceed. The Rachel Corrie responded that it was a civilian ship delivering humanitarian
aid and that their cargo, which had been checked and sealed by the authorities in Ireland,
did not constitute a threat to Isracl,

158. The passengers on the ship noted with irritation that the Israelis continually referred
to the ship by its former name, the M. V. Linda. The ship had been renamed shortly before
leaving Ireland to commemorate an American woman, Rachel Corrie, who had been killed
by an Israeli bulldozer in the Gaza Strip in 2003,

159. When the Israelis wamed of their intention to board the vessel, the passengers
rejected Israel’s right to board since they were in international waters and did nol constitute
a threat but stated that there would be no violent resistance to & boarding. The ship's
communication capability was jammed. The engines were cut by the captain and, at around
1100 hours, zodiacs approached the ship and soldiers boarded in accordance with an agreed
procedure. The passengers and crew were gather amidships and sit with their hands
outstretched, while one man controlled the boat in the wheel house. Around 35 armed
soldiers, including three women, boarded in full riot gear. The boarding proceeded
peacefully, According to one witness, the ship was 35 nautical miles from Gaza at this
point.

160. The lead passenger, who had control of the ship just prior to the boarding, was
handcuffed and made to kneel at the back of the ship for approximately 45 minutes after
which he was placed with the crew. His wife was not allowed to see him during most of the
journey to Ashdod. The other passengers-had their passports checked, were searched and
then made to sit in the sun for several hours while the ship was searched. The ship was then
taken to Ashdod without incident.

161. The Isracli Chief of General Staff, testifying before the Turkel Committee, cited the
Rachel Corrie as an example of a humanitarian ship which had accepted to be diverted to
Ashdod in order that the aid could be delivered to the Gaza Strip by land. This contradicts
the assertion by passengers of the ship that they were boarded after protest and were taken
to Ashdod against their will.

2.  Legal Analysis of the use of force in intercepting the Gaza flotilla

(@) Excessive use of force and the right to life and to physical integrity

162. Anticle 6, paragraph | of the Intemational Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
states:

Every human being has the inherent right to life. This right shall be protected by
law. No one shall be arbitrarily deprived of his life.

This right is non-derogable. . i

163. lInsofar es the Israeli interception of the flotilla was unlawful—and the Mission
considers that it was unlawful—the use of force by the Israeli forces in seizing control of
the Mavi Marmara and other vessels was also prima facie unlawful since there was no legal
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basis for the Israeli forces to conduct an assault and interception in international waters.
Moreover, in undertaking these operations and regardless of the legality of the operation,
the Israeli forces were obliged to do so in accordance with the law, including Israel’s
international human rights obligations.

164. The Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials prescribes in Article 2 that “in
the performance of their duty, law enforcement officials shall respect and protect human
dignity and maintain and uphold the human rights of all persons”; and article 3 continues
“Law enforcement officials may use force only when strictly necessary and to the extent
required for the performance of their duty”. This article clearly determines that the use of
firearms is considered as an extreme measure and that whenever the lawful use of force and
firearms is unavoidable, law enforcement officials shall minimize damage and injury and
respect and preserve human life.

165. In boarding the Mavi Marmara, both from the sea and from the air, the [sraeli forces

. met a level of resistance from some of the passengers on board that was significant and, it
appears, unexpected. However, there is no available evidence to support the claim that any
of the passengers had or used firearms at any stage. In the initial phases of fighting with the
Israeli soldiers on the top deck, three Israeli soldiers were disarmed and taken inside the
ship. At this point, there may have been a justifiable belief of an immediate threat to life or
serious injury of certain soldiers which would have justified the use of firearms against
specific passengers.™

166. Principle 9 of the Basic Principles on the Use of Firearms by Law Enforcement
Officials stipulates that “Law enforcement officials shall not use firearms against persons
except in self-defence or defence of others against the imminent threat of death or serious
injury, to prevent the perpetration of a particularly serious crime involving grave threat to
life [...] and only when less extreme means are insufficient to achieve these objectives. In
any event, intentional lethal use of firearms may only be made when strictly unavoidable in
order to protect life.”

167. Nevertheless, throughout the operation to seize control of the Mavi Marmara,
including before the live fire restriction was eased, lethal force was employed by the Israeli
soldiers in a widespread and arbitrary manner which caused an unnecessarily large number
of persons to be killed or seriously injured. Less extreme means could have been employed
in nearly all instances of the Israeli operation, since there was no imminent threat to
soldiers; for example in relation to the operation to move down to the bridge deck and seize
control of the ship and the firing of live ammunition at passengers on the bow deck of the
ship. Even in a situation where three individual soldiers have been injured and detained, the
objective of freeing these soldiers does not legitimate the use of force outside applicable
international standards and soldiers must continue to respect and preserve life and to
minimize injury and damage. ’

168. In such circumstances the use of less extreme means, such as available less-lethal
weaponry, would have been sufficient to achieve the required objective as required by
Principle 4 of the Basic Principles on the Use of Firearms by Law Enforcement Officials.”

The Isracli Chief of Defence Staff is attributed with saying that the rules of engagement of the
soldiers made clear that live fire was initially only 10 be used in life-threatening situations and that
this restnction was only later eased in order to target protesters deemed to be violent in response to
unexpected level of violent resistance and the unknown whereabouts of some soldiers. IDF Chief of
General Staff, Gabi Ashkenazi's testimony 1o the Turkel Committee: Public Commussion to Examine
the Marilime incident of May 31, 2010, Session Number 4, 11 August 2010,

Law enforcement officials, in carrying out their duty, shall, as far as possible, apply non-violent
means before resorting to the use of force and firearms. They may use force and firearms only if other
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A well-trained force such as the Israeli Defence Force should have been able to
successfully contain a relatively small group of passengers armed with sticks and knives
and secure control of the ship without the loss of life or serious injury to either passengers
or soldiers.

169. A'large number of injured passengers received wounds to critical areas of the body
containing vital organs — the abdomen, thorax and head. Furthermore, a number of
passengers who were clearly not engaged in any activitics to resist the boarding by the
Israeli forces, including a number of joumnalists and persons who had been sheltering from
the fire, received injuries, including fatal injuries. It is apparent that no effort was made to
minimise injuries at certain stages of the operation and that the use of live fire was done in
an extensive and arbitrary manner. It is difficult not to conclude that, once the order to use
live fire had been given, no one was safe. Under the circumstances, it seems a matter of
pure chance that there were not more fatalities as a result. Principle 5 of the Basic
Principles on the Use of firearms by Law Enforcement Officials stipulates that “whenever
the lawful use of force and firearms is unavoidable, law enforcement officials shall: (a)
Exercise restraint in such use and act in proportion to the seriousness of the offence and the
legitimate objective to be achieved; and (b) Minimize damage and injury and respect and
preserve human life.”

170. The circumstances of the killing of at least six of the passengers were in a manner
consistent with an extra-legal, arbitrary and summary execution. Furkan Dogan and Ibrahim
Bilgen were shot at near range while the victims were lying injured on the top deck. Cevdet
Kiliglar, Cengiz Akyiiz, Cengiz Songiir and Getin Topguoglu were shot on the bridge deck
while not participating in activitics that represented a threat to any Isracli soldier. In these
instances and possibly other killings on the Mavi Marmara, Israeli forces carried out extra-
legal, arbitrary and summary executions prohibited by international human rights law,
specifically article 6 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights,*

171. It is apparent that a number of the passengers on the top deck were subjected to
further mistreatment while lying injured. This included physical and verbal abuse some
time after the operation to secure control of the deck had concluded. Furthermore these
. passengers were not provided with medical treatment for two to thres hours after the
cessation of the operation. Similarly injured passengers who were inside the ship at the end
of the operation of the Isracli forces were denied proper medical treatment for a similar
length of time despite frequent efforts by other persons on board, including flotilla
organizers, requesting such assistance to be provided. Other passengers suffering from
. chronic medical conditions were also denied access to their required essential medicines.
The Israeli forces failed to meet the requirement to provide proper medical treatment to all
those injured as rapidly as possible.” Furthermore, the use of firearms should have been
preceded by clear warnings of the intent to do so.”® While the circumstances of the initial
stages on the top deck may not have been conducive to the issuance of such warnings, later

means remain incffective or without any promase of achieving the intended resuit.
¥ See Principles 1 and 2 of the Principles on the Effective Prevention and Investigation of Extra-legal,
Arbitrary and Summary Executions.
" As set out in principle 4 (c) of the Basic Principles on the Use of fircarms by Law Enforcement
Officials states that law enforcement officials shall: “Ensure that assistance and medical aid are
rendered to any injured or affected persons at the earfiest possible moment”,
Pringiple 10 of the Basic Principles on the Use of firearms by Law Enforcement Officials stipulates
that “law enforcement officials shall identify themselves as such and give a clear warning of their
intent to use firearms, with sufficient time for the warning to be observed, unless to do so would
unduly place the law enforcement officials at risk or would create 2 risk of death or serious harm to
other persons, or would be clearly inappropmiate or pointless in the circumstances of the incident.”
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stages in the lsracli operation to secure control of the ship certainly were possible and
necessary.

172. The Mission is satisfied that much of the force used by the Isracli soldiers on board
the Mavi Marmara and from the helicopters was unnecessary, disproportionate, excessive
and inappropriate and resulted in the wholly avoidable killing and maiming of a large
number of civilian passengers. On the basis of the forensic and firearm evidence, at least six
of the killings can be characterised as extra-legal, arbitrary and summary executions. As
such, the conduct of the Israeli forces amounted to violations of the right to life and of the
right to physical integrity, as stipulated in articles 6 and 7 of the International Covenant on
Civil and Political Rights.

173. The Mission is also concerned with the nature of the force used by the Isracli forces
in the interception of the three further vessels in the flotilla: Challenger 1, Sfendoni and the
Eleftheri Mesogios. One each of the vessels some of the passengers merely used passive
resistance techniques — placing their bodies in the paths of the Israeli soldiers — as a
symbolic gesture in opposition to the respective boarding. However, in securing control of
these vessels the Israeli forces used significant force, including stun grenades, electroshock
weapons, soft-baton charges fired at close range, paintballs, plastic bullets and physical
force. This resulted in a number of injuries to passengers including burns, bruises,
hematomas and fractures. One passenger who was not participating in passive resistance
activities, a photo-journalist, received bumns from an electroshock weapon. The Mission has
found that the force used by the Isracli soldiers in intercepting the Challenger 1, the
Sfendoni and the Eleftheri Mesogios was unnecessary, disproportionate, excessive and
inppropriate, and amounted to violations of the right to physical integrity, s stipulated in
article 7 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

(b)  Right 1o liberty and security of person and treatment of detainees, including torture and
other cruel inhuman and degrading treatment or punishment

174. Article 9, paragraph | of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
states: R

Everyone has the right to liberty and security of person. No one shall be subjected to
arbitrary arrest or detention. No one shall be deprived of his liberty except on such
grounds and in accordance with such procedure as are established by law.
Since the Mission considers the Israeli interception of the flotilla was unlawful, the
detention of passengers on board each of the vessels was also prima facie unlawful.
175. The deprivation of the liberty of the passengers further meets the criteria for being .
arbitrary in nature in accordance with the definitions adopted by the United National
Working Group on Arbitrary Detention. Deprivation of liberty is considered category 1
arbitrary detention: “When it is clearly impossible to invoke any legal basis justifying the
deprivation of liberty [...]." )
176. The mass detention of more than 700 passengers and crew on board the six vessels
had no basis in law, was arbitrary in nature and is a violation of Article 9 of the
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

177.  Furthermore, no one on board the flotilla was informed of any reason for their
detention. Article 9, paragraph 2 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
states:

Anyone who is arrested shall be informed, at the time of arrest, of the reasons for his
arrest and shall be promptly informed of any charges against him.
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While detained on board the vessels of the flotilla, a period which lasted up to 12 hours, all

passengers should have been informed of why they were being subject to detention and the

natures of the specific charges being brought against them. This was not done and in some

instances passenger requests for such information were met with verbal abuse or physical

violence. As such, the concerned Israeli forces violated article 9 of the International '
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights.

178. During the period of detention on board the Mavi Marmara the passengers were
subjected to treatment that was cruel and inhuman in nature and which did not respect the
inherent dignity of persons who have been deprived of their liberty. This included a large
number of persons being forced to kneel on the outer decks in harsh conditions for many
hours, the physical mistreatment and verbal abuse inflicted on many of those detained, the
widespread unnecessarily tight handcuffing and the denial of access to basic human needs
such as the use of toilet facilities and provision of food. In addition there was a prevailing
climate of fear of violence that had a dehumanizing effect on all those detained on board.
On other vessels in the flotilla there was additional instances of persons being subjected to
similar severe pain and suffering, including a person being seriously physically abused for
refusing to provide his passport without a reczipt. Principle | of the Body of Principles for
the Protection of All Persons under Any Form of Detention or Imprisonment states: “All
persons under any form of detention or imprisonment shall be treated in a humane manner
and with respect for the inherent dignity of the human person.” In addition, Principle 6
states: “No person under any form of detention or imprisonment shall be subjected to
torture or to cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment. No circumstance
whatever may be invoked as a justification for torture or other cruel, inhuman or degrading
treatment or punishment.”

179. The Mission is particularly concerned with the widespread use of tight handcuffing
of passengers on board the Mavi Marmara in particular and to an extent of passengers on
board the Challenger 1, Sfendoni and the Eleftheri Mesogios. Numerous passengers
described the pain and suffering caused by being shackled by plastic handcuffs (also known
as ‘plasticuffs’) in an overly tight manner, frequently behind their backs, causing further
suffering. Many were experiencing neurological damage up to three months afier the events
of the flotilla. As has been highlighted, the manner in which handcuffs were used on
passengers on board the flotilla is consistent with the systematic use of handcuffs by the
Israeli forces in a manner that causes pain and injury.” The Mission is satisfied that the

In June 2009 the Public Committee Against Torture in Israel (PCATI) published a report on the use of
handcuffs by the Israeli Defence Forces entitled “Shackling as & Form of Torture and Abuse”. PCATI
finds that: “Soldiers routinely handcuff detainees in a painful and injurious manner from the moment
of their arrest and through their transfer to the vanous interrogation facilities. The systematic nature
of the practice suggests disregard for the suffering caused to detainees and perhaps even deliberate
intent to cause pain. This treatment often breaks the detsinee’s spirit and “softens™ them up before
they arrive for interrogation at the GSS facility. This is perticularly true in the case of minors. The
systemic use of the cuffing position as explained above may also reflect the collective punishment
and intimidation of security detainees in general Every month PCATI receives dozens of complaints
~descnibing this form of shackimg. Over the past year alone, PCATI has documented 574 such cases.
Though this figure is surely only the tip of the iceberg, 1t may indicate the scope of the phenomenon.”
Furthermore, an expert medical opinion by neurological specialist Dr. Hannah-Bettina Steiner-
Birmanns is annexed to the report. Dr. Steiner-Birmanns states that: *Tight handcufls — such as
narrow and ngid plastic handcuffs tightened so that there is no space between the handcuffs and the
detainee’s hands — press strongly against the wrists. The handcuffs may remain on the detainee’s
hands for protracted periods. In such conditions the handcuffs can cause abrasions and damage 1o soft
tissues, skin bruises and even bone fractures The handeuffs also press against the nerves in the palms,
leading to paralysis and a loss of sensation in the palms. These neurological damages can be transient
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manner in which the handcuffs were used was clearly unnecessary and deliberately used to
cause pain and suffering to passengers,

180. Torture is prohibited under the non-derogable article 7 of the ICCPR. Furthermore,
Article | of the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel, [nhuman or Degrading
Treatment or Punishment states:

For the purposes of this Convention, the term "torture” means any act by which
severe pain or suffering, whether physical or mental, is intentionally inflicted on a
person for such purposes as obtaining from him or a third person information or a
confession, punishing him for an act he or a third person has committed or is
suspected of having committed, or intimidating or coercing him or a third person; or
for any reason based on discrimination of any kind, when such pain or suffering is
inflicted by or at the instigation of or with the consent or acquiescence of a public
ofticial or other person acting in an official capacity.

Article 2(2) of the Convention emphasizes the absolute prohibition of torture:

No exceptional circumstances whatsoever, whether a state of war or a threat of war,
internal political in stability or any other public emergency, may be invoked as a
Jjustification of torture.

Insofar as these abuses amounted to the deliberate punishment of the passengers, or were an
attempt to intimidate or coerce one or more of the passengers for participation in the flotilla
and/or activities to prevent the interception of the flotilla, the treatment tended towards
torture.

181. The Mission thus determines that the treatment of passengers on board the Mavi
Marmara and in certain instances on board the Challenger 1, Sfendoni and the Eleftheri
Mesogios, by the Isracli forces amounted to cruel, inhuman and degrading treatment and,
insofar as the treatment was additionally applied as a form of punishment, torture. This
represents a violation of articles 7 and 10 (1) of the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights and the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or
Degrading Treatment or Punishment. .

(¢)  Possible violations of the Fourth Geneva Convention and customary international
humanitarian law

182. In addition to the international human rights violations set out above, the Mission
considers that the same factual circumstances provide prima facie evidence that protected
persons suffered violations of international humanitarian law committed by Isracli forces
during the interception, including wilful killing, torture or inhuman treatment and wilfully
causing great suffering or serious injury to body or health within the terms of article 147 of
the Fourth Geneva Convention. -

C. Detention of flotilla passengers in Israel and deportation

1.  Factual Description and Findings
183. The Mission found the following facts to have been established to its satisfaction.

but they can also be permanent From the neurologist's perspective tight handcuffs may cause
transient or immeversible damage to the detainee and, accordingly, the use of loosened handcuffs
should be considered.”
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(a)  Processing of the passengers at the Port of Ashdod

184,  All of the intercepted vessels in the flotilla were laken to the Isracli port of Ashdod
where a processing centre had been set up in advance in marquees on the quayside to
receive the passengers. The Challenger 1, the fastest vessel in the flotilla, arrived around
1100 hours on 31 May. The last ship to arrive was the Mavi Marmara at around 1800 hours
on the same day. As a result of the numbers of passengers to be processed, the
disembarkation process was extremely lengthy. Some passengers from the Mavi Marmara
said that they had to wait up to twelve hours inside the ship under armed guard after it had
arrived at the port and some did not disembark until the next moming.

185. The vessels were greeted by crowds of soldiers and sometimes civilians, including
school children, at the quayside, waving flags and cheering the return of the Israeli forces.
Some passengers said that they were jeered or taunted by the people on the quay. There
were also television camera crews and journalists recording the disembarkation of the
passengers. Many passengers said that they found the experience of being “paraded” before
the media and the sometimes hostile crowds unsettling and humiliating.

186. Injured passengers who had not been airlified were diagnosed and sent to nearby
hospitals for treatment. Some passengers with serious injuries were made to walk off the
Mavi Marmara unaided. Due 10 the delay in disembarking and processing all passengers,
some injured passengers had to wait for considerable periods before they were diagnosed
and sent to hospital. Others were not diagnosed until they arrived at the prison later.

187. During processing, all passengers were presented with official papers to sign.
Various translations of the papers were in circulation, in English, Turkish and Arabic, but
most passengers said that they were given a version in Hebrew and that the contents were
not explained to them. According to those able to understand the papers, they stated that the
signatory admitted to having entered Israel illegally and consented to deportation and be
banned from re-entering Israel for a 10-year period. Some passengers were told that signing
the document would expedite early release from custody and repatriation whereas failure to
sign would result in a lengthy detention period pending court proceedings.

188. Almost all passengers refused to sign the document on the basis that they had been

brought to Israel from international waters against their will or because they did not want to

sign a document that they did not understand. There were concerted efforts by some Isracli

officers to coerce passengers into signing the forms. Some passengers did sign under duress

having annotated the text to reflect the circumstances of their entry into Israel or stating that

it was signed “under protest”. Some passengers were threatened with physical violence for

refusing to sign; others were beaten or physically abused for refusing to sign or for advising

others not to sign. Efforts to persuade passengers to sign the forms continued at the airport .
almost up to the moment of departure. -

189. Passengers were subjected to a series of meticulous searches, including strip

- searches. Although female officers generally searched the women, some complained that
they were searched in full or partial view of male officers. Some male passengers said that
they were subjected to or threatened with internal cavity searches. A number of passengers
described the process of being searched as being deliberately degrading and humiliating,
accompanied by taunts, provocative and insulting language and physical abuse. During the
course of their detention in Israel, many passengers were searched multiple times, long after
such searches could serve a useful security purpose.

190. During processing, passengers were photographed either for official documentation
or, in some cases, for “trophy pictures”. The processing of some passengers was also
videotaped. Passengers had their fingerprints and in some cases DNA swabs, were taken.
Whilst some successfully declined to submit to fingerprinting, some had their prints taken
by force. A victim and witnesses provided a vivid description of the circumstances in which
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one passenger, a Greek national, was severely beaten for refusing to provide his fingerprints-

to the Israeli authorities. The passenger was dragged along the ground for some distance

and then surrounded by a large group of Israeli officials who proceeded to beat him

severely, including the deliberate fracture of his leg. His cries for help were ignored, and

one witness noted uniformed officials, both male and female, laughing at him. The j
passenger’s broken leg was not treated until after he had left Israel,

191. Passengers were also given a medical check, although some were able to and did
refuse. Many passengers considered the medical checks to be cursory and pro forma. The
medication of some passengers who were following special medical prescriptions for
existing conditions had been confiscated by soldiers or left behind on the vessels. Requests
for these medications to be returned were not met promptly although some people did
reccive their medication later after repeated requests.

192.  In addition to the examples described above, there were other incidents of physical
violence being perpetrated against individual passengers deemed non-cooperative, which
resulted in physical injuries and trauma. One passenger, who made a general protest about
the way the passengers were being treated, was told by an Israeli officer: “You are in Israel
now; you have no rights”.

193, Passengers were not allowed access to a lawyer or to consular services during
processing at the port. Some passengers said that there were translators available in some
languages and some officials involved in the processing spoke languages other than
Hebrew. However, many passengers were unable to understand what was being said to

194. The wife of one of the deceased passengers was treated with complete insensitivity
to her bereavement. She was not allowed to make a phone call to inform her family of her
loss. There were examples of members of the same family who were separated and kept in
complete ignorance of the whereabouts and well-being of their relatives until repatriation.
This separation added to the distress and anxiety experienced by the passengers.

{b)  Detention of passengers and crew at Ella prison near Beersheva

195. After processing at Ashdod, the majority of passengers were transferred in batches -
to Ella Prison, near Beersheva, a one to two hour journey by road. Passengers were
transferred in regular prison vehicles with barred windows. Some passengers had to wait in
the vehicles for several hours. One passenger said that he spent twenty hours waiting in a
van both at Ashdod and at the prison. Many passengers complained that excessive air-
conditioning made the vans very cold. Others complained that they were locked in the vans
with closed windows in the sun for long periods so that the atmosphere became suffocating.
Requests to adjust the temperature or to allow access to the toilet were either ignored or in
some cases resulted in threats of or actual violence.

196. On arrival at the prison, most passengers were placed in cells in groups of up to four
persons. A number of passengers reported that they were kept in isolation and did not meet
with other passengers until they left the prison.

197. Most witnesses reported that the conditions at the prison were acceptable, although
some complained that on arrival at the facility they had to clean the cells and the communal
arcas. Some also stated that the toilets did not function properly and some, including
women, reported discomfort in using the showers due to the presence of surveillance
cameras. Passengers were generally provided with food and water. Many passengers
complained that they were prevented from sleeping in the prison due to regular roll-calls,
noise from the prison guards and other deliberate disturbances.
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198. Many passengers were subjected to further interrogations while in detention; some
said that this was done repeatedly. There were a number of allegations of beatings during
these interrogations.

199.  Most witnesses reported that they continued to be denied access to a lawyer and to
contact with their embassies. Lawyers from one Israeli legal aid NGO said that they made
repeated attempts to visit the detainees but were denied entry for some time. When they
were granted access, the lawyers had a very limited time with each detainee and could only
conduct cursory interviews. Some passengers received a visit from their embassy
representative but the majority had no such contact. Although there was some access o
telephones, telephone cards, when distributed, allowed very limited calling time making it
practically impossible to call abroad. '

' 200. No foreign national detained at Beersheva was charged with any offence or brought
before a judge. One passenger was however taken, after he had protested his right to appear
before a judge, before what he considered to be a “sham court” close to the airport to have
his deportation confirmed.

(c) " Ili-treatment of passengers at the airport and repatriation

201. Depending on their time of arrival, passengers were detained from between 24 and
72 hours. Jordanians and passengers from certain other countries with no diplomatic
relations with Israel were released early and transported back to Jordan by road. The
majority of passengers were taken from the prison to Ben Gurion International Airport in
Tel Aviv for repatriation by air. Many passengers complained that they had again to wait
for many hours in the sun inside prison vans both at the prison and on arrival at the airport
during the deportation phase. One women, overcome by the oppressive conditions in her
vehicle said that she was refused access to a toilet despite making clear that she was
menstruating. E

202. Perhaps the most shocking testimony, after that relating to the violence on the Mavi
‘Marmara, provided to the Mission was the consistent accounts of a number of incidents of
extreme and unprovoked violence perpetrated by uniformed Israeli personnel upon certain
passengers during the processing procedures inside the terminal at Ben Gurion International
Airport on the day of deportation. These accounts were so consistent and vivid as to be
beyond question. An intimidating number of armed soldiers and police were present inside
the terminal building. Some passengers said that these officers were “spoiling for a fight”.
All passengers had been subjected to mulitiple searches and were completely under the
control of the Israelis by this stage. Most passengers were continuing to refuse to sign
deportation documents and some were determined to make a point about the legality of the
process by insisting on 2 court hearing to confirm the deportation. None of the violence
described seems to have been justified.

203. Some passengers in the passport checking area saw an older passenger_being
roughly treated after receiving what appeared to be a beating. When other passengers,
including Irish and Turkish, protested at this treatment, they were charged by soldiers using
batons. In the foray, around 30 passengers were beaten 1o the ground, kicked and punched
in a sustained attack by soldiers. One Irish passenger was seen being particularly badly
beaten around the head and held in a choke position to the point of near suffocation. He
identified his attackers as police officers. He was taken 10 a holding cell.

204. One Turkish passenger involved in the fight said that he was subsequently taken by
soldiers, handcuffed with metal cuffs, picked up by the cuffs, taken to a small room and ~
beaten and kicked by five more soldiers while others shielded the scene from outside. The
police intervened to stop the violence in this case.
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205. A number of women were pushed around by soldiers, one of whom was beaten with
fists. They were also subjected to sexual taunts,

206. In a separate incident, a passenger was physically attacked by around seventeen
officers when he refused to sign deportation paper, kicked in the head and threatened at
gunpoint. A number of passengers had resolved to resist deportation in order to have the
opportunity to demonstrate their innocence in an Israeli court. This was taken as a
provocation by the Israelis.

207. One medical doctor gave a detailed account- of his treatment. On arrival at the
airport, the officer accompanying him jostied him and tried to trip him up on the stairs. He
was then subjected 1o verbal insults as he passed through a check point. An officer slapped
him on the back of the head and when he protested he was set upon by a group of
uniformed officers, knocked to the ground and repeatedly punched and kicked. He was then
dragged out of sight of other passengers where the attacks resumed. Attempts were made to
break his fingers. He was restrained with metal handcuffs behind his back so tightly that he
lost feeling to one hand. He was then hoisted up by the cuffs and pushed against a wall.
When he asked for the cuffs to be loosened, he was told this was the price he had to pay for
attempting to go to Gaza and that “it would be good for his health®. The doctor was
wmgspckﬂwh@claﬂynduﬂﬁedhmasamedi@dommdwdﬁcmksm
completely unprovoked.

208. There were other incidents of isolated violence against individual passengers who
were deemed to be uncooperative. One passenger was seen having his arm twisted behind
his back by police to the point that the arm broke. Another was kicked and hit by some ten
soldiers, handcuffed and taken by vehicle to another place 10-15 minutes away, where
soldiers abused him for up to two hours, When he returned to the airport, he was bleeding
from the head.

209. A large number of the military and police personnel at the airport exhibited serious
and unprofessional lapses of military discipline whilst commanding officers failed in most
cases (o intervene promptly. Much of the behaviour was surely criminal under domestic
Isracli law.

210. The majority of the passengers regardless of nationality were deported from Isracl
aboard aircraft provided by the Turkish Government. The Jordanian detainees however
were deported by bus across the land border between Isracl and Jordan. The Greek
passengers were airlifted back to Athens aboard a Greek military aircraft sent by the Greek
Government. At least.one passenger with dual nationality including Isracli nationality
elected not to be deported in order not to jeopardise his Israeli citizenship. He was
threatened with prosecution but was released in Israel and later left the country without
hindrance.

211. Some passengers were made to wait for many hours on board the aircraft while the
deportation procedures for the other passengers were being completed. Some passengers
said that they boarded the planc in the moming but did not take off until after midnight.

(d) Treatment of injured passengers in !:mtﬁ hospitals

212. According to Israeli soumcs, Lh:rry-one wounded pnmengcrs from the Mavi
Marmara were air-lifted 10 various hospitals in Tel Aviv, Jerusalem, Haifa and other
locations. All witnesses reported that there were guards, either police or soldiers or both, at
the bedside or stationed outside their rooms. They remained in the hospitals for between
three and five days receiving medical treatment and were then transferred to Turkey by
aeroplane. Most were then taken directly to the Atatiirk Research Hospital in Ankara for
further treatment.

/ i
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213, Some of the passengers ireated in Israeli hospitals acknowledged that they were well
cared for by the medical personnel, but others reported verbal abuse and taunting by their
guards, A number of witnesses said that they were unable to sleep properly throughout their
stay in hospital due, in some cases, to deliberate disturbance by the guards. The patients
were subjected to the same repeated questioning by police or soldiers and heavy pressure to
sign documents in Hebrew as other passengers had experienced at Ashdod. Some patients
were visited by a representative of their embassy or by representatives of the International
Committee of the Red Cross. ‘

214, Many of those treated in the Israeli hospitals reported that they were handcuffed to
their beds using standard metal handcuffs throughout their stay. Some were also restrained
at their ankles. These were sériously injured people and the cuffing was done with no
apparent regard to their injuries.

2.  Legal Analysis of the treatment of the passengers in Israel

(@)  Arbitrary or illegal arrest or detention

215. As stated above, Article 9, paragraph 1 of the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights guards against arbitrary arrest or detention. Since the Isracli interception of
the flotilla was unlawful, the detention of the passengers and crew from the seven vessels at
Ashdod was also prima facie unlawful since there was no legal basis for the Isracli
authorities to have detained and transported these people to Israel. The passengers found
themselves in Isracl on the basis of an unlawful act by the State of Israel. The Israeli
authorities were therefore under an obligation to deal with these people in accordance with
their intemational human rights obligations. However, once they arrived in Israel, the
Israeli authorities attempted to shroud the illegality of the interception in a veil of legality.

216. On arrival in Ashdod, attempts were made to get passengers to sign certain
documents which passengers understood to be a confession of illegal entry into Isracl. The
passengers almost universally refused to sign these documents based on the logic that since
they had been brought to Israel against their will, they could not themselves be held to have
iHegally entered the country. They objected to the implication that they, as victims of an
illegal act by the State of Israel, could then be held guilty of the illegal act of entering
israel. The Mission shared this objection and is of the view that the continued detention of
the passengers at Ashdod, Beersheva and at the airport constituted a continuation of their
unlawful detention initiated by the soldiers on the vessels after the interception

217. Some passengers wished to challenge the legality of that detention as a means of
drawing attention to the illegal acts which had resulted in their arrival in Israel. They
insisted on their right to appear before a judge and said that they had received summons to
appear in court to face charges. The Mission did not receive copies of any court documents
showing that foreign nationals involved in the flotilla were charged with any criminal
offences in Israel. If they were, then the denial of the right to a fair hearing before an
independent, impartial and competent tribunal would constitute a violation of their rights
under article 14 of the ICCPR.

(b)  Torture and other cruel inhuman and degrading treaiment or punishment

218. At all times, the Israeli authorities were bound to treat the detainees in accordance
with Israel’s international human rights obligations and to protect them from harm. The
Mission considers that, whilst the detention phase purported to proceed within a framework
of legality, there was pervasive hostility towards the passengers which allowed abuse to .
take place.
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219. Passengers’ testimony included a number of credible allegations of physical
violence and abuse perpetrated by Isracli officers, soldiers and policemen at the processing
centre in Ashdod, at the prison and at the airport. In some cases, this violence seemed
gratuitous; in other cases, it seemed aimed specifically at forcing compliance with
particular procedures (signing forms, fingerprinting) or punishing individuals for non-
compliance. The Mission considers that acts of torture were committed by Israeli officials
against passengers during their period of detention in Israel in violation of article 1 of the
Convention against Torture and articles 7 and 10 of the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights.

220. There were other instances of behaviour by Isracli officials which was aimed at
humiliating individuals which, if not torture, would constitute cruel, inhuman or degrading
treatment or punishment under the terms of article 16 of the Convention against Torture.
Body searches were not always conducted in accordance with accepted procedures aimed at
protecting the dignity of the person being searched and the frequency of the searches raises
the suggestion that they served to humiliate and degrade rather than meet security needs.
The Mission would like to draw particular attention to the treatment received by some
women by female Israeli officers at the processing centre that fell well short of acceptable
behaviour.

(c) Parading of detainees

221.  Whilst the passengers and crew arriving at Ashdod cannot be classified as prisoners
of war, the scene at the quayside described by those interviewed carries the hallmarks of a
‘triumph’ at which captured prisoners of war are paraded in from of flag-waving crowds.
Prisoners of war would have been protecied against this humiliating spectacle by article 13
of the Third Geneva Convention which protects them from “insults and public curiosity”.
As civilians, the flotilla passengers should have been entitled to the same basic level of
protection, which would also fall under general customary law provisions protecting
civilians from assaults on their dignity. The failure of the Israeli authorities to afford this
protection may also be construed, inter alia, as a violation of the presumption of innocence
under article 14, paragraph 2 of ICCPR comparable to the public display of those
mpeaa&ofmimmmnewﬂmofwmmywmwmcﬂoﬁlh
were suspected of having committed of criminal acts, all passengers should have been
protected from public curiosity.

(d)  Right to security of the person and to human dignity

222, The serious incidents of physical violence perpetrating by Israeli military and/or
police officers against the passengers at Ben Gurion International Airport clearly constitute

" grave violations of the protection that should be afforded 1o detainees under international
human rights law and international humanitarian law. Article 9 of the ICCPR provides for
the right 1o security of person and article 10 guarantees that “all persons deprived of their
liberty shall be treated with humanity and with respect for the inherent dignity of the human
person”. Insofar as the treatment meted out at the airport was perpetrated by soldiers and
police, sometimes with the acquiescence of their superiors, this behaviour can also be
considered torture. It seems clear to the Mission that these acts at the airport, at a time when
the passengers were completely under the control of the authorities, constituted an attempt
by individual groups of officers to “give them a bloody nose™ just before departure.

223. Other reported acts of physical abuse and ill treatment during the detention and
dq)orlatian phase would similarly constitute violations of the right to security of person.

224. The Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials sets out some basic obligations
which should have been followed by all Israeli military and police personnel whilst they
were charged with the care of the passengers. These include the duty to respect and protect .
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human dignity and maintain and uphold the human rights of all persons (article 2), to use
force only when strictly necessary and to the extent required for the performance of their
duty (article 3) and not to inflict, instigate or tolerate any act of torture or other cruel,
inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment (article 5). Each of these duties was
disregarded by certain Isracli officials at certain points dunng the detention and deportation
process.

(e)  Other deteniion righfs

225. Regardless of the pretended- claim to legality of the detention of the flotilla
participants inside Israel, the State of Israel was bound to afford the detainees certain basic
rights whilst in detention. In certain instances, the facts as presented to the Mission indicate
that these rights were not respected.

226. Anticle 10 ICCPR provides that all persons deprived of their liberty shall be treated
with humanity and with respect for the inherent dignity of the human person. This provision
is supplemented, inter alia, by the Body of Principles for the Protection of All Persons
under Any Form of Detention or Imprisonment (1988) and the Code of Conduct for Law
Enforcement Officials (1979). Whilst a system was put in place at Ashdod for the
processing of the disembarking passengers, it is clear that officers showed a hostility
towards the passengers under their care which encouraged behaviour which violated baslc
standards of civilized treatment of detainees.

227, There were problems with ensuring that all disembarking passengers understood the
legal processes and procedures to which they were being subjected due to language
difficulties. Although the Israeli authorities clearly attempted to provide documents in
languages other than Hebrew and some officers were on hand able 10 speak English, Arabic
and Turkish, ltmdwﬂmmywd}dmtmﬂemandwhaIwuhwmgm
them. Article 9, paragraph 2 ICCPR requires that detained persons are informed about the
reasons for their arrest and detention. Principle 14 of the Body of Principles states that a
person who does not.adequately understand or speak the language used by the authorities
responsible for the arrest, detention or imprisonment is entitled to receive promptly in a
language which he understands certain specific information relating to his arrest and
detention and to have the assistance, frec of charge, if necessary, of an interpreter in
connection with legal proceedings subsequent to arrest. The Mission considers that many
detainees were not afforded these rights.

228. Furthermore, there is evidence that some detainees were specifically misinformed
about their legal situation by Israeli officers, particular with regard 1o the deportation papers
they were asked to sign. In one absurd example, an individual says that he was told that
refusing to sign the deportation form would incur the death penalty — an assertion which the
detainee did not take seriously. Principle 21 of the Body of Principles prohibits taking
“undue advantage of the sitation of a detained or imprisoned person for the purpose of
compelling him to confess, to incriminate himself otherwise or to testify against another
person.”

229. Many of the detainees specifically requested, on numerous occasions, access to legal
counscl and/or the consular scrvices of their embassies or diplomatic representatives in
Isracl. Although some did eventually receive visits from legal aid lawyers and diplomatic
consuls, other did not. Principle lTofdnBodyoi’Principlessmm“adminedpumn
shall be entitled 1o have the assistance of a legal counsel. He shall be informed of his right
by the competent authority promptly after arrest end shall be provided with reasonable
facilities for exercising it.” Principle 16 (2) furthermore provides:

If a detained person is a foreigner, he shall also be promptly informed of his right to
communicate by appropriate means with a consular post of the diplomatic mission
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of the State of which he is a national or which is otherwise entitled 1o receive such
communication in accordance with intemational law or with the representative of a
competent international organization, if he is a refugee or is otherwise under the
protection of an international organization.

Any communication under this provision must be made or permitted without delay. Most
detainees who gained access to a consul were only allowed such access several days after
they had originally been detained and requested access.

230. Principle 18 provides that “a detained person shall be entitled to communicate and
consult with his legal counsel [and] shall be allowed adequate time and facilities for
consultation”. Israeli legal aid lawyers who gained access to some of the detainees where
barely able to spend more than a few minutes with each detainee in the time allocated by
the authorities for the visit. :

231. All detainees complained that they were not allowed the means o contact their
families who would have been distressed and concerned after hearing from news reports
about the interception of the flotilla. In one extreme and insensitive example, the wife of
one of the deceased was not able to call her family to notify them of her bereavement.
Although telephones were available to some detainees in prison, they could not be used to
make the numerous international telephone calls necessary for this particular cohort of
detainees from more than forty countries. Principle 16 (1) of the Body of Principles states
that “Promptly after arrest and after each transfer from one place of detention to another, a
detained person shall be entitled to notify or to require the competent authority to notify
members of his family or other appropriate persons of his choice of his arrest, detention or
imprisonment or for the transfer and of the place of detention where he is kept in custody.”
There should be no delay in the implementation of this requirement.

(0 Treatment of injured people in detention

232. Most passengers were offered a medical examination, albeit perfunctory, in -
accordance with Principle 24 of the Body of Rules which states that “a proper medical
éxamination shall be offered to a detained or imprisoned person as promptly as possible

after his admission to the place of detention or imprisonment.”

233. In some instances, passengers who had been injured, including those injured by
assaults committed by Israeli officials did not receive immediate medical attention. Article
6 of the Code of Conduct states that “law enforcement officials shall ensure the full
protection of the health of persons in their custody and, in particular, shall take immediate
action to secure medical attention whenever required.”

D. Confiscation and Return of Property by the Israeli authorities

1. Factual Description and Findings
234. The Mission found the following facts to have been established to its satisfaction.

(a)  Possessions of passengers confiscated by the Israeli authorities

235. The Mission received accounts from passengers who were on board all six vessels in
the flotilla on the confiscation by the Israeli authorities of cash and a wide variety of
personal belongings, including passports, identification cards, driving licenses, mobile
telephones, laptop computers, audio equipment including MP3 players, photographic and
video recording equipment, credit cards, documents, books and clothing. These items were
taken at a number of stages, primarily while on board the vessels (during body searches and
items left in others parts of the vessels that they were not permitted to retrieve) or during
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processing at the Ashdod detention facility. The Mission estimates that many hundreds of
expensive electronic items remain in the possession of the Israeli authorities. Many
passengers were carrying considerable amounts of cash donations to be distributed in Gaza,
in some cases amounting to tens of thousands of dollars. There was inconsistent practice by
the Israelis with regard to cash: some passengers were allowed to hold on to cash
throughout their detention, some had cash confiscated and then returned and others had the
cash taken and it was not returned. "

236. Furthermore, while most passports were returned to passengers prior to their
departure from lsraelmdoimhuvcsmocbemrcnumd,mmcpmmgmhvemllm
received their passports nearly four months after the incident.

237. Itis clear in the view of the Mission that the Israeli authorities did not put a system

in place to properly record items that were confiscated and identify personal effects with

the aim of returning them to the rightful owners. On board the various vessels, the Israeli

forces conducted extensive searches of the passengers’ lugpage that lefi personal '
possessions strewn across the cabins in a highly disordered state. One witness, who had

been isolated and beaten, described the surreal experience of sitting handcuffed on a large

heap of laptops and electronic devices and being “serenaded” by mobile telephones

reconnecting to the network as the ship approached Ashdod.

238. Some items were returned to the Turkish authorities and passengers were able to
retrieve some items of luggage from the forensic office in Istanbul, When the vessels were
later returned from Israeli custody, some luggage and other items still on board were stored
* at an IHH warchouse in Istanbul. However, passengers who went to the warehouse were
only able to reclaim a few clothing items or empty suitcases. The mission was informed
that items belonging to some of the British passengers were also returned to them by post
via the British Consulate in Israel but that these items were damaged or not actually theirs.

239. The mission’s attention has been drawn to several allegations regarding misuse of
items confiscated by the Israeli authorities, including laptop computers, credit cards and
mobile telephones. On 20 August 2010 it was reported in the Isracli media that “at least
four” lIsraeli soldiers had been detained on suspicion of stealing and selling laptops
belonging to passengers that were on board the flotilla™ Furthermore, at least four
passengers have stated that their personal items, including credit cards and mobile
telephones, have been subsequently used in Israel. There is an account of a particular
witness, a journalist, who was on board the Svendoni and alleged that his credit card was
used to purchase items in Israel, both while he was detained at the Beersheva prison and
after he had been released.* There is another specific account whmc more than $1,000 was
spent on a confiscated credit card in Israel.*

240. Amongst the items confiscated and not returned by the Isracli authorities is a large
amount of video and photographic footage that was recorded on electronic and other media s
by passengers, including many professional journalists, on board the vessels of the flotilla.
This includes a large number of photographic and video material of the Isracli assault and
interception on the Mavi Marmara and other vessels. The Israeli authorities have

-

* hup liwww haaretz com/news/diplomacy-defense/idf-soldiers-suspecied-of-theft-from-gaza-flotilla-
ship-1 308862
hitp://www haaretz com/print-edition/news/italian-flotilla-journalist-my-credit-card-was-used-after-
wdf-confiscated-it-1.295493
% fitp:/iwww. guardian.co.uk/world/2010/jun/ | 8/gaza-convoy-activists-debit-card-fraud
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subsequently released a very limited amount of this for public access, in an edited form,"”
but the vast majority has remained in the private control of the Isracli authorities.

241. The Mission is satisfied that this represents a deliberate attempt by the lsracli
authorities to suppress or destroy evidence and other information related 1o the events of 31
May on the Mavi Marmara and other vessels of the flotilla.

242. Many journalists who were on board the flotilla in their professional capacity have
‘subsequently submitted various complaints regarding the confiscation of their data and
equipment and the non-payment of damages or compensation. An example of this is a letter
of behalf of the approximately 60 journalists that was sent to request action of the European
Commission. The mission is aware of formal claims being prepared on behalf of a number
of passengers whose personal property was taken or confiscated on board the Mavi
Marmara and other vessels. The Mussum estimates the value of such property to be not
inconsiderable.

(b)  Vessels of the flotilla confiscated by the Israeli authorities

243. The six vessels of the flotilla were held by the Israeli authorities for an extended
period of time. For example, the Mavi Marmara, Defne Y and Gazze | ships were only
taken to the Turkish port of Iskenderun on 7 August, more than two months after arriving at
the port of Ashdod in Israel.

244. The Mavi Marmara was in 2 state of disrepair on its return to Turkey. The ship’s
captain and other crew members confirmed that items damaged had been in full working
order when the ship was taken under the control of the Israeli authorities on 31 May. The
Mission's own investigations confirmed that equipment had been destroyed or badly
damaged including two Automatic [dentification Systems (AlLS) and a gyro-screen, two
Very High Frequency (VHF) handset radio loud speakers, surveillance and other
equipment, the VHF radio and VHF DSC Watch Receiver, MF-HF radio and DSC
equipment, the control panel indicator, the speed log screen, the INMARSAT-C screen, the
Raytheon Plotter-Radar replacement screen, two mobile Global Positioning Systems (GPS)
and the fire alarm control panel. Other items had been removed, including the satellite
telephone, the ship survey recording computer and its spare equipment and the ship's
journal and all records, including the ship's centificate file. In the engine room, the control
room generator and main control dash were destroyed and the gear dash was damaged.
There was oily water and submergible pumps in the bilge water compartment of the engine
and the diesel generator spare parts were scattered with some sea water as well as oil leaks
were present. Furthermore, the engine command and control systems had been tampered
with.
2.  Legal Analysis of the denial of property and right to freedom of expression

245. The Mission is concerned that the actions of the Isracli authorities in confiscating,
withholding, and in some cases destroying the private property of many hundreds of
passengers on board the various vessels of the flotilla represents both a violation of rights
related to property ownership and to the freedom of expression.

246. Article 17 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights states that “Everyone has
the right to own property alone as well as in association with others; No one shall be
arbitrarily deprived of his property.” Insofar as the Universal Declaration in considered to
form part of customary international law, no State may arbitrarily deprive someone of their

¥ For example, footage taken by a passenger on the top deck while Israeli soldiers descended onto the

deck: hitp./fwww.youtube com/watch?v=56Xm8lirz-so
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own property. The Mission considers that the Israeli authorities, in disregarding the rights
of many hundreds of passengers on board the flotilla to their possessions, fails to meet a
State’s obligations in relation to rights to own property.
247. In relation to Intemational Humanitarian Law, Article 97 of the Fourth Geneva
o Convention states: “Internees shall be permitted to retain articles of personal use. Monies ...
and valuables in their possession may not be taken from them except in accordance with
established procedure ... On release or repatriation; internees shall be given all articles,
monies or other valuables taken from them during intemment ... with the exception of any
articles or amounts withheld by the Detaining Power by virtue of its legislation in force. If
the property of an internee is so withheld, the owner shall receive a detailed receipt. Family
or identity documents in the possession of internees may not be taken away without a
receipt being given .7,

248. Furthermore, the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia has

established that as far as the destruction or appropriation of property cannot be justified by

military necessity, it is unlawful.™ Clearly no military necessity existed to justify the

confiscation and continuing appropriation of the property of the passengers of the Flotilla. . .
Furthermore, the Mission has been made aware of communications between the Israeli

government and a law firm in the UK, where the Israeli government admits to retaining

property of the passengers, but does not claim reasons of military necessity but only that the

items are necessary for ongoing investigations within Israel.

249. Article 19(2) of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights states that
“Everyone shall have the right to freedom of expression; this right shall include freedom to
seck, receive and impart information and ideas of all kinds, regardless of frontiers, either
orally, in writing or in print, in the form of art, or through any other media of his choice.”
While this right may be subject to certain restrictions, as set out in article 19(3), none of
these are met in this case that would allow the Israeli authorities to restrict the rights of
journalists and other passengers to freely utilize and share information gathered on board
the vessels of the flotilla. Journalists in particular have the right to utilize the tools of their
trade. The Mission considers that the actions of the Israeli authorities represent a continuing
violation of the right to freedom of expression for the journalists and other passengers on
board the flotilla. :

E. Consequences for Israeli Citizens of participation in the Flotilla

Factual Description and Findings
250. The Mission found the following facts to have been established to its satisfaction.

(a)  Detention and criminal prosecution of Israeli citizens

251. Passengers with Israeli citizenship were scparated from other passengers on arrival
in Ashdod. After interrogation, they were informed that they would be detained and face
charges under Israeli law, including attempting to kill a soldier, scizing arms, shooting from
a soldier’s gun, organizing violence and being present in a military zone. Although taken to
a different prison, they had similar experiences as the other passengers including sleep
deprivation and denial of access to a lawyer,

252. On 1 June 2010, the Ashkelon Magistrate’s Court remanded in custody four
Palestinian Israclis: Mr. Muhammed Zeidan, Chairman of the High Follow-up Committee

B ICTY, Judgment, The Prosecutor v. Dario Kordic and Mario Cerkez, 1T-95-1472-T
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for Arab Citizens of Israel; Sheikh Raed Salah, the Head of the Islamic Movement of Israel
(northern branch); Sheikh Hamad Abu Daabe, Head of the Islamic Movement in lsrael
(southern branch) and Ms. Lubna Masarwa of the Free Gaza Movement. On 3 June 2010,
the same court decided to release the group with certain conditions, including a period of
house arrest until 8 June, prohibition from leaving the country for 45 days and the posting
of a bond of 150,000 Shekels by a third party.

253. The four people have not since been indicted but the file is still open and the charges
have not been withdrawn.

(b)  Reprisals against an elected member of the Knesset

254. One member of the Israeli Knesset, Ms Haneen Zouabi, was a passenger on the
Mavi Marmara. Ms. Zouabi was not detained, but was extensively interrogated,

255, As aresult of her participation in the flotilla, the Knesset voted on 7 June 2010 to
remove thrée of parliamentary privileges available to Ms, Zouabi as a Member of the
Knesset: her privileges in overseas travel; her diplomatic passport; payment of any legal
fees in case of removal of her parliamentary immunity from criminal prosecution. The
Knesset held several sessions on the issue of her participation in the Flotilla during which
there were racist and sexist remarks and physical threats made against her. Some
parliamentarians have also called for her to face criminal prosecution and measures, such as
revoking her membership in the Knesset, were discussed. The Israeli Minister of Interior
accused Ms. Zouabi of treason and requested authorization from the Attorney General to
revoke her citizenship. To date, no criminal proceedings have been initiated against Ms.
Zouabi. Since her participation in the Gaza Flotilla, Ms. Zouabi has received many death
threats.

* 256. The Inter-Parliamentary Union’s Committee on the Human Rights of
Parliamentarians adopted a confidential decision at its 130th session in July 2010,” holding
the punishment of Ms. Zouabi for exercising her freedom of speech by expressing her
political position to be unacceptable and calling on the Knesset to reconsider its decision.

257. The Mission refrains from any comment on any domestic legal proceedings which
may be sub judice. However, the Mission notes that these actions against Israeli citizens
could give rise to certain violations of Israel’s intermational human rights obligations,
including freedom of expression, political participation rights and rights to due process.

IV. Accountability and effective remedy

258. The Mission notes that the facts established give rise to a series of violations in law.
In accordance with the provisions of the International Covenant on Civil and Political
Rights, the victims of such violations have a right to an effective remedy which includes
judicial remedies as well as the right to reparations which should be proportionate to the
gravity of the violations. In cases of torture, victims should in addition be afforded medical
and psychological care. Finally, article 9 (5) of the Covenant provides for a specific right
to compensation. As far as the grave breaches of the Fourth Geneva Convention are
concerned, these may give rise to individual criminal responsibility.

259. In the past, Israel has not honoured its obilgmlons referred to in the preceding
paragraph. It is hoped that on this occasion the Israeli authorities and those concerned will
carry out prompt, independent and impartial judicial investigations of violations of

¥ Case No. IL/04 — Haneen Zoabi — Israel
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| ' .
international law, including international humanitarian law and human rights law, with a
view to bringing the perpetrators to justice.

V. Conclusions

260. The attack on the flotilla must be viewed in the context of the ongoing problems
between the Israeli Government and the Palestinian Authority and People. In carrying out
its task, the Mission was exposed to the depth of conviction on both sides of the correctness
of their respective positions. Similar disasters are likely to reoccur unless there is a dramatic
shift in the existing paradigm. It must be remembered that might and strength are enhanced
when attended by a sense of justice and fair play. Peace and respect have to be earned not
bludgeoned out of any opponent. An unfair victory has never been known to bring lasting
peace.

261. The Mission has come to the firm conclusion that a humanitarian crisis existed on
the 31 May 2010 in Gaza. The preponderance of evidence from impeccable sources is far
too overwhelming to come to a contrary opinion. Any denial that this is so cannot be
supported on any rational grounds. One of the consequences flowing from this is that for
this reason alone the blockade is unlawful and cannot be sustained in law. This is so
regardless of the grounds on which it is sought to justify the legality of the blockade.

262. Certain results flow from this conclusion. Principally, the action of the IDF in
intercepting the Mavi Marmara in the circumstances and for the reasons given on the high
sea was clearly unlawful, Specifically, the action cannot be justified in the circumstances
even under Article 51 of the United Nations Charter.

263. Israel seeks to justify the blockade on security grounds. The State of Israel is entitled
to peace and security like any other. The firing of rockets and other munitions of war into
Israeli territory from Gaza constitutes serious violations of international and international
humanitarian law. But action in response which constitutes collective punishment of the
civilian population in Gaza is not lawful in the present or any circumstances,

264. The conduct of the Israeli military and other personnel towards the flotilla
passengers was not only disproportionate to the occasion but demonstrated levels of totally
unnecessary and incredible violence. It betrayed an unacceptable level of brutality. Such
conduct cannot be justified or condoned on security or any other grounds. It constituted
grave violations of human rights law and international humanitarian law.

265. The Mission considers that several violations and offences have been committed. It
is not satisfied that, in the time available, it can say that it has been able to compile a
comprehensive list of all offences. However, there is clear evidence to support prosecutions
of the following crimes within the terms of article 147 of the Fourth Geneva Convention:

« wilful killing;
* torture or inhuman treatment;
« wilfully causing great suffering or serious injury to body or health.

The Mission also considers that a series of violations of Israel’s obligations under
international human rights law have taken place, including:

¢ right to life (article 6, ICCPR);

» torture and other cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment (article 7,
ICCPR; CAT);
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* right to liberty and security of the person and freedom from arbitrary ‘arrest or
detention (article 9, ICCPR);

+ right of detainees to be treated with humanity and respect for the inherent dignity of
the human person (article 10, ICCPR); |

» freedom of expression (article 19, ICCPR).

The right to an effective remedy should be guaranteed to all victims. The mission must not
be understood to be saying that this is a comprehensive list by any means,

266. The Mission notes that the retention by the Isracli authorities of unlawfully seized
property remains a continuing offence and Israel is called upon to return such property
forthwith. -

267. The perpetrators of the more serious crimes being masked cannot be identified
without the assistance of the Israeli authorities. They reacted in a violent manner whenever
they thought that anyone was attempting to identify them. The mission sincerely hopes that
there will be cooperation from the Israeli government to assist in their identification with a ’
view to prosecuting the culpable and bring closure to the situation, -
268. The Mission is aware that this is not the first time that the Government of Israel has
declined 1o cooperate with an inquiry into events in which its military personnel were
involved. On this occasion the Mission accepts the assurances of the Israeli Permanent
Representative that the position which he was directed to follow was in no way directed
towards the members of the Mission in their personal capacities. It is nonetheless
= regrettable that, on yet another occasion of an enquiry into events involving loss of life at
the hands of the Isracli military, the Government of Isracl has declined to cooperate in an
enquiry not appointed by it or on which it was significantly represented.

269. The Mission regrets that its requests to the Permanent Mission of Israel for
information were not entertained. The reason initially given was that the Government of
Israel had established its own independent panel of distinguished persons to investigate the
fiotilla incident. The Mission was told that for that reason and also because the Secretary-
General had also announced the establishment of another distinguished panel with a similar
mandate, that “an additional Human Rights Council initiative in this regard are both .
unnecessary and unproductive”.

270. The Mission did not agree with that position and for that reason suggested to the
Permanent Representative of Israel that he should direct to the Council and not the Mission
a request that the Mission defer submitting its report to permit other enquiries to complete
their tasks. The Mission has not received any direction from the Council to date and
considers that it would have been obligated to respond positively to any such directive from
the Council.

271.- In the light of the fact that the Turkel Committee and the Secretary-General’s panel
have not concluded their sittings, the Mission will refrain from any remarks which are
capable of being construed as not allowing those bodies to complete their tasks “unfetiered
byamdcmﬁs”.mw:sionmﬁnesiuafmmcmmmwicmﬁdmm
any investigative process in circumstances such as the present is not enhanced when the
subject of an investigation either investigates himself or plays a pivotal role in the process.

272. Elsewhere in this report the Mission has referred to the fact that it found it necessary
1o reinterpret its mandate because of the manner in which the resolution appointing it was
couched .It is important in the drafting of matters of the sort that the impression is not given
of the appearance of any pre-judgment. The Mission took particular care at the first
opportunity to indicate that it interpreted its mandate as requiring it to approach its task
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without any preconceptions or prejudices. It wishes to assure all concerned that it has held
to that position scrupulously.

273. All the passengers on board the ships comprising the flotilla who appeared before
the Mission impressed the members as persons genuinely committed to the spirit of
humanitarianism and imbued with a deep and genuine concern for the welfare of the
inhabitants of Gaza. The Mission can only express the hope that differences will be
resolved in the short rather than the long term so that peace and harmony may exist in the
area

274. Nine human beings lost their lives and several others suffered serious injuries. From
the observations of the Mission deep psychological scars have been inflicted by what must
have been a very traumatic experience not only for the passengers but also the soldiers who
received injuries. The members of the Mission sympathise with all concerned and particular
with the families of the deceased.

275. The Mission is not alone in finding that a deplorable situation exists in Gaza. It has
been characterized as “unsustainable’. This is totally intolerable and unacceptable in-the
21st Century. It is amazing that anyone could characterise the condition of the people there
as satisfying the most basic of acceptable standards. The parties and the intemational
community are urged to find the solution that will address all legitimate security concern of
both Isracl and the people of Palestine both of whom are equally entitled to “their place
under the heavens™. The apparent dichotomy in this case between the competing right of
security and the right to a decent living can only be resolved if old antagonisms are
subordinated to a sense of justice and fair play. One has to ﬁndahcstrmgmlopluckﬁnm
the memory rooted sorrows and to move on.

276. The Mission has given thought to the position of humanitarian organizations who
wish to intervene in situations of long-standing humanitarian crisis where the international
community is unwilling for whatever reason to take positive action. Too ofien are they
accused as being meddiesome and at worst as terrorists or enemy agents. '

277. A distinction is made between activities taken to alleviate crises and action to
address the causes creating the crisis. The latter action is characterized as political action
and therefore inappropriate for groups that wish to be classified as humanitarian. This point
is made because of the evidence that while some of the passengers were solely interested in
delwmngsupplmmﬂwpaople:nGmfwm:dwmnwpouwmng
awareness of the blockade with a view to its removal, as the only way to solve the crisis.
An examination should be made 1o clearly define humanitarianism as distinct from
humanitarian action so that there can be an agreed form of intervention and jurisdiction
when humanitarien crises occur.

278. The Mission sincerely hopes that no impediment will be put in the way of those who
suffered loss as a result of the unlawful actions of the Israeli military to be compensated
adequately and promptly. It is hoped that there will be swift action by the Government of
Israel. This will go a long way to reversing the regrettable reputation which that country has
for impunity and intransigence in international affairs. It will also assist those who
genuinely sympathise with their situation to support them without being stigmatised.
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From:
Sent:
To:

Ce:
Subject:

Classification:

Cassidy, Joseph P ¥
Thursday, September 30, 2010 9:11 AM -

Melia, Thomas O; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Baer, Daniel B; Posner, Michael H
Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Galindo, David R
FW: HRC15 RESULTS

INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS REDACTED]

UNCLASSIFIED

Votes are rolling in. Here are some results. David G is preparing a morning update for the Front Office.

NR

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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From: Millar, McKenzie

To: Lapenn, Jessica; Tat, Osman N; Cassayre, Mark J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Honigstein, Michael D; Griffiths, Douglas M;
‘Patel, Gayatri A; Brancato, Gilda M; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Trumbull, Charles P; Geneva HRC15

Sent: Wed Sep 29 09:41:29 2010
Subject: HRC15 RESULTS

US called vote.
Y:30
N:1

| Abs: 15

! L.33: Follow up to fact finding mission (Flotilla)

Resolution passed.
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*#%+% DISCLAIMER ***** Deze e-mail en al zijn bijlagen zijn uitsluitend voor de
geadresseerde bestemd en kunnen vertrouwelijke informatie bevatten. Als u deze boodschap
per vergissing toegestuurd kreeg, gelieve de afzender onmiddellijk te verwittigen en de
e-mail te vernietigen. Publicatie, reproductie, kopie, distributie of andere verspreiding
of gebruik door derden is verboden, tenzij anders vermeld. De afzender kan niet
verantwoordelijk worden gesteld voor enige wijziging van zijn bericht tijdens de

" elektronische transmissie.
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From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Sent: Saturday, December 11, 2010 8:29 AM
To: Hutchings, Jill; Graze, Deborah E; Posner, Michael H; Austrian, Courtney E
Subject: Fw: Overnight Brief 12/11/--Iran stoning case
i
From: OpsAlert
Sent: Sat Dec 11 05:30:08 2010 S
Subject: Overnight Brief 12/11/I (SBU) NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED !

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

® EXECUTIVE SECRETARIAT
¥IL? Operations Center

Overnight Brief

Saturday, December 11, 2010
0530 EST

'WIKILEAKS UPDATE

ISRAEL OFFERS COMPENSATION FOR TURKISH DEATHS

(SBU) Israeli Prime Minister Netanyahu proposed paying $100,000 to each family of the nine Turkish citizens
killed during the raid on a Gaza-bound aid flotilla in May, in exchange for Turkish protection against lawsuits,
media report. Embassy Ankara comments while promising, the proposal falls short of Turkey’s demand for a
formal apology. Embassy Tel Aviv adds Israel is treading carefully to avoid being perceived as acquiescing to
Turkish demands. (Ops/Embassy Ankara e-mail, Ops/Embassy Tel Aviv telcon, Al Jazeera)

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
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From: Ashraf, Madeeha S

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 7:31 PM

To: Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H

Subject: FW: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

Sorry, just read the high side chain on this same subject and realized that neither DRL, nor L were on this chain. I'm
asking 10 to redo the cable on this based on the points discussed on this chain. :

Thanks,

Madeeha
Classified by M, DoS on 12/31/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason:
1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on: 08/06/2025

Madeeha Ashraf :

D(S) Staff

202-647-8690

From: Ashraf, Madeeha S

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 6:56 PM

To: Bass, Warren; Anderson, Gerald C; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G."; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; DiCarlo, Rosemary A
(USUN); 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Shapiro, Daniel B."; 'Power, Samantha J.'; 'Geffen, Daniel A.'

Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

Thanks, B
Madeeha REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer :
Madeeha Ashraf
D(S) Staff
202-647-8690

From: Bass, Warren

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 6:04 PM _

To: Anderson, Gerald C; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; DiCarlo, Rosemary
A (USUN); 'Busby, Scott W."; 'Shapiro, Daniel B.'; 'Power, Samantha J."; 'Geffen, Daniel A.'

Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?
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From: Anderson, Gerald C

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 5:59 PM

To: Ashraf, Madeeha S; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Bass, Warren; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; DiCarlo, Rosemary A
(USUN); 'Busby, Scott W."; 'Shapiro, Daniel B.'; 'Power, Samantha 1."; 'Geffen, Daniel A.'

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

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 5:57 PM

To: Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Bass, Warren; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; DiCarlo, Rosemary A
(USUN); 'Busby, Scott W.'; 'Shapiro, Damel B."; 'Power, Samantha J."; ‘Geffen, Daniel A.' '

Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn Jessica

Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

[ ]

Madeeha Ashraf
D(8) Staff
202-647-8690

From: Walles, Jacob

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 5:54 PM

To: 'Kumar, Prem G.'; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Bass, Warren; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; DiCario, Rosemary
A (USUN); Busby, Smtt W.; Shapiro, Daniel B.; Power, Samantha J.; Geffen, Daniel A.

Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenber, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From:| [

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 5:19 PM a

To: Ashraf, Madeeha S; Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; DiCarlo, Rosemary A
(USUN); Busby, Scott W.; Shapiro, Daniel B.; Power, Samantha J.; Geffen, Daniel A.

Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

Sorry, just got out of a bunch of mtgs.

Thanks,
Prem

From: Ashraf, Madeeha S [mailto:AshrafMS@state.gov]

Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 3:34 PM

To: Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Busby, Scott
W.; Shapiro, Daniel B.; Power, Samantha J.; Kumar, Prem G.; Geffen, Daniel A.

Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

Gerry,

I know this isn’t fully cleared, but in the interest of time (D left for leave today), | went ahead and shared with him. [

Thanks,
Madeeha
Madeeha Ashraf

D(8) Staff
202-647-8690

From: Bass, Warren
Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 12:45 PM
To: Walles, Jacob; Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN);

| | Geffen, Daniel A.
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Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Rudman, Mara; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

+ Jessye Lapenn (who'll be minding the store for Suzanne) and Dan Geffen (who's been doing likewise for Scott).

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Walles, Jacob
Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 11:51 AM

To: Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Anderson, Gerald C; DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); | | B6
|

Cci Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Bass, Warren; Rudman, Mara
Subject: Re: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?
+ Mara
From: Barks-Ruggles, Erica J -
To: Anderson, Gerald C; DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Walles, Jacob;| | B6'
Cc: Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Bass, Warren
Sent: Fri Aug 06 11:07:17 2010
Subject: RE: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?

o - : B5

- Erica
SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
From: Anderson, Gerald C
Sent: Friday, August 06, 2010 9:59 AM .
To: DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Walles, Jacaob; 'Busby, Scott W."; "Shapiro, Daniel B.'
Cc: Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Carpenter, Michael R; Ashraf, Madeeha S
Subject: Heads up: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission (FFM): What Next ?
Here's Geneva’s cable reporting the state of play. Would welcome your thoughts on the course of action outlined
below:
B5
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This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
From: Cassayre, Mark ]
To: Donahoe, Eileen C; 10-HR-DL; Geneva HRC; Griffiths, Douglas M; Nossel, Suzanne F
Sent: Fri Aug 06 06:44:48 2010
Subject: HRC Gaza Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission: What Next ?
Flotilla Cable below.
UNCLASSIFIED

MRN: 10 GENEVA 684
Date/DTG: Aug 08, 2010 / 061035Z AUG 10
From: USMISSION GENEVA
Action: WASHDC, SECSTATE IMMEDIATE
E.O.: 13526
TAGS: PHUM, PREL, IS, KPAL, TU, UNHRC-1
Captions: SENSITIVE
Reference: A) GENEVA 654
Subject: HRC Gaza Fiotilla Fact-Finding Mission: What Next ?
1. (U) This is an action request. See para 13.
SUMMARY
2. ' (SBU) Following Secretary General Ban Ki-moon’s announcement (on
August 2) of a panel of inquiry into the May 31 flotilla incident, and the
decision of both Israel and Turkey to cooperate with this investigation, o5
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End Summary.

Reactions to Ban’s Announcement

3. (U) Human Rights Council President Sihasak Phuanketkeow (Thailand)
stated at a press conference on August 4 that the Geneva and New York
processes would not overlap, but would “complement” one another. He
stated that the Geneva process would focus on “perceived violations of
human rights and humanitarian law” while the New York process would focus
on preventing similar incidents in the future.

B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)
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1.4(B)
1.4(D)
B1

Status of the Geneva Investigation

7. (SBU) Discussions with the OHCHR staff supporting the Geneva fact-
finding mission closely tracked with the view outlined by the HRC
President in his August 4 press statement (see para 2). The fact-finding
mission sees itself as having a clear, “fixed” mandate from the HRC to
investigate alleged violations of international human rights and
humanitarian law, during the specific event of the flotilla

incident. Ban’s announcement does not change or affect that mandate.

8. (SBU) The fact-finding mission members will meet in Geneva beginning
August 9 and will devise a formal plan of work. While in Geneva, the
members will request meetings with several diplomatic missions including
the United States. )

9. (SBU) The fact-finding mission intends to request travel to Jordan,
Turkey, and Israel to speak with government officials and witnesses. They
intend to write a report detailing what occurred with an analysis of
whether international law was violated. The group will submit the report
at the September 2010 session of the Human Rights Council, at which point
the mandate will be completed, barring any new resolution extending the
mandate. Given the short timetable for the panel to carry out its work
and the insatiable appetite of many HRC delegations for scrutiny of
Israeli conduct, a call from some quarters to extend the mandate is judged
likely.

B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

Comment and Possible Alternatives
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SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: _ Griffiths, Douglas M |?ELBEA§;E1'N :Aﬁ;l;\
Sent: Friday, July 16, 2010 6:05 AM 4(B),B1,1.4(D),
To: Bass, Warren; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Geneva HRC: Doriahoe, Eileen C: 10-HR-DL:

Nossel, Suzanne F; DRL-MLGA-DL; King, Betty; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E;
Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Simon, Jennifer J; Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko,
Barbara J (USUNY); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Schedlbauer, Amy W; Banos, Mariano H;
Cassidy, Joseph P; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Andris, Matthew R; Doutrich, Jack T;
Holmstrom, Todd C; Walles, Jacob; "Kumar, Prem G.'; 'Busby, Scott W.'; Posner, Michael
H; Graze, Deborah E

" Subject: RE: SBU - Israelis on Flotilla and Goldstone Committees
Categories: Working
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
SensitivityCode: Sensitive

High Commissioner Pillay has removed Motola from the Goldstone follow-up committee and replaced him with Simon
Walker, who was described as a “straight arrow” by an OHCHR contact.

Interesting example of engagement with Pillay actually having a tangible result.

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

,fcu:zmaai{m, DoS on 12/31/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~
Reason: 1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on: 07/16/2025

From: Bass, Warren

Sent: Thursday, July 15, 2010 5:51 PM

To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Griffiths, Douglas M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; IO-HR-DL Nossel, Suzanne F; DRL-
MLGA-DL; King, Betty; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Simon, JenmferJ Germain,
Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara ] (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Schedlbauer, Amy W; Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy,
Joseph P; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Andris, Matthew R; Doutrich, Jack T; Holmstrom, Todd C; Walles, Jacob;
'‘Kumar, Prem G."; Busby, Scott W.

Subject: SBU - Israelis on Flotilla and Goldstone Committees

Looping the usual Goldstone suspects and USUN/NY.

SBU . |REVIEW AUTHORITY Sharon Ahmad, Senior |

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Sent: Thursday, July 15, 2010 11:45 AM

To: Griffiths, Douglas M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; IO-HR DL; Nossel, Suzanne F;- DRL-MLGA-DL; King, Betty;
Bass, Warren; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E

Subject: Re: SBU - Israelis on Flotilla and Goldstone Committees

Looping in A/S Posner and PDAS Graze.
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From: Griffiths, Douglas M

To: Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; I0-HR-DL; Nossel, Suzanne F; DRL-MLGA-DL; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; King, Betty

Bass, Warren
Sent: Thu Jul 15 11:30:58 2010
Subject: SBU - Israelis on Flotilla and Goldstone Committees

SBU — Entire Text:

Ronny Yaar met with Pillay. | NR
i
On the Flotilla issue B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)
NR

i’tegards,

Doug

Douglas M. Griffiths

Deputy Permanent Representative
Tel: (41) 022 749 4302

Email: GriffithsDM @State.Gov

Pleose visit the U.5. Mission Homepage, become a fan on Facebook, or follow us on Twitter.

U.S. Mission Homepage | Facebook Page | Twitter | YouTube

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED..
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E

From: Posner, Michael H B s
Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 7:11 AM igg'-EASE IN PART
To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M !

Subject: Re: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission
Thks

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

To: Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Johnstone, Kari A (DRL)
Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Fri Jul 23 07:08:51 2010

Subject: Fw: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mnssnon

Mike—-below is the final list of members of the fiotilla fact-finding mission just in from Geneva..

From: Griffiths, Douglas M

To: Bass, Warren; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Geneva HRC, Donahoe, Eileen C; 10-HR-DL; Nossel, Suzanne F; DRL-MLGA-
DL; King, Betty; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Simon, Jennifer J; Germain, Ellen J
(USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Schedlbauer, Amy W; Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P;
Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Andris, Matthew R; Doutrich, Jack T; Holmstrom, Todd_.C; Walles, Jacob; 'Kumar, Prem

G.' |
- Ul'23 06:30:30 2010

Subject: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission

B6

Dear all,

Here's the final compasition. Apparently an Austrian candidate dropped out this week upon the recommendation of the
Austrian government. At the bottom | pasted the Wikipedia bio on the new member from Trinidad and Tobago.

Regards, -
Doug REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

. Reviewer
Dear Colleagues,

With reference to my earlier emails to you below, there has been some changes in the composition of the FFM on Flotilla.
The announcement will be made early afternoon today with the final list of the members of the FFM as follows:

Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, QC (Trinidad and Tobago), served as a judge of the International Criminal Court from 2003 to 2007. He was
Attorney General and Minister of Legal Affairs of Trinidad and Tobago between 1969 and 1973. He was appointed Queen’s Counsel
(QC) in 1971. He has now returned to private practice with Chambers in Trinidad and Tobago and Grenada, West Indies.

Sir Desmond de Silva, QC (United Kingdom), is a lawyer with extensive experience in human rights, war crimes, terrorism, business
crime, espionage trials and sports law. He served as Chief Prosecutor of the UN backed Special Court for Sierra Leone in 2005 at the
level of an Under-Secretary General of the United Nations. He has been Queen’s Counsel (QC) since 1984.
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Mary Shanthi Dairiam (Malaysia) was a member of the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women from 2005 to
2008. Since 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Nations Development Programme. She is a
founding member of the Board of Directors of the International Women's Rights Action Watch Asia Pacific.

Sincerely,

Kanita

Kanita Sapphaisal
Second Secretary
Permanent Mission of Thailand to the UN Office
and other International Organizations in Geneva
Tel. +41 22 715 1010

+4122 715 1028
Fax. +41 22 715 1000

Karl Terrence Hudson-Phillips, Q.C. (b. April 20, 1933) is a former Attorney General of Trinidad and
Tobago and a former judge of the International Criminal Court. He was also Lead Counsel in the murder trial of
Grenadian Prime Minister Maurice Bishop.

Hudson-Phillips read law at Selwyn College, University of Cambridge; after completing a Master's degree in
Law in 1959 he was called to the bar at Gray's Inn, London. He returned to Trinidad and Tobago where he
established a distinguished legal practice and was appointed a Queen's Counsel in 1970. He served as a Member
of Parliament from 1966 to 1976. Between 1969 and 1973 he served as Attorney General and Minister of Legal
Affairs. In this capacity he was associated with the dreaded "Public Order Act" which was proposed by the
People's National Movement government in response to the Black Power riots and Army Mutiny of 1970. In
1973 he fell out of favour with then Prime Minister Eric Williams (for openly campaigning to replace Williams,
who had spoken about retirement). This ended his political career in the PNM.

In 1974 Hudson-Phillips founded the National Land Tenants and Ratepayers Association of Trinidad and
Tobago. In 1980 he founded the Organisation for National Reconstruction, a political party which contested the
1981 General Elections. Despite getting the second-highest vote tally in the election, the ONR failed to secure a
single seat in Parliament. The ONR went on to form an accommodation with the National Alliance to contest
the 1983 local government elections, and went on the merge with those parties to form the National Alliance for
Reconstruction. Hudson-Phillips and Basdeo Panday, as the leaders of the two largest factions in what became
the NAR decided to step aside and allow A.N.R. Robinson, leader of one of the smaller parties, to become party
leader. The NAR contested the 1986 general elections and won 33 of the 36 seats in Parliament. However,
Hudson-Phillips did not take an active role in the party after the election (allegedly due to disagreements with
AN.R. Robinson).

In addition to the Grenada murder trial, Hudson-Phillips has been involved in many high-profile cases
throughout the Caribbean, as both Presecutor and Defender. In 1999 he was elected President of the Law
Association of Trinidad and Tobago.

In February 2003, Hudson-Phillips was elected to the first ever bench of International Criminal Court judges.
As "dean of the judges", he chaired the first meetings of judges before the election of the Presidency.* He also
contributed actively to the drafting of the Regulations of the Court. He resigned from the court for personal
reasons on 14 March 2007.1! '
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[edit] Publications

+ Hudson-Phillips, K. 1968. The Historical Development of the Settlement of Trade Disputes in Trinidad .
and Tobago. 1.L.O. Monograph. '
» Hudson-Phillips, K. 1987. 4 Case for Greater Public Participation in the Legislative Process. Statute
. Law Review. :
» Hudson-Phillips, K. 1997. Law and Practice of Arbitration in Trinidad and Tobago. International
Commercial Arbitration Bulletin. '

|edit] References
1. ~22 nteational Criminal Court (19 March 2007). Resignation of Judge Karl T Hudson-Phillips. Accessed 11
March 2009. ’
|edit] External links

« International Criminal Court Biography
s Curriculum Vitae, 2002

Retrieved from "http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Karl Hudson-Phillips"

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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RELEADE IN FAR I

B1,1.4(D),NR,B3 M

—— e
From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Sent: ; Monday, November 01, 2010 4:34 PM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Stanfield, Emily; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Mann, Winston E (DRL)
Subject: Read out: pre-trip meeting with| . B3 DOD-PII
Attachments:
) Elassiﬂed by M, DoS on 12/31/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason: 1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 |
. Hi A/S Posner, Declassify on: 11/01/2025 B3 DOD-PII
Hope your trip is going well. Last Friday, Joe, Jessica, Winston and Sarah met with| fto discuss the

upcoming trip to Israel. He has a copy of all of the briefing materials and is looking forward to the trip. Below is a short
summary of our conversation: '

e [ NR
. B1
1.4(D)
. NR
B3 DOD-PII

Onfiotilla,  thought the GOl would be able to admit emrfmisﬁke with us. | asked about comparative
U.S. examples and procedures. He didn't think we would do what they did (drop down on the ship at night,
etc). But we are not enforcing similar blockades. -

NR

/

Best,

Sarah REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
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
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r——
From: Yetken, Melike A (DRL)
Sent: ) Tuesday, September 28, 2010 12:21 AM
To: b . DRL-Users-DL
Cc: DRL UNGA 2010;
Subject: Final UNGA Readouts: 9/27
Attach NGA R 2710, -
ments: UNGA Readout 092710.docx RELEASE IN PART
1.4(B),B1,1.4(D),NR,B6
Colleagues,

See below for the UNGA team’s final readout from meetings today in New York.

Many thanks for your continued patience throughout the UNGA process. The FO had many successful meetings due to
your hard work. _

With much appreciation and respect,

The DRL UNGA Team (Emily Stanfield, Josh Morris, Joannella Morales, Alan Krill, Joe Cassidy, and Melike Yetken)

From: Melike Yetken [ ]
To: Yetken, Melike A (DRL)

Sent: Tue Sep 28 00:11:55 2010

Subject: UNGA Readout 9/27

DRL UNGA: Daily Meetings Readout
Monday, September 27, 2010

i'CIassified by M, DoS on 12/31/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason: 1.4(B), 1.4(D),
B1 ~ Declassify on: 09/28/2025 )

In this readout:

DAS Melia’s Meeting with Turkey (9/27)

DAS Melia’s Meeting with Mauritius (9/27)

DAS Melia’s Meeting with Maldives (9/27)

DAS Melia’s Meeting with Spain (9/27)

DAS Melia’s Meeting with Canada (9/27)

DAS Baer’s Meeting with Ghana (9/24)

UPDATED: DAS Baer’s Meeting with Peru (9/24)

SEAS Hannah Rosenthal’s Meeting with France, Argentina, Spain, Ukraine, and
Lithuania (9/23-9/24) .

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer

DAS Melia’s Meeting with Turkey (9/27)
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DAS Melia meeting with Turkey DirGen for Multilateral Affairs Fertekligil

Topics covered:

e Flotilla

NR

Following a discussion of human rights conditions in Turkey, including the recent constitutional
amendments and the treatment of Turkey’s Kurds, DAS Melia and Amb. Fertekligil turned to

the summer’s Flotilla event and its multilateral aftermath in NY and Geneva,| B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

NR
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DAS Melia’s Meeting with Maldives (9/27)
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From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 10:55 AM

To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Lieberman, Jessica D ;
(DRL); Johnstone, Kari A (DRL) .

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P

Subject: RE: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission

Hello, J

| wanted to offer a little additional background on the debate over the membership of this mission.

The Fact-finding Mission was mandated this past June in HRC Resolution 14/1. They are mandated with investigating the
"Israeli violations of international law" in the Gaza flotilla incident. Once OHCHR selected'membersf' Turkey voiced
opposition to one member, Dino Kritsiotis (Zimbabwe). HC Pillay removed him and replaced him with a new member
from Trinidad and Tobago. | |

Israel does not intend to cooperate with this committee, but has noted they are cooperating with the UNSYG who may
be establishing a separate investigation. This committee is supposed to report their findings in the September HRC
session. MAG Mandelblit mentioned yesterday that Israel's domestic commission, led by Turkel, will not complete their
work until September, which would be too late for this mission to include the Turkel conclusions in their report. Senior
level testimony before the Turkel Commission begins the first week of August with PM Netanyahu, Mandelblit said the

testimony for this commission will be public. | B1 -
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

Best, '

Sarah Classified by M DoS on 12/31/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason:

1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on: 07/23/2025
Sarah Johnston-Gardner 3
Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer. |

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 7:09 AM
To: Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Johnstone, Kari A (DRL)

Cc: Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Subject: Fw: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission

Mike--below is the final list of members of the flotilla fact-finding mission just in from Geneva..
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From: Griffiths, Douglas M

To: Bass, Warren; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Geneva HRC; Donahoe, Eileen C; IO-HR-DL; Nossel, Suzanne F; DRL-MLGA-

DL; King, Betty; Posner, Michael H; Graze, Deborah E; Anderson, Brooke D (USUN); Simon, Jennifer J; Germain, Ellen ]

(USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Schedlbauer, Amy W; Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P;
Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Andris, Matthew R: Doutrich. Jack T: Holmstrom. .'l'ndd| C; Walles, Jacob; "Kumar, Prem B6

2 Fri Jul 23 06:40:30 2010 . |
Subject: SBU -Final Composition of HRC Flotilla Fact-Finding Mission

Dear all,

Here's the final composition. Apparently an Austrian candidate dropped out this week upon the recommendation of the
Austrian government. At the bottom | pasted the Wikipedia bio on the new member from Trinidad and Tobago.

Regards,

Doug

Dear Colleagues,

With reference to my earlier emails to you below, there has been some changes in the composition-of the FFM on Flotilla.
The announcement will be made early afternoon today with the final list of the members of the FFM as follows:

Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, QC (Trinidad and Tobago), served as a judge of the International Criminal Court from 2003 to 2007. He was
Attorney General and Minister of Legal Affairs of Trinidad and Tobago between 1969 and 1973. He was appointed Queen'’s Counsel :
(QC) in 1971. He has now returned to private practice with Chambers in Trinidad and Tobago and Grenada, West Indies. I

Sir Desmond de Silva, QC (United Kingdom), is a lawyer with extensive experience in human rights, war crimes, terrorism, business
crime, espionage trials and sports law. He served as Chief Prosecutor of the UN backed Special Court for Sierra Leone in 2005 at the
level of an Under-Secretary General of the United Nations. He has been Queen’s Counsel (QC) since 1984,

Mary Shanthi Dairiam (Malaysia) was a member of the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women from 2005 to
2008. Since 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Nations Development Programme. She is a
founding member of the Board of Directors of the International Women'’s Rights Action Watch Asia Pacific.

Sincerely,

Kanita

Kanita Sapphaisal
Second Secretary
Permanent Mission of Thailand to the UN Office
and other International Organizations in Geneva
Tel. +41 227151010

+41 22715 1028
Fax. +41 22 715 1000

-~
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Karl Terrence Hudson-Phillips, Q.C. (b. April 20, 1933) is a former Attorney General of Trinidad and ‘
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

. the 1983 local government elections, and went on the merge with those parties to form the National Alliance for
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

In February 2003, Hudson-Phillips was elected to the first ever bench of International Criminal Court '!udges.
As "dean of the judges", he chaired the first meetings of judges before the election of the Presidency.— He also
contributed actively to the drafting of the Regulations of the Court. He resigned from the court for personal
reasons on 14 March 2007.1 ;

[edit] Publications

o Hudson-Phillips, K. 1968. The Historical Development of the Settlement of Trade Disputes in Trinidad
and Tobago. 1.L.0. Monograph.

» Hudson-Phillips, K. 1987. A Case for Greater Public Participation in the Legislative Process. Statute
Law Review.

« Hudson-Phillips, K. 1997. Law and Practice of Arbitration in Trinidad and Tobago. International
Commercial Arbitration Bulletin.

[edit] References

1. ~22nternational Criminal Court (19 March 2007). Resignation of Judge Karl T. Hudson-Phillips. Accessed 11
March 2009.

[edit] External links

« International Criminal Court Biography

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No, C05905327 Date: 12!31f2015

StateDept008930



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05805327 Date: 12/31/2015

e Curriculum Vitae, 2002

Retrieved from "http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Karl Hudson-Phillips"

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: [ , IV USA TJAGLCS| . . | B3 DOD-PII
Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2010 9:02 AM

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: ‘ Harris, Robert K; Cassidy, Joseph P

Subject: RE: Read out - Arthur Lenk, Israeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swnss

opposition to Tomuschat, and flotilla (UNCLASSIFIED)

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
Caveats: NONE

RELEASE IN PART
1.4(B),B1,B5,1.4{D),NR,B3 DOD-PII,B6

Mike-{ | B5

Happy to remain engaged. Let me know if | can assist.

Dave : ‘
Classified by M, DoS on 12/31/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason:

1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on: 07/29/2025

—---Original Message---—-
From: Posner, Michael H [mailto:PosnerMH@state.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, July 27, 2010 8:10 AM

To ]CIV USA TJAGLCS; Harris, Robert K; Cassidy, Joseph P ) ) B3 DOD-PII
Cc: Koh, Harold Hongju; Cleveland, Sarah H

Subject: FW: Read out - Arthur Lenk Israeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss, opposition to Tomuschat, and

flotilla

BS

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL) Reviewer =

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 4:55 PM
To: Posner, Michael H .
Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P;

Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Johnstone, Kari A (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL) i
Subject: Read out - Arthur Lenk, Israeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss, opposition to Tomuschat, and

flotilla
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Hi A/S Posner,

As promised here is a out of my meeting with Arthur Lenk, Director of the International Law Department of the Israeli
MFA. | also included an update from Geneva's meetings with the Israeli and Swiss Ambassadors. | still do not have a
final copy of the UNSYG report, but will pass on to you as soon as | see it.

Arthur Lenk:

B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905335 Date: 12/31/2015

StateDept008933



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905335 Date: 12/31/2015

B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)
* Flotilla:
0 UNSYG -this week there is a high level Israeli delegation meeting in
NY, with the UNSYG office and the US mission. | B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)
From Geneva:
o Flotilla in UN - The Israelis are working with the UNSYG on his &
inquiry, possible to have a NZ chair. | ) . B1 |
] . 1.4(B)
1.4(D)
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B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

Best,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights an& Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)

202-647-2286

--—0riginal Message—-—

From: Khanna, Melanie J

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 12:59 PM

To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M;
Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K;
Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HRC; _t Griffiths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H;
Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Ambassador Yaar called today with an update on several items:
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B1 |
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

Ambassador Held also called earlier:

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

Melanie J. Khanna
Legal Adviser
U.S. Mission to the U.N. and
‘Other |nternaﬁona| Organizations
+41-22-749-4316

+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 9:17 AM -

To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Posner, Michael H

Subject: FW: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905335 Date: 12/31/2015
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Good morning,

Friendly reminder I'll be at a briefing with Arthur Lenk, Dir. of the International Law Dept of the Israeli MFA this morning

in the 10 conf room, 6323 from 10:30-11:30am.|

| B5

Best,

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)

202-647-2286

From: Stanfield, Emily

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 3:18 PM

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Subject: RE: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Thanks for the heads-up - also on Israel-related stuff, feel free to add Posner to fhese emails.

Emily Stanfield

(202) 647-1337 office

[BlackBerry

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 2:36 PM

To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M
(DRL) .

| You are all welcome to join.

B6
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Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily
Subject: FW: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Hi,

Arthur Lenk, the Director of the IL Department of the Israeli MFA will be here on Monday to brief further on the GOI
report. | | B5

Best, ) s

Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

—-— ‘
~

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)

202-647-2286:

From: Saltzman, Amy J

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 12:45 PM

To: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Harris, Robert K; Cassidy, Joseph P; Banos, Mariano H; Knopf, Payton L; Bass, Warren;
Walles, Jacob; Enav, Cari R; Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael D; Doutrich, Jack T; Tsou, Leslie M; Sicade, Lynn M
(DRL); Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Germain, Ellen } (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN);
Schedlbauer, Amy W; Andris, Matthew R; Gorove, Katherine M; Morrison, Andrew L

Cc: Ifill, Donna G (DRL); Weaver, Patricia A

Subject: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM

Arthur Lenk, Director of the Department of International Law at Israel's Ministry of Foreign Affairs, will be at DOS to brief
interested parties on Monday, July 26 at 10:30 AM. [ B5

1 " s |

| | Please let me know if you plan to
attend. '
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Thanks,

Arﬁy

Amy Saltzman
Bureau for International Organizations (10)
SaltzmanAl@state gov

(202) 647-9431
SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
Caveats: NONE
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) RELEASE IN PART

. B5,B6,NR

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2010 10:54 AM

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: Stanfield, Emily; Cassidy, Joseph P; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M;
Melia, Thomas O; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL)

Subject: Update on the HRC Fact Finding Mission--Turkish resolution

Attachments: Final TrackChanges.doc

Hi A/S Posner,

Hope you are well. | understand that you are interested in an update on flotilla issue at the HRC.

The U.S. statement at the HRC/messaging: |

The U.S. vote on the resolution: We now have a near final version of the Turkish follow-up resoclution, it endorses the
FFM report, includes a referral to the UNGA with no specific time and asks the High Commissioner to submit a follow-up
report at the March HRC session (attached). Conversations are angoing about whether we will call for the vote, how we
will vote and whether we will deliver an explanation of vote. I've asked all relevant bureaus for their position. Here is
the current thinking:

Expected vote count: U.S. opposed in isolation. Italy and Netherlands opposed the June resolution but are no longer
members. The new Euros are the UK (who had told Geneva they will abstain). Geneva and demarches have not

confirmed how the new EU members will vote (Poland, Moldova, Spain, Switzeriand), but I've asked Geneva to talk to
them.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY Sharon Ahmad, Senior
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905380 Date: 12/31/2015
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Best,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Globai Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Sent: Monday, September 27, 2010 8:57 PM

To: Galindo, David R; Melia, Thomas O

Cc: DRL-MLGA-DL; Graze, Deborah E; Stanfield, Emily; Hawkins, Jeffrey; Johnstone, Kari A (DRL)
Subject: Re: MLGA Radar/call fromJJ:lto Mike

Tom and MLGA colleagues — Mike got a call frm| __|this evening asking about next steps on fiotilla res after
dabate today—wijat is likely vote count, does report get sent to NY etc. Can you update Mike on all of this expanding on
the radar item? Y

From: Galindo, David R

To: DRL-Radar

Cc: DRL-MLGA-DL

Sent: Mon Sep 27 17:00:26 2010
Subject: MLGA Radar 9/27/10

_HRC Item 7 debate today: | |

[ )HRC Flotilla Fact Finding Mission debate will conclude tomorrow; the U.S.
statement will be released mid-morning. Israel stated that the HRC is not an honest broker in fact finding.
Turkey stated that the FFM did an excellent job and urges HRC follow-up. The Tomuschat and flotilla follow-
up resolutions will be voted on Thursday, and are likely to pass. (MLGA — Johnston-Gardner).

‘From: Khanna, Melanie J

Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2010 6:27 AM

To: Bass, Warren; Khanna, Melanie J; Nossei Suzanne F; I0-HR-DL; Cassidy, Joseph P; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R
(DRL); Aswad, Evelyn M;| ", Geneva HRC15; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; "Kumar, Prem G.";
Anderson, Brooke D (USLlIﬂ)_GﬁEEEn J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Barks-Ruggles, Erica J; Sutphin, Paul
R; Doutrich, Jack T; Walles, Jacob; Tsou, Leslie M; Rudman, Mara; Martin, Julie B; Donahoe, Eileen C

Subject: Fact finding mission—Turkish resolution as tabled

All, g
Attached is the latest draft Turkish resolution, reflecting small edits compared with what was circulated previously.

Voting could in
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theory take place as early as late tomorrow Geneva time (Wed), but this is more likely to come up for vote Thursday or
Friday.

Melanie J. Khanna
Legal Adviser
U.S. Mission to the U.N. and
Other International Organizations
+41-22-T49-4316
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

From: Ela Gorkem [mailto:egorkem@mfa.gov.tr]
Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2010 11:15 AM
To: Khanna, Melanie J

Subject: Fact finding mission

Dear Melanie,
Please find enclosed the draft resolution.
Sincerely,

Ela
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Subject:

A/S Posner,

McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL)

Tuesday, July 27, 2010 7:06 PM

Posner, Michael H

Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Background on HRC items for Posner-Donahoe mtg

RELEASE IN PART
B5,NR

We understand that you do not need any paper for your Friday meeting with Ambassador Donahoe, however we
wanted to be sure to provide you with some background on the possible issues that she could raise in your
meeting. Below are updates on the various HRC-related issues.

Best,
Kristen

Kristen McGeeney

Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights, and Labor

202-647-2019
McGeeneyKR2 @state.gov

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Seniior |

R e e
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o Report of the Fact-finding Mission on the Flotilla: OHCHR just announced the members of this
committee, they are: Karl T. Hudson-Phillips, QC (Trinidad and Tobago), Sir Desmond de Silva, QC

(United Kingdom), and Mary Shanthi Dairiam (Malaysia).
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RELEASE IN PART

!.4(8),81,35.1.4{D),NR.35!

i —
From: Posner, Michael H
Sent: Tuesday, July 27, 2010 8:02 AM
To Graze, Deborah E
Cc Baer, Daniel B )
Subject: FW: Read out - Arthur Lenk, Israeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss,
opposition to Tomuschat, and flotilla
Fyi —interesting — Lenk is the main lawyer in the MFA working on Goldstone related issues J |- BS

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 4:55 PM -

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P;
Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Johnstone, Kari A (DRL); Mann, Winston E (DRL)

Subject: Read out - Arthur Lenk, Israeli MFA - Goldstone issues, update on the Swiss, opposition to Tomuschat, and
flotilla

lCIasscfied by M, DoS on 12/31/2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason
Hi A/S Posner, [1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on: 07/27/2025

As promised here is 2 out of my meeting with Arthur Lenk, Director of the International Law Department of the Israeli
MFA. |also included an update from Geneva’s meetings with the Israeli and Swiss Ambassadors. | still do not have a
final copy of the UNSYG report, but will pass on to you as soon as | see it.

Arthur Lenk:

NR

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior |
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NR
T —— = —1.4(B)
* New HRC Fact-Finding Mission:
L | I- 1.4(D)
« Flotilla: B - - ' . B1
o UNSYG —this week there is a high level Israeli delegation meeting in NY, with the UNSYG office and the
us missionl B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D
o
o
From Geneva:
s sraeli Amb. Yaar:
NR
o Flotilla in UN - The Israelis are working with the UNSYG on his inquiry, possible to have a NZ chair. [
1.4(B)
SRS O S, — —1.4(D)
B1 NR
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NR

Best,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Laber (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

----- Original Message-----

From: Khanna, Melanie.]

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 12:59 PM v ’

To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P;
Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos,

Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E; ‘Geneva HRC;

; Griffiths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, B6
Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Ambassador Yaar called today with an update on several items:

NR

B1|
1.4(B)
1.4(D)

L

Ambassador Held also called earlier:

NR
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———— —

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

Melanie J. Khanna

Legal Adviser

U.S. Mission to the U.N. and )
Other International Organizations

+41-22-745-4316

+41-22-749-4343 (Fax)

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 9:17 AM

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
in the 10 conf room, 6323 from 10:30-11:30am. |

I ' You are all welcome to join.

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

Subject: RE: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10: 30 AM

Thanks for the heads-up — also on Israel-related stuff, feel free to add Posner to these emails.
Emily Stanfield

(202) 647-1337 office
(571) 216-7681 BlackBerry

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2010 2:36 PM

To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL)

Cc: McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Stanfield, Emily |

Subject: FW: Briefing with Arthur Lenk - 7/26, 10:30 AM J

Hi,

Arthur Lenk, the Director of the IL Department of the Israeli MFA will be here on Monday to brief further on the GOI
report.l |

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905331 Date: 12/31/2015
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
(DRL); Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Ried, Curtis R (USUN);
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

interested parties on Monday, July 26 at 10:30 AM. |

I

| Please let me know if you plan to
attend. :

Thanks,
Amy

Amy Saltzman
Bureau for International Organizations (IO)

SaltzmanAJ@state.gov
(202) 647-9431

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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NR,B6 |
From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 1:16 PM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Melia, Thomas O; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Stanfield, Emily; Cassidy,
Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Graze, Deborah E; Galindo, David R
Subject: ' RE: Israel resolutions voted in HRC today
Attachments: Flotilla resolution Turkey Final TrackChanges (2).doc; Palestinian Tomuschat followup as

of 9.29.10.pdf; Flotilla FFM report A HRC.15.21_en.pdf; Tomuschat Report.pdf

Hi A/S Posner,

As promised, attached are the flotilla and Tomuschat follow-up resolutions as well as the Tomuschat
Committee report and the flotilla fact-finding report, I'll bring up a hard copies. The final versions of the
resolutions will come from Geneva later today, but the texts will be the same. Also here are the vote totals
with the countries who abstained:

Flotilla

Yes:30

No:1 ; _ :

Abstention: 15- all EU, Switzerland, Moldova, Ukraine, Korea, Japan, Cameroon, Zambia, Norway

Best
o REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Sarsh Reviewer
Sarah Johnston-Gardner
Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL)
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286 :

From: Cassidy, Joseph P

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 11:06 AM

To: Posner, Michael H

Cc: Melia, Thomas O; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Subject: FW: Israel resolutions voted in HRC today '

Importance: High

As promised, here are the EOVs and vote totals. Sarah will forward copies of the resolution texts themselves. Joe
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From: Andris, Matthew R
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 10:58 AM ‘
To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Hale, David M; Bass, Warren; Walles, Jacob; Lapenn, Jessica; Sutphin, Paul R; Rudman, Mara;
Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Doutrich, Jack T; Anderson, Brooke D
(USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN), Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Banos, Mariano H; Cassidy, Joseph P
_Cc: Honiastein, Mi ston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Bame, David J; | |

Waters, John R; Goldberger, Thomas H; Feltman, Jeffrey D; )
; Donahoe, Eileen C; Khanna, Melanie J; Cassayre, Mark J; Le
Mon, Christopher J; P-IO Duty; Katz, Jonathan D; Bame, David J; Schlachter, Mark M; Baily, Jess L; Gregonis, Meghan E;
Mokhtarzada, Homeyra N
Subject: Israel resolutions voted in HRC today

All:

The two Israel-related resolutions we have been tracking were voted in the Human Rights Council in the past hour. The
results:

Flotilla FFM follow-up:
Yes: 30 .

- No: 1(U.s.)
Abstentions: 15

Ambassador Donahoe read the EOVs we cleared last night, which are attached for everyone's reference and
records. Thanks to everyone for the hard work on these.

Best,
Matthew R. Andris

Bureau of International Organization Affairs
Office of Human Rights
(202) 647-5892 - office
cell
andrismr@state.gov
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 12/31/2015
RELEASE IN PART |
1.4(B),B1,B5,1.4(D),NR,B6

=
From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Sent: Tuesday, August 03, 2010 7:25 AM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Graze, Deborah E; Stanfield, Emily
Subject: Fw: Meeting: Swiss working group on the 4th Geneva Convention HCP, HRC and
Israel/Pal related issues - Thursday 10am, DRL conf room
Fyi wanted you to be aware of this. Classified by M DoS on _12-31-2015 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL
Reason: 1.4(B), 1.4(D), B1 ~ Declassify on: 08/03/2025

----- Original Message —---

From: Khanna, Melanie J A
To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Ostermeier, Amy A; Harris, Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Nossel, Suzanne F;
Cassidy, Joseph P; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Pomper, Stephen E;
Griffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL);
Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; Lapenn, Jessica; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Tsou, Leslie M; Weinstein, lvan S; Cassayre,
Mark J; Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Kolb, Natalie; Coughlin, Shaun (S/WC); Donahoe, Eileen C
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Geneva HRC :
Sent: Tue Aug 03 05:12:05 2010 !
Subject: Re: Meeting: Swiss working group on the 4th Geneva Convention HCP, HRC and Israel/Pal related issues -
Thursday IOam‘, DRL conf room

B1
14(B) .
1.4(D)

-—- Qriginal Message --——-

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Ostermeier, Amy A; Harris, Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Khanna, Melanie J; |
Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H;

Pomper, Stephen E; Griffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Lieberman,

Jessica D (DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; Lapenn, Jessica; Khanna, Melanie J; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Tsou,

Leslie M; Weinstein, Ivan S; Cassayre, Mark J; Griffiths, Douglas M; Masilko, Barbara ) (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN);

Kolb, Natalie; Coughlin, Shaun (S/WCi)
Cc: Fitzpatrick’ Kathleen M REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior

Sent: Mon Aug 02 18:19:52 2010 Reviewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 12/31/2015

StateDept008953



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 12/31/2015

Subject: Meeting: Swiss working group onlthe 4th Geneva Convention HCP, HRC and Israel/Pal related issues - Thursday
10am, DRL conf room

Hi all,

Thank you,
Sarah ’_

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
* 202-647-2286

-—---Original Message--—

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Wednesday, July 28, 2010 4:48 PM

To: Ostermeier, Amy A; Harris, Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P;
Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Pomper,
Stephen E; Griffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D
(DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; Lapenn, Jessica; Khanna, Melanie J

Subject; RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Hi,

Best,
Sarah

Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer 3

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

-—-0riginal Message-—

From: Ostermeier, Amy A

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 8:34 PM

To: Harris, Robert K; Perina, Alexandra H; Jlohnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Khanﬁa, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F;
Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah
H; Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HRC;| lGrifﬁths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda;
Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL);
Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren; Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: Re: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905340 Date: 12/31/2015
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+ Jessye Lapenn, |I0-HR Office Director
Sent via blackberry

----- Original Message -—--

From: Harris, Robert K

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P;

Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H: Cleveland,

Sarah H; Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HRC; |
J |Griffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty; '

Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren

Sent: Mon Jul 26 17:10:11 2010

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Alexandra,

Bob

-----Original Message—---

From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 4:09 PM

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne 5 Casmdy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M;
Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K;
Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HRC;\ | Griffiths, Douglas M; Jacobson, Linda;
Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL);
Doutrich, Jack T; Bass, Warren

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention |V COP

Happy to discuss further. Best, A

—-—-0Original Message-----
From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
_Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 2:38 PM
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To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein,

Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HRC;

|Griffiths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda: Schwartz, B6 ’
I
|
|

Jonathan B; King, Betty; Sicade, Lynn M (DRL); McGeeney, Kristen R (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Doutrich, Jack T;
Bass, Warren

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

‘ .
Thank you, ) \
Sarah Johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL) Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

----Original Message—-

From: Khanna, Melanie J

Sent: Monday, July 26, 2010 12:59 PM 5

To: Khanna, Melanie J; Nossel, Suzanne F; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M;
Ostermeier, Amy A; Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K;

Pomper, Stephen E; Geneva HR‘!:;L ﬁbrﬁﬁths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; B6
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
| 1.4(B) |
' | 1.4(D)

NR

Ambassador Held also called earlier:

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

Melanie J. Khanna
Legal Adviser
U.S. Mission to the U.N. and
Other International Organizations :
+41-22-749-4316 =
+41-22-749-4343 (Fax) '

--—-Qriginal Message-—---

From: Khanna, Melanie )

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 7:03 PM

To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A;
Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E;

Geneva HRC;| bﬁfﬁths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; B6
Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty

Subject: RE: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

Doug Griffiths met with Swiss Amb Held today. Held reported that:

NR'
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
-----0riginal Message-——
From: Nossel, Suzanne F
Sent: Friday, July 23, 2010 1:32 AM
To: Khanna, Melanie J; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Ostermeier, Amy A;
Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E;
Geneva HRC; Griffiths, Douglas M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda;
Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty -
Subject: Re: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP

‘Th_a nks

--—- Original Message -—-

From: Khanna, Melanie J

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Nossel, Suzanne F; Ostermeier, Amy A;
Honigstein, Michael D; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Harris, Robert K; Pomper, Stephen E;
Geneva HRC; | ]; Griffiths, Douglas
M; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; King, Betty
‘Sent: Thu Jul 22 12:59:18 2010

Subject: Swiss intentions on Geneva Convention IV COP
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Thanks,
Melanie \
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RELEASE IN
- PART B5,NR,
B6
From: " Cassidy, Joseph P
Sent: Thursday, August 12, 2010 7:06 PM
To: Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Johnstone, Kari A (DRL); Lieberman, Jessica D
(DRL)
Subject: Demarches on Possible Swiss Convocation of Geneva Convention Signatories
Importance: High

Mike (and Kathy/Kari/Jessica),

10 is circulating a demarche cable opposing Swiss convocation, based on yesterday’s conference call. | reworked the
original draft and propose the following talking points, based on the formulation you used with Amb. Held:

: B5
L ]
L]
NR
@
L ]
Do those look OK to you? Thanks, Joe
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer |
Joseph Cassidy
Director, Multilateral and Global Affairs
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights, and Labor
U.S. Department of State
Direct: 202-647-a380 :
E 1 _ B6
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cassidvip@state.gov
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. |RELEASE IN PART

BS,NR
From: ~ Posner, Michael H
Sent: Friday, July 09, 2010 6:12 PM i
To: Koh, Harold Hongju(
Cc: Cleveland, Sarah H; Graze, Deborgl'! E
Subject: ; Fw: HRC Israel panels '
Fyi

----- Original Message —--

From: Cassidy, Joseph P

To: Posner, Michael H; Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL)
Cc: Graze, Deborah E; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M
Sent: FriJul 09 18:02:56 2010 /
Subject: RE: HRC Israel panels |

BS

The Flotilla panel is: Sir Desmond de Silva (UK), Dino Kritsiotis (Zimbabwe), and Mary Shanthi Dairiam (Malaysia). ‘ i NR

‘ Joe BS

--—---0Original Message-—--

From: Posner, Michael H :

Sent: Friday, July 09, 2010 5:57 PM

To: Lieberman, Jessica D (DRL); Cassidy, Joseph P

Cc: Graze, Deborah E; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M ’
Subject: Fw: HRC Israel panels

Thoughts?

-—- Original Message —--
From: Nossel, Suzanne F

To:‘Posner:, Michael H; Koh, Harold Hongju BS
Sent: Fri Jul 09 17:54:29 2010
Subject: HRC Israel panels
_ | NR

| know we had an exchange some time ago | ’ |

‘ WRT this and the new flotilla panel,| | BS
Many thanks, |
Suzanne :

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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BS,NR
From: Graze, Deborah E
Sent: Friday, July 09, 2010 6:04 PM
To: Posner, Michael H
Cc: Koh, Harold Hongju
Subject: RE: HRC Israel panels

Also, pending, Mike, is your possibly meeting with Amb. Oren

-———-Qriginal Message-—-

From: Posner, Michael H

Sent: Friday, July 09, 2010 5:59 PM

To: Koh, Harold Hongju

Cc: Cleveland, Sarah H; Graze, Deborah E
Subject: Fw: HRC israel panels

Harold

] : B5
Have a good week-end . . . :
Mp o
-—— Original Message --—
From: Nossel, Suzanne F . i
To: Posner, Michael H; Koh, Harold Hongju BS

Sent: FriJul 09 17:54:29 2010
Subject: HRC Israel panels

" NR

| know we had an exchange some time ago I _l |
[ | WRT this and the ne\L Tiotilla panel,| | BS
Many thanks, - ,
Suzanne |

;liswew AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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RELEASE IN ]
B PARTB6 | IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer g

P

From: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Sent: Monday, July 12, 2010 11:04 AM -

To: y Nossel, Suzanne F; | l Bass,
Warren; Brimmer, Esther D; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Cassidy, Joseph P;
Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James
A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Graze, Deborah E

Cc ' _ Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R

Subject: _ : Re: HRC Flotilla Panel_updated

Looping in DRL PDAS Graze.,

—-- Original Message --—---
From: Nossel, Suzanne F
To:

[ Sodee—mae |Bass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther D; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick,
Kathleen M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James
A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H
Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R
Sent: Mon Jul 12 10:55:38 2010
Subject: Re: HRC Flotilla-Panel_updated

From Geneva. it seems panel is not a done deal yet and that today's planned announcement will be delayed.

The Turks (as an interested party) have vetoed Dino Kritsiotis of Zimbabwe for something he wrote in the past. Further,
De Silvo will be a member, but will not be the chairperson. The Thai still hopes to name the committee this week.

—- Original Message -—--

From: Nossel, Suzanne F

To:| |
[ |Bass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther D; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick,
Kathleen M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James
A; Cunningham, James B

Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R
Sent: Fri Jul 09 15:59:33 2010

Subject: HRC Flotilla Panel

.

We understand the below named will be designated Monday to the HRC fact-finding mission on the flotilla.

Best,
Suzanne

Here is the short bio of the 2 members of the FFM on Fletilla,Dino Kritsiotis is a Zimbabwean lawyer with extensive
experience in the field of international humanitarian law. A regular contributor to the ICRC Warsaw Summer School on
International Humanitarian Law and one of the founding directors of the All Africa Course on International Humanitarian
Law, he has been teaching at the University of Nottingham School of Law since 1994.

Mary Shanthi Dairiam (Malaysia) was a member of the Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women
from 2005 to 2008. Since 2007, she has been serving on the Gender Equality Task Force of the United Nations
Development Programme. She is a founding member of the Board of Directors of the International Women'’s Rights
Action Watch Asia Pacific.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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And the Head of the FEM will be Sir Desmond de SilvaHis CV can be obtained from the following
linkhttp://www.argentchambers.co.uk/site/people/profile/sirdesmonddesilvaqc#
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From: Nossel, Suzanne F

Sent: Monday, July 12, 2010 12:44 PM

To: Cassidy, Joseph P;[ _ | Bass,

Warren; Brimmer, Esther D; Koh, Harold Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen
M; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace,
James A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Graze, Deborah E

2 Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R ]

Subject: Re: HRC Flotilla Panel: updated

Best, Suzanne

—— Original Message -——

From: Cassidy, Joseph P

To: Nossel, Suzanne F; | |
[ |Bass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther D; Koh, Harold Hongju;
Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G;
Wallace, James A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Graze, Deborah E

Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R

Sent: Mon Jul 12 12:01:32 2010

Subject: RE: HRC Flotilla Panel_updated

Suzanne, Why do OIC countries get a veto on appointments in practice, but Israel and we do not? joe

——CQriginal Message-—-

From: Nossel, Suzanne F

Sent: Monday, July 12, 2010 10:56 AM

Tol __|Bass, Warren; Brimmer, Esther D; Koh, Harold -
Hongju; Posner, Michael H; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Harris, Robert K; Banos, Mariano H; Aswad,
Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Wallace, James A; Cunningham, James B; Goldberger, Thomas H

Cc: Ostermeier, Amy A; Andris, Matthew R ;

Subject: Re: HRC Flotilla Panel_updated

From Geneva. It seems panel is not a done deal yet and that today's planned announcement will be delayed.

The Turks (as an interested party) have vetoed Dino Kritsiotis of Zimbabwe for something he wrote in the past. ful‘ther,
De Silvo will be a member, but will not be the chairperson. The Thai still hopes to name the committeé this week.

---— QOriginal Message.---—

From: Nossel, Suzanne F

To: | |
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

Sent: FriJul 09 15:59:33 2010

Subject: HRC Flotilla Panel ' REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior |
2 Reviewer
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We understand the below named will be designated Monday to the HRC fact-finding mission on the flotilla.

Best,
Suzanne

Here is the short bio of the 2 members of the FFM on Flotilla,Dino Kritsiotis is a Zimbabwean lawyer with extensive
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
Action Watch Asia Pacific. .

And the Head of the FFM will be Sir Desmond de SilvaHis CV can be obtained from the following
linkhttp://www.argentchambers.co.uk/site/people/profile/sirdesmonddesilvaqch

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depart-ment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05905316 Date: 12/31/2015

StateDept008967



	StateDept008692-StateDept008721
	StateDept008722-StateDept008759
	StateDept008760-StateDept008796
	StateDept008797-StateDept008860
	StateDept008861-StateDept008913
	StateDept008914-StateDept008980
	StateDept008981-StateDept009006
	StateDept009007-StateDept009028
	StateDept009029-StateDept009056
	StateDept009057-StateDept009083
	StateDept009084-StateDept009116
	StateDept009117-StateDept009149
	StateDept009150-StateDept009183



